
School Board of Clay County
Teacher Inservice Center - Fleming Island High School, 2233 Village Square Parkway

April 2, 2020 - Regular School Board Meeting

Date: Apr 02 2020 (6:00 p.m.)

Student Showcase (Orange Park Elementary Chorus, Angie Lindsey, Music Teacher)

Invocation (Reese D. Edwards, Senior Chaplain, Orange Park Medical Center)

Pledge of Allegiance

Call to Order

Recognitions and Awards

1. Introduction of Chief Science Officers (students) in Clay County District Schools

Presenters

2. First Coast YMCA After-School Impact Report

School Showcase (Orange Park Elementary, Carolyn McCullough, Principal)

Presentations from the Audience (Public Comment)

Consent Agenda

Superintendent

3. C1 - Minutes of Workshop on February 25, 2020; Student Hearings, and Regular Meeting on March 5, 2020

2020 Feb 25 Workshop.pdf

2020 Mar 5 Student Discipline.pdf (Confidential)

2020 Mar 5 Regular Meeting.pdf

Human Resources

4. C2 - Personnel Consent Agenda

Personnel Consent Agenda April 2, ,2020.pdf

5. C3 - Proposed Supplement Allocations for 2020-2021

6. C4 - Reappointments of Instructional and Support Personnel 2020-2021 School Year

7. C5 - Kelly Services Early Childhood Education Services Amendment

Kelly Services Amendment - Early Childhood Education.pdf

8. C6 - Appointment of Clay County School Board's CCEA and CESPA Bargaining Team Members for 2020-2021

Page 1 of 334

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=16377
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=18403
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=16376
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2020-feb-25-workshop.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2020-mar-5-regular-meeting_2.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=17392
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/personnel-consent-agenda-april-2-2020.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=18402
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=17395
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=18394
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/kelly-services-amendment-early-childhood-education.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=17394


2020-2021 Bargaining Team Members.pdf

Instruction-Academic Services

9. C7 - K-12 Academic Services Out of State and Overnight Student Travel

April 2020 - Student Travel.pdf

10. C8 - YMCA License Agreement for Use of School Property

April 2020 - YMCA Agreement.pdf

11. C9 - Amendment Number Two to Contract Between "Bright Minds Youth Development, Inc." and the School Board
of Clay County

April 2020 - Bright Minds Agreement - Amendment Two.pdf

12. C10 - Summer Programs Manual, Proposed Allocations, and Calendar

April 2020 - 2020 Clay County Summer Programs Manual.pdf

April 2020 - 2020 ESE Extended School Year Calendar.pdf

April 2020 - Summer School Calendar 2020.pdf

Instruction-Career and Technical Education

13. C11 -  CTE Out of State and Overnight Field Trip

Instruction-Professional Development

14. C12 -  Clay Charter Academy Contract Renewal

Instruction-Reading/Library Media

15. C13 -  Proclamation #20-13 to Establish April, 2020 as School Library Month in Clay County

Proclamation-April 2020 School Library Media Month (1).docx

Instruction-Climate and Culture

16. C14 - Proclamation #20-12 National School Nurse Week

Nurses Week Proclamation19-20.docx

Business Affairs

17. C15 - Proposed Allocation Changes for 2020-2021

Allocation Summary - April 2, 2020.pdf

18. C16 - Clay County District School Board Operational, Financial and Single Audit for the 2018-2019 Fiscal Year

19. C17 - Charter School Audits for the 2018-2019 Fiscal Year

2019 Audit Report for Clay Charter Academy.pdf

2019 Audit Report for St. John's Classical Academy.pdf

2019 Audit Report for Florida Cyber Charter Academy at Clay.pdf

20. C18 - Clay Education Foundation Audit for the 2018-2019 Fiscal Year

2019 Audit for  Clay County Education Foundation.pdf

Page 2 of 334

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2020-2021-bargaining-team-members.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=17384
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/april-2020-student-travel.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=16379
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/april-2020-ymca-agreement.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=17383
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=17383
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/april-2020-bright-minds-agreement-amendment-two.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=17396
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/april-2020-2020-clay-county-summer-programs-manual.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/april-2020-2020-ese-extended-school-year-calendar.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/april-2020-summer-school-calendar-2020.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=17398
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=17400
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=17385
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/proclamation-april-2020-school-library-media-month-1.docx
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=17386
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/nurses-week-proclamation19-20.docx
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=17390
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/allocation-summary-april-2-2020_2.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=18404
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=18406
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2019-audit-report-for-clay-charter-academy.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2019-audit-report-for-st-johns-classical-academy.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2019-audit-report-for-florida-cyber-charter-academy-at-clay.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=18408
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2019-audit-for-clay-county-education-foundation.pdf


Business Affairs-Accounting

21. C19 - Monthly Financial Reports for February, 2020

February Monthly Property Report.pdf

February Monthly Financial Report.pdf

22. C20 - Budget Amendment for Month Ending February 29, 2020

Budget Amendments February 2020.pdf

Business Affairs-Internal Accounts

23. C21 - Student Activity Account (Internal Account)  Audits  for the 2018-2019 Fiscal Year

Business Affairs-Payroll

24. C22 - Revised 2020-2021 Payroll Calendar for 9-Month Employees

2020-2021 Payroll Calendar 9 Month-revised.pdf

Business Affairs-Property

25. C23 - Deletion of Certain Items Report - March, 2020

Deletion-Report-March-2020.pdf

Business Affairs-Purchasing

26. C24 - BID Renewal

Operations-Facilities

27. C25 - Pre-Qualification of Contractors

Table for Board Backup Contractor Prequal, 4.2.20.pdf

28. C26 - Change Order #1 for Keystone Heights High School Site Improvements (Sanitary Line)

KHS Site Improvements CO 1.pdf

29. C27 - Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) Plans and Specifications for Clay High School Security
Lighting Repair/Replacement

30. C28 - Clay High School Erosion Control/Stormwater Repair Contract Award

CHS Erosion Control.Sotrmwater Repair Bid Tab.pdf

31. C29 - Wilkinson Elementary School Fire Alarm Replacement Contract Award

WES Fire Alarm Replacement Bid Tab.pdf

32. C30 - Keystone Heights Elementary School Roof Replacement/Repair (Building 10) Contract Award

KHE Roof Replacement Bldg 10 Bid Tab.pdf

33. C31 - Lakeside Junior High School Parking Lot Renovation Contract Award

LSJH Parking Lot Renovation Bid Tab.pdf

34. C32 - County-Wide Architectural Services up to $2 Million Contract Award

Adoption of Consent Agenda

Page 3 of 334

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=17401
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/february-monthly-property-report.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/february-monthly-financial-report_3.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=17388
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/budget-amendments-february-2020.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=18405
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=18409
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2020-2021-payroll-calendar-9-month-revised.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=17391
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/deletion-report-march-2020.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=17402
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=17399
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/table-for-board-backup-contractor-prequal-4220_1.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=18395
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/khs-site-improvements-co-1.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=18396
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=18396
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=18397
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/chs-erosion-controlsotrmwater-repair-bid-tab.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=18398
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/wes-fire-alarm-replacement-bid-tab.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=18399
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/khe-roof-replacement-bldg-10-bid-tab.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=18400
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/lsjh-parking-lot-renovation-bid-tab.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=18401


35. Adoption of Consent Agenda

CCEA Update  (Renna Lee Paiva)

CESPA Update  (Lonnie Roberts)

Superintendent's Update and Presentations

Discussion Agenda

Human Resources

36. D1 - Human Resources Special Action

School Board Attorney Remarks

School Board Member Remarks

Adjournment

Page 4 of 334

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=16378
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=17393


School Board of Clay County

April 2, 2020 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
Introduction of Chief Science Officers (students) in Clay County District Schools

Description
This initiative is a partnership between Northeast Florida STEM2Hub and Clay Education Foundation, formed in early 2020,
with assistance from Chris Okamoto, K12 Curriculum Specialist.  Following two days of training, students were pinned as the
first Chief Science Officers in Clay County and among some of the first in the state of Florida.

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation

Contact
Makayla Buchanan, Executive Director, Clay Education Foundation, makayla,buchanan@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Undetermined

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 5 of 334

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 2, 2020 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
First Coast YMCA After-School Impact Report

Description
Chuck Steinfurth will have a brief presentation re: the after-school impact of YMCA services.

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation

Contact
Carol Studdard, Board Chair, carol.studdard@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 6 of 334

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 2, 2020 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C1 - Minutes of Workshop on February 25, 2020; Student Hearings, and Regular Meeting on March 5, 2020

Description
Florida Statute 1001.42(1) requires the superintendent, as secretary, to keep such minutes and records as are necessary to set
forth clearly all actions and proceedings of the school board.  The minutes of each meeting shall be reviewed, corrected if
necessary, and approved at the next regular meeting; provided, that this action may be taken at an intervening special meeting if
the board desires.

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation
Approve minutes as submitted.

Contact
David S. Broskie, Superintendent of Schools, david.broskie@myoneclay.net; Bonnie O'Nora, Board Assistant;

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

2020 Feb 25 Workshop.pdf

2020 Mar 5 Student Discipline.pdf (Confidential)

2020 Mar 5 Regular Meeting.pdf

Page 7 of 334

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2020-feb-25-workshop.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2020-mar-5-regular-meeting_2.pdf


2/28/2020 Agenda Plus - February 25, 2020 - School Board Workshop

agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/previewminutes?agendaid=1158 1/2

Date: Feb 25 2020 (9:00 a.m.)

School Board of Clay County

District Multi-Purpose Center, Green Cove Springs (Corner of Walnut Street and Gratio Place)

February 25, 2020 - School Board Workshop

Invocation  (Carol Studdard)

Call to Order  (Present: Janice Kerekes, District 1; Carol Studdard, District 2; Tina Bullock, District 3; Mary Bolla, District 4; Ashley
Gilhousen, District 5; and Superintendent Addison Davis.)

Workshop Items

1. Review Draft Agenda for Regular School Board Meeting on March 5, 2020

march-5-2020-regular-school-board-meeting_agenda_packet.pdf

Minutes:

RECOGNITIONS:

Take Stock in Children Spotlight - increase awareness of the positive impact of mentors - no discussion;
Certi�ed Board Member Recognition - recognition of Board Member Tina Bullock - no discussion;

CONSENT AGENDA:

C1 Minutes of Workshop on January 28, 2020; Student Hearings and Regular Meeting on February 6, 2020 - no
discussion;
C2 Proclamation #20-09, Clay County Agricultural Fair - no discussion;
C3 2020-2021 Employee Calendar: Change for Elementary ISS Assistants - change to re�ect proper number of working
days of ISS assistants;
C4 2020 Exceptional Student Education Extended School Year (ESY) Calendar; Changed Due to Date Errors - correction of
date error;
C5 Personnel Consent Agenda - includes updated job descriptions for Food & Nutrition Services;
C6 Proclamation #20-10 to Establish May 4-8, 2020 as Teacher Appreciation Week in Clay County, and Tuesday, May 5,
2020 as Teacher Appreciation Day - no discussion;
C7 Proclamation #20-11 to Establish April 20-24, 2020 as Administrative Professionals' Week and Wednesday, April 22,
2020 as Administrative Professionals' Day in Clay County - no discussion;
C8 K-12 Academic Services Out of State and Overnight Student Travel - routine student travel;
C9 Monthly Financial Reports for January 2020 - routine reports;
C10 Budget Amendment for Month Ending January 31, 2020 - routine reports;
C11 Renewal of Employee Bene�ts for the 2020-2021 plan year - insurance committee has elected to bring the Board a
recommendation of choosing United Healthcare as the provider;
C12 NSF Write-O� Permission - no discussion;
C13 Approval of the 2020-2021 Payroll Calendars - no discussion;
C14 Deletion of Certain Items Report - February 2020 - routine surplus of items;
C15 BID to be Awarded - no discussion;
C16 Bid Renewal - no discussion;

Page 8 of 334

DRAFT



2/28/2020 Agenda Plus - February 25, 2020 - School Board Workshop

agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/previewminutes?agendaid=1158 2/2

C17 Clay Electric Cooperative Right-of-Way Easement at Tynes Elementary School - accessibility to equipment needed to
complete work at Tynes Elementary School;
C18 Pre-Quali�cation of Contractors - no discussion;
C19 Tynes Elementary School New Classroom Addition Architect Contract Award - capacity is currently at 103%,
proposed change will add a suite of 8 classrooms to bring capacity down to 97% to accommodate anticipated growth;

DISCUSSION AGENDA:

D1 Child Care Learning Labs 2020-2021 - Alice Paulk, Supervisor of Career and Technical Education, will provide
information and proposals to explore potential changes to our PreK programs;
D2 Human Resources Special Action - no discussion;
D3 Proposed Allocations for the 2020-2021 School Year - overall summation of proposed changes to allocations for
2020-2021.  

Questions from the Audience

Superintendent Comments

School Board Comments

Adjournment  (9:42a.m.)

Superintendent of Schools School Board Chair

Page 9 of 334

DRAFT



Page 10 of 334

DRAFT



Page 11 of 334

DRAFT



Page 12 of 334

DRAFT



Page 13 of 334

DRAFT



Page 14 of 334

DRAFT



Page 15 of 334

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 2, 2020 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C2 - Personnel Consent Agenda

Description
Florida Statutes, State Board Rules and Clay County School Board Policies require Board notification and/or action regarding
decisions and recommendations of the Superintendent related to Personnel matters.  Actions regarding personnel have been
recommended by Supervisors, approved by the Superintendent and are being forwarded to the Board for action or, if appropriate,
for information.  Personnel Actions, Transfer Requests, Pre-employments, Leave Forms or Directives from the Superintendent
are available for review in the Human Resources Division.

Gap Analysis
These personnel actions are necessary for the effective operation of the school district.

Previous Outcomes
The Clay County School Board has approved each month a Personnel Consent Agenda which contains appointments, re-
appointments, transfers, redesignations, retirements, resignations, and conclude employments.

Expected Outcomes
Approval of the Personnel Consent Agenda.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5:  Develop and support great educators, support personnel, and leaders.
 
Initiative 5.1.1 - Recruit and retain highly skilled, qualified, and diverse educators, leaders, and support staff.

Recommendation
To approve the Personnel Consent Agenda.

Contact
David S. Broskie, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources.  (904) 336-6701 David.Broskie@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Personnel changes involving already-allocated positions will result in salary impact per the current Board-approved Salary
Schedule.  This also includes supplemental positions.  See current backup for allocation changes for impact of new positions.

Review Comments

Attachments

Personnel Consent Agenda April 2, ,2020.pdf

Page 16 of 334

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/personnel-consent-agenda-april-2-2020.pdf


Page 17 of 334

DRAFT



Page 18 of 334

DRAFT



Page 19 of 334

DRAFT



Page 20 of 334

DRAFT



Page 21 of 334

DRAFT



Page 22 of 334

DRAFT



Page 23 of 334

DRAFT



Page 24 of 334

DRAFT



Page 25 of 334

DRAFT



Page 26 of 334

DRAFT



Page 27 of 334

DRAFT



Page 28 of 334

DRAFT



Page 29 of 334

DRAFT



Page 30 of 334

DRAFT



Page 31 of 334

DRAFT



Page 32 of 334

DRAFT



Page 33 of 334

DRAFT



Page 34 of 334

DRAFT



Page 35 of 334

DRAFT



Page 36 of 334

DRAFT



Page 37 of 334

DRAFT



Page 38 of 334

DRAFT



Page 39 of 334

DRAFT



Page 40 of 334

DRAFT



Page 41 of 334

DRAFT



Page 42 of 334

DRAFT



Page 43 of 334

DRAFT



Page 44 of 334

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 2, 2020 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C3 - Proposed Supplement Allocations for 2020-2021

Description
The School Board is required to take action on all academic and athletic supplemental allocations each school year.

Gap Analysis
The following list comprises various transactions that require the recommendation of the Superintendent and the approval of the
School Board.  The supplemental list includes academic and athletic supplements.

Previous Outcomes
Cost analysis for the past seven (7) years: 
2013-2014 Academic $1,470,892.00 / Athletic $1,211,876.00 = $2,682,768.00.   
2014-2015 Academic $1,547,000.00 / Athletic $1,210,861.00 = $2,758,561.00.   
2015-2016 Academic $1,555,313.00 / Athletic $1,210,861.00 = $2,766,174.00. 
2016-2017 Academic $1,556,323.00 / Athletic $1,213,311.00 = $2,769,634.00. 
2017-2018 Academic $1,576,063.00 / Athletic $1,218,858.00 = $2,794,921.00.
2018-2019 Academic $1,614,177.00 / Athletic $1,223,058.00 = $2,837,235.00.
2020-2021 Academic $1,665,383.00 / Athletic $1,261,367.00 = $2,926,750.00.
 

Expected Outcomes
Supplements will be distributed sufficiently to meet the needs of the various schools and district departments.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility and equitable distribution of resources.
 

Recommendation
Approve the supplements as presented.

Contact
David Broskie, Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources; 904 336-6701; David.Broskie@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Cost of Academic Supplements: $1,665,383.00/ Cost of Athletic Supplements: $1,261,367.00 Total: $2,926,750.00

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 45 of 334

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 2, 2020 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C4 - Reappointments of Instructional and Support Personnel 2020-2021 School Year

Description
The attached reappointment documents reflect school-based and district instructional and support employees that have cleared
any holds and have been submitted for reappointment during the 2020-2021 school year.  Florida Statutes 1012.27 and 1012.22
outlines the duties and responsibilities of the Superintendent of Schools and the School Board regarding reappointments of
employees.  This action fulfills these requirements.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Each year the Clay County School board has approved the reappointment of Instructional and Support Personnel.

Expected Outcomes
Reappointment of recommended PSC, CC, AC instructional personnel and reappointments of multi-year contract and AC non-
instructional personnel will be approved.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure the retention of effective employees.

Recommendation
Approval of 2020-2021 reappointment agenda as presented for instructional and non-instructional personnel.

Contact
David Broskie, Assistant Superintendent Human Resources  (904.336.6701)  david.broskie@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
The financial impact would be the total salary and benefits of the reappointed employees in the 2020-2021 budget.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 46 of 334

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 2, 2020 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C5 - Kelly Services Early Childhood Education Services Amendment

Description
Attached is Exhibit D of the Addendum to the Kelly Services Agreement, which adds Early Childhood Education Substitutes . 
Clay County has a current contract with Kelly Services, which was approved by the Board on September 5, 2019.  The only
change to the existing contract is to add substitute services for Early Childhood Education positions.  This would allow us to
better serve stakeholders.  The contract has an exit clause that can be enacted by either party with a written thirty (30) day
notice. 

Gap Analysis
As the provider of staffing services, Kelly Services shall be the employer of Assigned Employees and shall be responsible for the
staffing services listed: recruit, interview, select, and hire Assigned Employees; place Assigned Employees according to SDCC
requirements; pay Assigned Employees their wages and provide them the benefits that Kelly Services offers to them as Kelly
Services Employees; pay insurance premiums (e.g. Medicare), withhold payroll taxes (e.g. FICA) and fulfill its obligations for
unemployment compensation; provide workers compensation benefits; and maintain Assigned Employees personnel and payroll
records related to their employment by Kelly Services.  This Amendment is only to add services to obtain substitutes for Early
CHildhood Educationservices.

Previous Outcomes
The Agreement was Board approved September 5, 2019, and has been used successfully to provide quality substitutes to the
district.
 

Expected Outcomes
Upon approval by the Board, we expect Kelly Services to continue providing quality substitutes with the addition of services for
Early Childhood Education positions.

Strategic Plan Goal
The district ensures fiscal responsibility and equitable distribution of resources.
 

Recommendation
Approve the amendment to the original Kelly Services Contract, which adds substitute services for Early Childhood Education
positions.
 

Contact
David Broskie, Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources; david.broskie@myoneclay.net; 904.336.6701

Financial Impact
All funding necessary for the Educational Staffing fees are budgeted within the General budget.  The exact cost for the 2019-
2020 school year cannot be determined at this time. Reference attachment for the 2018-2019 cost analysis.

Review Comments

Attachments

Kelly Services Amendment - Early Childhood Education.pdf

Page 47 of 334

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/kelly-services-amendment-early-childhood-education.pdf


Page 48 of 334

DRAFT



Page 49 of 334

DRAFT



Page 50 of 334

DRAFT



Page 51 of 334

DRAFT



Page 52 of 334

DRAFT



Page 53 of 334

DRAFT



Page 54 of 334

DRAFT



Page 55 of 334

DRAFT



Page 56 of 334

DRAFT



Page 57 of 334

DRAFT



Page 58 of 334

DRAFT



Page 59 of 334

DRAFT



Page 60 of 334

DRAFT



Page 61 of 334

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 2, 2020 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C6 - Appointment of Clay County School Board's CCEA and CESPA Bargaining Team Members for 2020-2021

Description
Bargaining Team members are approved by the School Board prior to collective bargaining each year.  Superintendent
Broskie and Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs, Dr. Susan Legutko, are members on both teams.  Please see
attachment.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Bargaining teams have been approved by the school board in past years.

Expected Outcomes
The School Board of Clay County will approve the appointment of bargaining teams which will successfully negotiate the 2020-
2021 contracts between the School Board of Clay County along with the CCEA and CESPA bargaining units.

Strategic Plan Goal
N/A

Recommendation
Approve the bargaining team members for 2020-2021.

Contact
David S. Broskie, Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources (904) 336-6701 David.Broskie@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

2020-2021 Bargaining Team Members.pdf

Page 62 of 334

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2020-2021-bargaining-team-members.pdf


 
 
 
 

 
 

2020-2021 BARGAINING TEAM MEMBERS 
 
 
 
CCEA Team: 
Brenda Troutman (Chief Negotiator) 
Jeffrey Schriver 
Kim Bays 
Ivin Gunder 
Dawn Wolfe 
David Broskie 
Susan Legutko 
 
 
CESPA Team:  
Brenda Troutman (Chief Negotiator) 
Catherine Richardson 
Michael Kemp 
Derald Sweatt 
Heather Roche 
Christy Graham 
David Broskie 
Susan Legutko 
 
 

Leonard Dietzen will serve as special counsel for negotiations. 

Page 63 of 334

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 2, 2020 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C7 - K-12 Academic Services Out of State and Overnight Student Travel

Description
The School Board recognizes that field trips, when used for teaching and learning integral to the curriculum, are an educationally
sound and important ingredient in the instructional program of the schools. Properly planned and executed field trips supplement
and enrich classroom instruction by providing learning experiences that will enhance mastery of the curriculum standards of the
State of Florida. A field trip is defined as any planned, student-travel activity which is approved as part of the district's
educational program and is under the direct supervision and control of an instructional staff member or any advisor as designated
by the Superintendent.
                                                                                                  Field Trips Details

School Date Destination Group Purpose

Fleming Island
High

3/30-31,
2020

Kennedy
Space
Center,
Patrick AFB,
Universal
Studios

NJROTC Supports NJROTC Aviation STEM Curriculum. 

Fleming Island
High

5/1-2, 2020
FSU and
NAS
Pensacola

NJROTC
Supports NJROTC Aviation Curriculum and College
visit.

Middleburg High
3/20-23,
2020

Orlando, FL
FCCLA
Club

Students will attend and compete in a leadership
conference to help develop skills in future career
fields.

Academic
Services

5/10-12,
2020

Anaheim, CA

Internation
al Science
Fair
students

Science competition, sharing and communicating
data with students from all over the globe. 

Oakleaf High 4/2-4, 2020
Kissimmee,
FL

Softball
Team

Softball Invitational 

Gap Analysis
Field trips provide students with a window to the real world that they don't get in the classroom, and they can help students
understand real-world applications to abstract concepts.

Previous Outcomes
All out of county activity trips are selected, planned, evaluated, and approved or rejected in conformity with written district
policy.

Expected Outcomes
It is important to recognize that learning outcomes from field trips can range from cognitive to affective outcomes. Exposing
students to new experiences and can increase interest and engagement in academics regardless of prior interests.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure that every classroom provides a quality and rigorous instructional experience in order to elevate student outcomes.

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board approve out of county student travel.   

Page 64 of 334

DRAFT



Contact
Terry Connor, Assistant Superintendent of Curriculum & Instruction; terrence.connor@myoneclay.net; (904) 652-3066

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

April 2020 - Student Travel.pdf

Page 65 of 334

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/april-2020-student-travel.pdf


Page 66 of 334

DRAFT



Page 67 of 334

DRAFT



Page 68 of 334

DRAFT



Page 69 of 334

DRAFT



Page 70 of 334

DRAFT



Page 71 of 334

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 2, 2020 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C8 - YMCA License Agreement for Use of School Property

Description
Renewing of the 2018-2020 "Agreement" for a one-year extension per that agreement.  Section 3 of this "Agreement" states:
"3. Term of Agreement: "....At the option of the YMCA this agreement may be extended for three additional one year terms upon
written notice delivered to the Board no later than June 10th of each year in which the YMCA states its intention to exercise this
option...."
The agreement allows the YMCA of Florida's First Coast, Inc. to implement an after-school enrichment program at all of the
Clay County elementary schools (grades K-6).  The program will utilize the facilities of the elementary schools.  The YMCA will
hire and maintain the staff at each site.
 

Gap Analysis
This program offers an educational component, social/emotional support system and services to each schools community.

Previous Outcomes
The YMCA has had a program in place for a number of years.  The data - see attachment - highlights the educational benefits or
growth that our students have experienced while in the program this past year.

Expected Outcomes
The YMCA and the Clay school district has always had a positive relationship and it is expected to see similar gains in the areas
recorded.
 

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal:  Develop a High Quality & Aligned Instrucational System.
Strategy:  1.1.4 Explore innovative program options for rigorous opportunities at the elementary and secondary levels.
 
 

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Boad approve the request for a 1-year extension of the "Agreement."

Contact
Kim Bays, Director of Elementary Education; judith.bays@myoneclay.net
Michael Wingate, Director of Academic Services; michael.wingate@myoneclay.net; 336-6918

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

April 2020 - YMCA Agreement.pdf

Page 72 of 334

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/april-2020-ymca-agreement.pdf


Page 73 of 334

DRAFT



Page 74 of 334

DRAFT



Page 75 of 334

DRAFT



Page 76 of 334

DRAFT



Page 77 of 334

DRAFT



Page 78 of 334

DRAFT



Page 79 of 334

DRAFT



Page 80 of 334

DRAFT



Page 81 of 334

DRAFT



Page 82 of 334

DRAFT



Page 83 of 334

DRAFT



Page 84 of 334

DRAFT



Page 85 of 334

DRAFT



Page 86 of 334

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 2, 2020 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C9 - Amendment Number Two to Contract Between "Bright Minds Youth Development, Inc." and the School Board of Clay
County

Description
Deleting Charles E. Bennett from the list of schools that hosts the program and adding Bannerman Learning Center. The reason
for this change is due to CEB having a specialized program at their school this summer and there was a concern that the students
who should attend this program may opt for the BMYD program, a less rigorous program.  All parties were consulted with and it
was agreed that the Green Cove area needed a location and, therefore, BLC was available. The program had been at that site
several years ago.
This agreement between "Bright Minds Youth Development" (BMYD) and the School Board concerns the organization utilizing
the facilities at 6 schools during the summer break in order to provide daily enrichment services and activities for children
between the ages of 5 and 16.  "BMYD" conducts and operates a youth development summer camp to primarily benefit Clay
County youth.  The organization utilizes classroom, computer labs, and any athletic facilities/playgrounds that are available at the
listed schools (Oakleaf Junior High School; Keystone Heights Elementary School; Ridgeview Elementary School; Fleming
Island Elementary School; Orange Park Junior High School and the addition of Bannerman Learning Center).

Gap Analysis
The contract/agreement requires us to utilize schools for the program.  It has been agreed to delete CEB and add BLC in its' place
due to being located in the same geographic area.
 

Previous Outcomes
The program has operated in Clay County for 7 years at various schools. Attendance has varied at each of the schools with
Oakleaf JH averaging 202 per year and the average at the elementary schools is at 73.
 

Expected Outcomes
The youth who attend the program will benefit from the program academically as well as social/emotionally.  The District will
provide a curriculum that will help with academic retention as well as access to iReady.  The "BMYD" staff will plan daily
activities that will help facilitate educational goals.
 

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal: Develop a High Quality & Aligned Instructional System
Strategy:  1.1.4 Explore innovative program options for rigorous opportunities at the elementary and secondary levels.
 

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board approve the amendment to the Bright Minds Youth Development agreement.  However, for
consideration of a new contract/agreement, the amount charged to BMYD should be increased.  

Contact
Terry Connor, Chief Academic Officer, 904-336-9405; terrence.connor@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
The organization will pay the District $500 per site for the summer dates.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 87 of 334

DRAFT



April 2020 - Bright Minds Agreement - Amendment Two.pdf

Page 88 of 334

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/april-2020-bright-minds-agreement-amendment-two.pdf


Page 89 of 334

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 2, 2020 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C10 - Summer Programs Manual, Proposed Allocations, and Calendar

Description
Each year, Clay County hosts several summer programs for the educational benefit of students.  These programs are
fundamentally designed to either remediate students or to maintain educational levels.  These programs range from pre-
kindergarten to high school levels.  Programs are held at various sites in the District and have approved guidelines attached to
each program.  Special education students have access to each program sponsored.
 

Gap Analysis
The summer programs offered either provide valuable opportunities for students to increase their educational knowledge or
maintain skills.
 

Previous Outcomes
Students in all of the programs either retained learning levels or increased learning levels due to the summer programs being
offered in 2019-20.  At the junior high level, students were able to be promoted due to the passage of courses offered during this
summer period. Similarly, students in grades 9-12 recouped credits due to the summer high school program.  This enables the
students to recoup credits or to maintain a pace so that receiving a high school diploma is possible.
                                                     

Expected Outcomes
Students will continue to increase learning levels or recoup credits/courses in all programs.  Programs that are offered (with the
targeted audiences) are:

Voluntary Pre-K: Children who will be 4-years old on or before 9/1/17 and have not used any portion of a Certificate of
Eligibility from any Florida coalition during the 19-20 year;

-

3rd Grade Summer Reading Camp: 3rd grade students who scored a level 1 on the ELA Florida State Assessment;-
6th grade and Junior High: students seeking to recover failed courses;-
High School: 9-12 students seeking credit recovery;-
Algebra 1 Credit Recovery for ESE Only;; Students with disabilities who failed this course;-
Algebra 1 "Boot Camp"; students who have not passed the Algebra 1 EOC.  This is a review session;-
11th-12th Grade ESOL; ELL students scoring level 1 or 2 on the ELA FSA;-
ESE Extended School Year: ESE students who have been determined to need ESY services.-

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal:   Develop a High Quality and Aligned Instructional System
Strategy:  1.1.4 Explore innovative program options for rigorous opportunities at the elementary and secondary levels.

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board approve to approve the Summer Program Manual and the Calendar

Contact
Terry Connor, Chief Academic Officer, 904.336.9405, terrence.connor@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
$235,000.00

Review Comments

Page 90 of 334

DRAFT



Attachments

April 2020 - 2020 Clay County Summer Programs Manual.pdf

April 2020 - 2020 ESE Extended School Year Calendar.pdf

April 2020 - Summer School Calendar 2020.pdf

Page 91 of 334

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/april-2020-2020-clay-county-summer-programs-manual.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/april-2020-2020-ese-extended-school-year-calendar.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/april-2020-summer-school-calendar-2020.pdf


 

  

 

 

 

  

 
Page 92 of 334

DRAFT



  

Clay County School Board Members 
 

District I 

The Honorable Janice Kerekes 
 

District II 

The Honorable Carol Studdard, Chairman 
 

District III 

The Honorable Tina Bullock 
 

District IV 

The Honorable Mary Bolla 
 

District V 

The Honorable Ashley Gilhousen 

 

Superintendent of Schools 

The Honorable David Broskie 

 

 

2020 Summer Programs Manual 1 

Page 93 of 334

DRAFT



  

Table of Contents 

 

Table of Contents 2 

2020 Summer Programs Overview 3 

Summer Voluntary Pre-Kindergarten Program (SVPK) 5 

3rd Grade Summer Reading Camp 10 

6th Grade & Junior High Credit Recovery 15 

High School Credit Recovery 21 

Algebra 1 Credit Recovery for ESE ONLY 26 

Algebra 1 Boot Camp 30 

11th- 12th Grade ESOL Summer Reading Program 34 

ESE Extended School Year 39 

 

  

2020 Summer Programs Manual 2 

Page 94 of 334

DRAFT



  

2020 Summer Programs Overview 
Calendar for the Public 

Summer Programs Website 

Program Dates Audience Description of 
Program 

Sites Funding 
Source 

Voluntary 
Pre-K 

Summer 
Program 

 
Program 

Details pp. 5-9 
 

VPK Forms 
 

Teachers: 
6/8/20- 
7/28/20 

 
 

Students & 
Assistants: 

6/9/20- 
7/28/20 

 
No school on 
7/2 and 7/3 

Children who will be 4 
years old on or before 

September 1, 2018 and 
have not used any portion 
of a Certificate of Eligibility 
from any Florida coalition 
during the 2018-19 school 

year 

A free, seven-week 
summer learning 

program that 
provides instruction 

to students, 
preparing them for 

school readiness and 
success 

 

Fleming Island Elementary 
 
 

Project 
1458  

 
Fund 100 

3rd Grade 
Summer 

Reading Camp  
 
 

Program 
Details pp. 

23-27 
 

3rd Grade 
Reading Forms 

 

Teachers: 
6/15/20- 
7/22/20 

 
 

Students: 
6/16/20- 
7/22/20 

 
No school on 

7/2 

3rd grade students who 
scored a level 1 on the 
English Language Arts 

Florida State 
Assessment  
(ELA FSA) 

A free program 
providing 3rd 

grade students 
with every 

opportunity to be 
promoted  

Free breakfast 
and lunch 

provided for 
students outside 

of program hours. 

Grove Park Elementary 
Keystone Heights Elem. 
S.Bryan Jennings Elem. 
Wilkinson Elementary 

Project 
1439 

 
Fund 100  

 
 

6th Grade & 
Junior High 

Credit 
Recovery 

 
Program 

Details pp.  
32-36 

 
6th Grade and 
JR High Forms 

 

Teachers: 
6/16/20-7/8/20 
 

Students: 
6/17/20-7/8/20 
 

 
 

6th-8th grade students* 
who are seeking to 
recover two or less 

credits/courses to be 
promoted 

 
*Standard diploma, 

including students with 
disabilities in inclusion and 
self-contained classrooms 

Student will use 
Edgenuity Software 

for 12 days in a 
blended learning 

setting, with 
instruction delivered 
virtually and face-to 

face 
 
 

Lake Asbury Junior High 
Orange Park Junior High 
Keystone Heights Jr/Sr 

Project 
1139 

 
Fund 100 

High School 
Credit 

Recovery 
 
 

Program 
Details pp.  

39-43 
 

High School 
Credit 

Recovery 
Forms 

Teachers: 
6/16/20-7/8/20 
 

Students: 
6/17/20-7/8/20 

 
 

9th-12th grade students* 
who are seeking to 
recover two or less 

credits/courses to be 
promoted 

 
*Standard diploma, 

including students with 
disabilities in inclusion and 
self-contained classrooms 

Student will use 
Edgenuity software 

for 12 days in a 
blended learning 

setting, with 
instruction delivered 
virtually and face-to 

face 

Clay High 
Fleming Island High 

Keystone Heights Jr/Sr 
Middleburg High 

Oakleaf High  
Orange Park High 

Ridgeview High  

Project 
1139 

 
Fund 100 

2020 Summer Programs Manual 3 

Page 95 of 334

DRAFT



  

Program Dates Audience Description of 
Program 

Sites Funding 
Source 

 Algebra I 
Credit 

Recovery for 
ESE ONLY 

 
Program 

Details pp. 
45-49 

 
Alg 1 ESE 

Forms 
 

Teachers: 
6/16/2020- 
7/15/2020 

Students & 
Assistants: 
6/17/2020- 
7/15/2020 

 
No school on 

7/2 

Students with disabilities 
who are seeking to 

recover Algebra 1 credit 
and/or did not successfully 

pass the Algebra 1 
End-of-Course (EOC) 

Assessment 
 

A free program 
providing students 

with disabilities  with 
every opportunity to 
pass the Algebra 1 

End-of-Course 
(EOC) Assessment 

Clay High  
Fleming Island High.  

Keystone Heights Jr./Sr.  
Middleburg High 

Oakleaf High  
Orange Park High 

Ridgeview High  

Project 
1139 

 
Fund 100 

 
 

Algebra I Boot 
Camp 

 
Program 

Details pp. 
51-54 

 
Alg 1 Boot 

Camp Forms 
 

Teachers: 
7/9/20-7/16/20 
 

Students: 
7/13/20- 
7/16/20 

 
 

Students* who did not 
successfully pass the 

Algebra 1 End-of-Course 
(EOC) Assessment  
*Standard diploma, 

including students with 
disabilities in inclusion and 
self-contained classrooms 

A program providing 
students with every 
opportunity to pass 

the Algebra 1 
End-of-Course 

(EOC) Assessment 

Clay High  
Fleming Island High 

Keystone Heights Jr./Sr.  
Middleburg High 

Oakleaf High  
Orange Park High 

Ridgeview High  

Project 
1139 

 
Fund 100 

11th-12th ESOL 
Summer 
Reading  

 
Program 

Details pp. 
57-61 

 
11th and 12th 
Grade ESOL 

Forms 
 

Teachers: 
6/11/2020- 
6/25/2020 

 
Students & 
Assistants: 
6/15/2020- 
6/25/2020 

English Language 
Learners (ELLs) scoring a 

level 1 or 2 on English 
Language Arts Florida 

State Assessment (ELA 
FSA) 

A free summer 
language program 
providing ELLs the 

opportunity to 
enhance their 

English Language to 
pass the required 

assessments to earn 
a high school 

diploma 

Orange Park High 
Oakleaf High School 

Federal 
Grant 4030 

Year 9  
 

Fund 420 

ESE Extended 
School Year 

 
Program 

Details pp. 
63-67 

 
ESE ESY 

Forms 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Teachers & 
Nurses: 

6/11/2020- 
7/16/2020 

Students & 
Assistants: 
Ridgeview 

High 
6/15/2020- 
7/15/2020 
Keystone 

Heights Elem 
&Middleburg 

High 
6/16/2020- 
7/16/2020 

Students with disabilities 
who have been 

determined to need ESY 
services based on IEP 

team determination.  
The ESY calendar is a 
general framework for 
services; The IEP team 

makes the decision 
regarding ESY services 

necessary for the 
provision of FAPE. 

Extended school 
year services are 

available to provide a 
Free Appropriate 
Public Education 

(FAPE) for students 
with disabilities  

*ESY Sites 
Keystone Heights Elem. 

Ridgeview High 
Middleburg High  

 
*Students are assigned to 
an ESY site based on 
their needs. 

Project 
1139 

 
Fund 100 

  

2020 Summer Programs Manual 4 

Page 96 of 334

DRAFT



  

 Summer Voluntary Pre-Kindergarten Program (SVPK) 
 

District Contact 
 

Michael Wingate 904-336-6918 michael.wingate@myoneclay.net 

 

Location Feeders Meals Cost 

Fleming Island 
Elementary 

Entire school district Students will be provided 
breakfast, lunch, and a 

snack during the 
program. 

 

Free 

 

Summer Voluntary Pre-Kindergarten Program Calendar 

Teachers Teacher Planning, 6/8/2020, 8:00 a.m. - 11:00 a.m. 
Operating Dates, 6/9/2020-7/28/2020, 7:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m. (Monday-Friday) 
Last Day for Teachers, 7/28/2020, 8:00 a.m. - 11:00 a.m.  

Students  Operating Dates, 6/9/2020-7/28/2020, 7:30 a.m. - 4:45 p.m.  (Monday-Friday) 
Last Day for Students, 7/28/2020  7:30-10:30 

Assistants  Operating Dates, 6/9/2020-7/28/2020, 7:30 a.m. - 4:45 p.m.  (Monday-Friday)  
7/28/20 Assistants will be released the same time as students (10:30) 

Important Dates No School on 7/2/2020 and 7/3/2020 
 

Student Registration 
 
Student Eligibility  
The SVPK is a free, seven-week summer learning program that provides instruction to students, 
preparing them for school readiness and success.  The SVPK program enhances students 
pre-reading, pre-math, language, and social skills.  
 
Eligible participants must be 4 years old on or before September 1, 2019 and have not used any 
portion of a Certificate of Eligibility from any Florida coalition during the 2019-2020 school year.  
 
 
 
Student Notification 

2020 Summer Programs Manual 5 

Page 97 of 334

DRAFT



  

Parents can access the 2020 Summer VPK Flyer with registration information on the District VPK 
Website, www.oneclay.net/vpk 
 
Student Registration 
To register, parents must obtain a Summer Certificate of Eligibility from the Florida Early Learning 
Coalition at https://familyservices.floridaearlylearning.com/. The parent must then take the Certificate of 
Eligibility, along with the other required Clay County registration documents, to the VPK Summer 
School location to register the child into the SVPK program.   
 
 

Curriculum & Instruction 

Time 7:30 - 4:45 

Curriculum Florida Early Learning and Developmental Standards 

Instructional 
Methodologies Individual guidance, small group, & exploratory play 

Materials  Early Literacy and Learning Model (ELLM) 

Assessment 
Screening: Florida VPK Assessment 
Progress Monitoring: Teacher-developed records 
Outcome Measure: Florida VPK Assessment 

 

Student Policies 
 
Student Code of Conduct 
The “Student Code of Conduct” policies are to be followed during all summer school offerings. 
 
Attendance 
Students may not be absent for more than 5 days.  
 

Student Records 
 
Initiating Summer School Records 
VPK student records will be created at Fleming Island Elementary upon registration.  
 
Closing Out Summer School Records 
The SVPK teacher will report student progress on the Florida VPK Assessment.  
 

Instructional and Support Application & Hiring  

2020 Summer Programs Manual 6 

Page 98 of 334

DRAFT



  

 
Instructional 

 
The following are the instructional qualifications for summer school: 
 
ARTICLE XIV 
 
PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS AND ASSIGNMENTS 
 
C.  All instructional employment in summer school shall be filled according to the following criteria: 
 

1.       All teachers who apply shall apply for summer school classroom positions which are  
open at centers affecting their school.  Requests to teach summer school shall be 
presented to the district Human Resources Division. 

 
2.       a. Only teachers under contract in the county for the year preceding or for the next 

year will be considered for summer school employment. 
 

b. No teacher receiving an unsatisfactory evaluation during the regular school year  
will be eligible for summer school employment. 

 
3. Assignments to such positions in each summer school center shall be made according  

to the following ranked criteria: 
 

 a. Proper certification and qualifications are held by the employee. 
 

b. Employee has taught one (1) year in the subject applied for within the past three  
(3) years or is assigned to teach the subject for the next school year. 
 

 c. Uninterrupted seniority in the district. 
 

4. During the first three days of summer school, the following ranked criteria shall be used  
should there be a need to reduce the number of teachers in a specific subject area 
within the school, or, for exceptional education teachers on a district-wide basis: 
 

 a. Teachers who do not hold proper certification or qualifications. 
 

 b. Teachers who have not taught one (1) year in the subject within the past three 
(3)  

years or is not assigned to teach the subject for the next school year. 
 

 c. Teachers with least uninterrupted district seniority. 

2020 Summer Programs Manual 7 

Page 99 of 334

DRAFT



  

 
5. Summer school teachers shall not be required to teach less than two (2) hours per day. 
 

Instructional applicants are required to submit the Instructional/Teacher Summer School 
Employment Application (HRD-2-4118) along with the Teaching Preference sheet. Support 
applicants are required to submit the Support ESE ESY School Year Employment Application 
(HRD-2-4122).  All applications should be submitted to Michelle Bily, Human Resources.  
 
NOTES: 

● Positions are based on open enrollment.  Once positions are determined, the positions will be 
subject to minimum required enrollment. 

 
● Parents are able to select any site for VPK.  The feeders for all school sites will cover the 

entire district.  
 

● If a teacher needs to be absent, Principals should work with their faculty and attempt to find a 
substitute.  The absent teacher will not receive pay for the hours missed and the teacher who 
took their place can be paid. 

 
● If a program has additional requirements based on state or federal policy, these requirements 

will be listed with the position posting.  
 
ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS FOR VPK: 

● Under course code number 5100590 VPK Summer Program, VPK summer school instructional 
personnel must hold a valid Florida certificate with a bachelor degree or higher in one of the 
following: Early Childhood Education, Pre-Kindergarten or Primary Education, Preschool 
Education, Family and Consumer Science Education, Elementary Education.  

 
● It is required that instructional personnel receive training from Episcopal Children’s Services at 

www.myflfamilies.com/service-programs/child-care/training.  These trainings may be 
completed either prior to or after summer school VPK placements have been determined. 

 
● Job sharing will be allowed for the Summer Pre-Kindergarten Program as long as both 

teachers and administrator agree to work a Summer A (June 11, 2019 – July 6, 2019) and 
Summer B (July 9, 2019 – July 27, 2019) prior to the first day of the program. 

 
Support 

 
Placement of support personnel in summer school positions when allocated shall be made in the best 
interest of the student in accordance with the IEP, current job title, consideration of the mix of the 
exceptionalities in the summer school setting, employee’s familiarity with the specific group of 
students, ESE experience and training, and all else being equal, seniority.  The primary consideration 
shall be the goal of providing optimal staffing for students within the summer school center. 
 
 
 VPK Budget and Finance 

2020 Summer Programs Manual 8 

Page 100 of 334

DRAFT



  

 
Voluntary Prekindergarten – Project 1458 and Fund 100 
 

● VPK Summer Teachers 100-5500128-0521-1458-0000-000-0 
 

● VPK Summer Assistant 100-5500158-0521-1458-0000-000-0 
 
 
 Summer Voluntary Pre-Kindergarten Forms 

 
Summer VPK Flyer  

Clay County Registration Documents  
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

2020 Summer Programs Manual 9 

Page 101 of 334

DRAFT



  

 

 
 

3rd Grade Summer Reading Camp 
 

District Contact 
 

Jennifer Umbaugh     904-336-6565 jennifer.umbaugh@myoneclay.net 

 

Locations Feeders Meals Cost 

Grove Park Elementary 
Keystone Heights Elementary 
S. Bryan Jennings Elementary 
Wilkinson Elementary 
 

Entire school district Students will be provided  
breakfast (7:30 a.m.- 8:00 a.m.), 
 lunch (12:00 p.m.-12:30 p.m.)  

outside program hours, and a snack 
during the program  

Free 

 

3rd Grade Summer Reading Camp Calendar 

Teachers Teacher Planning, 6/15/20 
● Training at the TTC Lab 1 at FIHS,  8:00 a.m.-11:00 a.m.  
● Planning at Assigned School, 11:00 a.m. - 12:00 p.m. 

Operating Dates, 6/16/20-7/22/20, 7:30 a.m.-12:30 p.m.* (Monday-Thursday) 

Last Day for Teachers, 7/22/20, 7:30 a.m.-3:30 p.m.  
*except last day for teachers 

Students  Operating Dates, 6/16/20-7/22/20, 8:00 a.m.-12:00 p.m. (Monday-Thursday) 
● Breakfast provided 7:30 a.m.-8:00 a.m. 
● Lunch provided 12:00 p.m.- 12:30 p.m. 

Assistants  
if applicable 

Operating Dates, 6/16/20-7/22/20, 8:00 a.m.-12:00 p.m. (Monday-Thursday) 

Important Dates No School on 7/2/20 
 

Student Registration 
 
Eligibility 
In an effort to assure 3rd grade students have every opportunity to be promoted, 3rd Grade Summer 
Reading Camp is provided for students who: 1) scored a level 1 on the Florida State Assessment in 
Reading, and 2) DO NOT meet any of the seven (7) good cause exemptions or good cause for 

2020 Summer Programs Manual 10 

Page 102 of 334

DRAFT



  

promotion.  Students who qualify will be identified once the Florida State Assessment scores are 
received at the district.  
 
 
Notification 
School site administrators will notify and call students and establish the school of attendance via a 
parent letter.  
 
Registration 
Once eligible students are invited, parents will complete the online registration, via the link below. 
School sites will assist parents with online registration if needed.  If a parent does not have access to 
the internet, they can give verbal acknowledgement of attendance and the Student Records 
Secretary can enroll them.  Registration Link: https://goo.gl/forms/qMWW5VVIc9LTK4Z42 
 

Curriculum & Instruction 

Time 8:00-8:15 Explicit phonemic awareness instruction using Sounds and Letters supplemental 
materials (whole group) 

8:15-9:00 Explicit Instruction - phonics, word analysis, word pattern (whole group) 

9:00-9:30 Teacher provides differentiated intervention/progress monitoring with small group 
A based upon student needs while other students in small group B are engaged in 
independent learning using i-Ready. 

10:00-10:30 Teacher provides whole group instruction focusing on comprehension using 
complex texts and close reading techniques 

10:30-11:00 Independent reading time - focus on nonfiction text. Teacher circulates and 
conferences with students and listens to them read. Teacher uses this information 
to help plan small group differentiated instruction. 

11:00-11:30 Read aloud - teacher models fluent reading; uses think aloud strategy; focus is on 
comprehension. 

11:30-12:00 Student writing in response to read-aloud; teacher reviews student writing; asks 
probing questions; students occasionally share their writing with peers 

Curriculum Florida Standards 

Instructional 
Methodologies 

whole class, small group, independent practice 

Materials  Sounds and Letters supplemental materials 
i-Ready software 
Complex text 

Assessment Screening: End of Year FSA data 
Progress Monitoring: i-Ready data and teacher-developed records 
Outcome Measure: SAT-10 Assessment, and portfolio completion 

2020 Summer Programs Manual 11 

Page 103 of 334

DRAFT



  

 

 

 

Student Policies 
 
Attendance 
Students may not miss more than two days, or they will be dropped from the program. In addition, 
more than three tardies or late pick ups will also result in the student being dropped from this 
learning opportunity.  
 
Cell phones 
Communication devices will not be allowed during the school hours. 
 
Student Code of Conduct 
The “Student Code of Conduct” policies are to be followed during all summer school offerings. 
 
Student Records 

 
Initiating Summer School Records 
Prior to the first day of the program, the district will notify each school with student registration 
information.  The student’s home school will report each student's ELA FSA score and provide 
student portfolio records  from the 2019-20 school year to the school of attendance for 3rd Grade 
Summer Reading Camp.  Teachers will contact Summer Reading Camp Site principal if Portfolio 
Materials are needed.  
 
For students with medical needs, refer to the process outlined in the Student Health Care Section of 
the ESY Task Instructions, which can be found in the Extended School Year section of this manual.  
 
Closing Out Summer School Records 
The summer school teacher will complete the Summer Reading Camp Report Card to share with 
parents and to be sent to the home school to be included in the student’s record.  Any portfolios 
completed during Summer Reading Camp should be scored using the Portfolio Score Summary 
Sheet.  If the student meets all portfolio requirements, the Portfolio Attestation Form should be 
completed by the summer school teacher and the principal at the summer school site. Scored 
portfolios and Attestation Forms (if applicable) will be returned to the home school. Each 3rd Grade 
Reading Camp host school will send SAT-10 and Portfolio information to the student’s home school 
to be included in the Good Cause Promotion Report.  
 

2020 Summer Programs Manual 12 

Page 104 of 334

DRAFT



  

 
 
 
 
 

Instructional and Support Application & Hiring  
 

Instructional 
 

The following are the instructional qualifications for summer school: 
 
ARTICLE XIV 
 
PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS AND ASSIGNMENTS 
 
C.  All instructional employment in summer school shall be filled according to the following criteria: 
 

1.       All teachers who apply shall apply for summer school classroom positions which are  
open at centers affecting their school.  Requests to teach summer school shall be 
presented to the district Human Resources Division. 

 
2.       a. Only teachers under contract in the county for the year preceding or for the next 

year will be considered for summer school employment. 
 

b. No teacher receiving an unsatisfactory evaluation during the regular school year  
will be eligible for summer school employment. 

 
3. Assignments to such positions in each summer school center shall be made according  

to the following ranked criteria: 
 

 a. Proper certification and qualifications are held by the employee. 
 

b. Employee has taught one (1) year in the subject applied for within the past three  
(3) years or is assigned to teach the subject for the next school year. 
 

 c. Uninterrupted seniority in the district. 
 

4. During the first three days of summer school, the following ranked criteria shall be used  
should there be a need to reduce the number of teachers in a specific subject area 
within the school, or, for exceptional education teachers on a district-wide basis: 
 

2020 Summer Programs Manual 13 

Page 105 of 334

DRAFT



  

 a. Teachers who do not hold proper certification or qualifications. 
 

 b. Teachers who have not taught one (1) year in the subject within the past three 
(3)  

years or is not assigned to teach the subject for the next school year. 
 

 c. Teachers with least uninterrupted district seniority. 
 

5. Summer school teachers shall not be required to teach less than two (2) hours per day. 
 

Instructional applicants are required to submit the Instructional/Teacher Summer School 
Employment Application (HRD-2-4118) along with the Teaching Preference sheet. Support 
applicants are required to submit the Support ESE ESY School Year Employment Application 
(HRD-2-4122). All applications should be submitted to Michelle Bily, Human Resources. 
 
NOTES: 
 

● Positions are based on open enrollment.  Once positions are determined, the positions will be 
subject to minimum required enrollment. 

 
● Parents are able to select any site for Summer Reading Camp.  The feeders for all school sites 

will cover the entire district.  
 

● If a program has additional requirements based on state or federal policy, these requirements 
will be listed with the position posting.  

 
● If a teacher needs to be absent, Principals should work with their faculty and attempt to find a 

sub.  The absent teacher will not receive pay for the hours missed and the teacher who took 
their place can be paid. 

 
Support 

 
Placement of support personnel in summer school positions when allocated shall be made in the best 
interest of the student in accordance with the IEP, current job title, consideration of the mix of the 
exceptionalities in the summer school setting, employee’s familiarity with the specific group of 
students, ESE experience and training, and all else being equal, seniority.  The primary consideration 
shall be the goal of providing optimal staffing for students within the summer school center. 
 
 
 3rd Grade Budget and Finance 

 
 3rd Grade Reading Camp – Fund 100 Function 5100 Project 1439 
 

● 100-5100128 cost center -1439-0000-000-0 for teachers 
 

● 100-5100158 cost center -1439-0000-000-0 for assistants 
2020 Summer Programs Manual 14 

Page 106 of 334

DRAFT



  

 

 
 3rd Grade Reading Camp Forms 

 

Click this link to make an editable copy of the 
Summer Reading Camp Attendance Letter 

 

Summer Reading Camp Report Card  

Portfolio Score Summary Sheet  

Good Cause Portfolio Attestation Form  

 
 

   

6th Grade & Junior High Credit Recovery  
 

District Contact 
 

Michael Wingate 904-336-6918 michael.wingate@myoneclay.net 

 

Location Feeders Meals Cost 

Lake Asbury Junior High  
 

Green Cove Springs Junior High 
Lake Asbury Junior High 

Wilkinson Junior High 

Meals not 
provided 

$100 Technology Fee* 
 
 

*Students who receive 
free or reduced lunch and 
students with disabilities 

are free  

Lakeside Junior High 
 

Lakeside Junior High 
Orange Park Junior High 

Oakleaf Junior High 
 

Keystone Heights Jr./Sr.  Keystone Heights Jr./Sr. 

 

6th Grade & Junior High Credit Recovery Calendar 

Teachers Teacher Planning, 6/16/20 
● Planning at Assigned School, 8:00 a.m. - 10:00 a.m. 
● Software Training at Fleming Island High Media Center, 10:00 a.m. - 11:00 a.m. 

(If needed) 
Operating Dates, 6/17/20 - 7/8/20, 7:45 a.m. - 11:45 a.m. (Monday - Thursday) 

Last Day for Teachers, 7/8/20,  7:45 a.m. - 11:45 a.m. 

2020 Summer Programs Manual 15 

Page 107 of 334

DRAFT



  

Students  Operating Dates, 6/17/20 - 7/8/20, 8:00 a.m. - 11:30 a.m. (Monday-Thursday) 

Assistants 
if applicable 

Operating Dates, 6/17/20-7/8/20, 8:00 a.m. - 11:30 a.m. (Monday-Thursday) 

Important Dates No School on 7/2/20 
Summer EOCs 7/13/20-7/23/20. Check with your zoned school on testing dates. 

 
 
 
 
 

Student Registration 
 
Eligibility 
The secondary summer program is for 6th - 12th grade students who are seeking to recover two or 
less credits/courses for promotional purposes. Summer grade recovery or course retake will be 
provided using an online software program for 12 days in a blended learning setting, with instruction 
delivered virtually and face-to face. 
 
Each course recovered through the online software program requires 12 summer school days to 
recover, therefore, if two courses need to be recovered, one of these courses will need to be taken 
via virtual offerings outside of the summer school day.  It is possible that a student only needs a 
semester of a course.  Therefore, they would only need to attend for 6 days. If a student needs an 
elective to be promoted or to graduate, the school can approve Clay Virtual as an option to obtain a 
second credit/course or an elective.  
 
6th grade students who have failed one course must attend summer school.  Students in 6th grade 
needing to retake a subject will be assigned to one of the participating junior high schools. 
Elementary schools will provide parents with the Junior High summer school location via a parent 
letter (see link to a sample letter in the notification section below).  
 
Notification 
The district will identify eligible students by June 12th. Schools will contact students who qualify via 
a parent letter and phone call in order to ensure their attendance.  If the parent/guardian has a 
concern about whether or not their child has passed a particular class, the District encourages the 
parent/guardian to contact the school prior to the June 12th date.  Sample parent letters are 
provided for: 6th graders, and junior high students.  Please edit the fields indicated to reflect the 
correct information for your school site.  
 
Registration 

2020 Summer Programs Manual 16 

Page 108 of 334

DRAFT



  

Once eligible students are invited, parents will complete the online registration, via the link below. 
School sites will assist parents with online registration if needed.  If a parent does not have access to 
the internet, they can give verbal acknowledgement of attendance and the Data Secretary can enroll 
them.  
Students are expected to bring their own earbuds or headphones in order to participate in the 
Edgenuity program. 
Registration Link: www.oneclay.net/summer 
 

Curriculum & Instruction 

Time 8:00 a.m.  – 11:30 a.m. 

Curriculum Florida Standards 

Instructional 
Methodologies 

small group instruction, individualized teacher facilitation, and independent practice  

Materials  Edgenuity 

Assessment Screening: End of course grades 
Progress Monitoring: Online software program data and teacher-developed records 
Outcome Measure: End of course grades for summer school course work 

 

Student Policies 
 
Attendance 
Students are required to attend all days assigned to a course. Two tardies (10 minutes late is 
considered a tardy) will be considered an absence and, therefore, removed from the course. 
 
Cell phones 
Communication devices will not be allowed during the school hours. 
 
Edgenuity 
Students will only work on their Curriculum software accounts during school hours. Students will 
provide their own earbuds for working in the Edgenuity software program.  
 
Student Code of Conduct 
The “Student Code of Conduct” policies are to be followed during all summer school offerings. 
 
Student Records 

 
Initiating Summer School Records 

2020 Summer Programs Manual 17 

Page 109 of 334

DRAFT



  

Prior to the first day of the program, the district will notify each school with student registration 
information.  The student’s home school will report grades from the 2018-19 school year to the school 
of attendance for summer grade recovery.  
 
For students with medical needs, refer to the process outlined in the Student Health Care Section of 
the ESY Task Instructions, which can be found in the Extended School Year section of this manual.  
 
Closing Out Summer School Records 
The summer school teacher will report the student’s end-of-course grades for summer school 
coursework, which will be returned to each student’s home school.  
 

Teacher Application & Hiring  
 

Instructional 
The following are the instructional qualifications for summer school: 
ARTICLE XIV 
PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS AND ASSIGNMENTS 
 
C.  All instructional employment in summer school shall be filled according to the following criteria: 
 

1.       All teachers who apply shall apply for summer school classroom positions which are  
open at centers affecting their school.  Requests to teach summer school shall be 
presented to the district Human Resources Division. 

 
2.       a. Only teachers under contract in the county for the year preceding or for the next 

year will be considered for summer school employment. 
 

b. No teacher receiving an unsatisfactory evaluation during the regular school year  
will be eligible for summer school employment. 

 
3. Assignments to such positions in each summer school center shall be made according  

to the following ranked criteria: 
 

 a. Proper certification and qualifications are held by the employee. 
 

b. Employee has taught one (1) year in the subject applied for within the past three  
(3) years or is assigned to teach the subject for the next school year. 
 

 c. Uninterrupted seniority in the district. 
 

4. During the first three days of summer school, the following ranked criteria shall be used  

2020 Summer Programs Manual 18 

Page 110 of 334

DRAFT



  

should there be a need to reduce the number of teachers in a specific subject area 
within the school, or, for exceptional education teachers on a district-wide basis: 
 

 a. Teachers who do not hold proper certification or qualifications. 
 

 b. Teachers who have not taught one (1) year in the subject within the past three 
(3)  

years or is not assigned to teach the subject for the next school year. 
 

 c. Teachers with least uninterrupted district seniority. 
 

5. Summer school teachers shall not be required to teach less than two (2) hours per day. 
 

Instructional applicants are required to submit the Instructional/Teacher Summer School 
Employment Application (HRD-2-4118) along with the Teaching Preference sheet . Support 
applicants are required to submit the Support ESE ESY School Year Employment Application 
(HRD-2-4122). All applications should be submitted to Michelle Bily, Human Resources. 
 
NOTES: 

● Positions are based on open enrollment.  Once positions are determined, the positions will be 
subject to minimum required enrollment. 

 
● Students must attend the junior high site their home school feeds to. 

o Students from Green Cove Springs Junior High, Wilkinson Junior High and Lake Asbury 
Junior High will attend at Lake Asbury Junior High 

 
o Students from Lakeside Junior High, Oakleaf Junior High, and Orange Park Junior High 

will attend at Orange Park Junior High 
 

o Students from Keystone Heights Jr./Sr. will attend at their home school 
 

● If a program has additional requirements based on state or federal policy, these requirements 
will be listed with the position posting  

 
● If a teacher needs to be absent, Principals should work with their faculty and attempt to find a 

sub.  The absent teacher will not receive pay for the hours missed and the teacher who took 
their place can be paid. 

 
 6th Grade & Junior Budget and Finance 

 
6th Grade & Junior High Credit Recovery- Project 1139 and Fund 100 
 

● 100-5100128 cost center-1139-0000-000-0 for teachers 
 

2020 Summer Programs Manual 19 

Page 111 of 334

DRAFT



  

● 100-5100158 cost center-1139-0000-000-0 for assistants 
 
 
 6th Grade & Junior High Credit Recovery Forms 

 
Click this link to make an editable copy of the 
6th Grade Course Retake Letter 

 

Click this link to make an editable copy of the 
Junior High Course Retake Letter 

 

 
 

  

2020 Summer Programs Manual 20 

Page 112 of 334

DRAFT



  

 High School Credit Recovery  
 

District Contact 
 

Michael Wingate 904-336-6918 michael.wingate@myoneclay.net 

 

Location Feeders Meals Cost 

Clay High  
  Fleming Island High. 

Keystone Heights Jr./Sr.  
Middleburg High 

 Oakleaf High  
 Orange Park High 
 Ridgeview High  

Students will 
report to their 
zoned school. 

Meals not provided $100 Technology Fee* 
 
 

**Students who receive 
free or reduced lunch and 
students with disabilities 

are free  

 

High School Credit Recovery Calendar 

Teachers Teacher Planning, 6/16/20 
● Curriculum Software Training at Fleming Island High Media Center,  8:00 a.m. - 

10:00 a.m.  
● Planning at Assigned School, 10:00 a.m. - 11:00 a.m.  

Operating Dates, 6/17/20 - 7/8/20, 7:45 a.m. - 11:45 a.m. (Monday-Thursday) 

Last Day for Teachers, 7/8/20,  7:45 a.m. - 11:45 a.m. 

Students  Operating Dates, 6/17/20 - 7/8/20, 8:00 a.m. - 11:30 a.m. (Monday-Thursday) 

Assistants 
if applicable 

Operating Dates, 6/17/20 - 7/8/20, 8:00 a.m. - 11:30 a.m. (Monday-Thursday) 

Important Dates No School on 7/2/20 
Summer EOCs 7/13/20 - 7/23/20. Check with your zoned school on their testing 
schedule. 

 

Student Registration 
 
Eligibility 
The secondary summer program is for 6th-12th grade students who are seeking to recover two or 
less credits/courses for promotional purposes. Summer grade recovery or course retake will be 
provided using an online software program for 12 days in a blended learning setting, with instruction 
delivered virtually and face-to face. 
 

2020 Summer Programs Manual 21 

Page 113 of 334

DRAFT



  

Each course recovered through the online software program requires 12 summer school days to 
recover, therefore, if two courses need to be recovered, one of these courses will need to be taken 
via virtual offerings outside of the summer school day.  It is possible that a student may only need a 
semester of a course.  Therefore, they would only need to attend for 6 days. If a student needs an 
elective to be promoted or to graduate, the school can approve Clay Virtual as an option to obtain a 
second credit/course or an elective.  
 
Notification 
The district will identify eligible students by June 8th. Schools will contact students who qualify via a 
parent letter and phone call in order to ensure their attendance.  Sample parent letters are provided 
for high school students.  Please edit the fields indicated to reflect the correct information for your 
school site.  
 
Registration 
Once eligible students are invited, parents will complete the online registration, via the link below. 
School sites will assist parents with online registration if needed.  If a parent does not have access to 
the internet, they can give verbal acknowledgement of attendance and the Data Secretary can enroll 
them.  
 
Students are expected to bring their own earbuds or headphones in order to participate in the 
Edgenuity program. 
 
Registration Link: www.oneclay.net/summer  
 
 

Curriculum & Instruction 

Time 8:00 a.m.  – 11:30 a.m. 

Curriculum Florida Standards 

Instructional 
Methodologies 

small group instruction, individualized teacher facilitation, and independent practice  

Materials  Online Software Program 

Assessment Screening: End of course grades 
Progress Monitoring: Curriculum software data and teacher-developed records 
Outcome Measure: End of course grades for summer school course work 

 

 

 

2020 Summer Programs Manual 22 

Page 114 of 334

DRAFT



  

Student Policies 
 
Course Credit Options 
Students needing ½ credit (semester) in order to receive a final passing grade may attend the 
appropriate 6-day period. If an additional ½ credit is needed the student will enroll in the appropriate 
course. Students needing a full credit will attend the entire 12-day course.  There is only a one-time 
fee charged to the student. 
 
Attendance 
Students are required to attend all days assigned to a course.  Twelve (12) days for a full credit and 
six (6) days for the completion of a ½ credit.  Two tardies (10 minutes late is considered a tardy) will 
be considered an absence and, therefore, removed from the course. 
 
Cell phones 
Communication devices will not be allowed during the school hours. 
 
Online Software Program 
Students will only work on their curriculum software accounts during school hours. Students will 
provide their own earbuds for working in the software.  
 
Student Code of Conduct 
The “Student Code of Conduct” policies are to be followed during all summer school offerings. 
 

Student Records 
 
Initiating Summer School Records 
Prior to the first day of the program, the district will notify each school with student registration 
information. The teacher will be provided with student grades from the 2018-19 school year for each 
student.  
 
For students with medical needs, refer to the process outlined in the Student Health Care Section of 
the ESY Task Instructions, which can be found in the Extended School Year section of this manual.  
 
Closing Out Summer School Records 
The summer school teacher will report the end of course grades for summer school coursework, 
which will be reflected in the student’s record. 
 
 
 

2020 Summer Programs Manual 23 

Page 115 of 334

DRAFT



  

Teacher Application & Hiring  
 

Instructional 
 

The following are the instructional qualifications for summer school: 
 
ARTICLE XIV 
 
PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS AND ASSIGNMENTS 
 
C.  All instructional employment in summer school shall be filled according to the following criteria: 
 

1.       All teachers who apply shall apply for summer school classroom positions which are  
open at centers affecting their school.  Requests to teach summer school shall be 
presented to the district Human Resources Division. 

 
2.       a. Only teachers under contract in the county for the year preceding or for the next 

year will be considered for summer school employment. 
 

b. No teacher receiving an unsatisfactory evaluation during the regular school year  
will be eligible for summer school employment. 

 
3. Assignments to such positions in each summer school center shall be made according  

to the following ranked criteria: 
 

 a. Proper certification and qualifications are held by the employee. 
 

b. Employee has taught one (1) year in the subject applied for within the past three  
(3) years or is assigned to teach the subject for the next school year. 
 

 c. Uninterrupted seniority in the district. 
 

4. During the first three days of summer school, the following ranked criteria shall be used  
should there be a need to reduce the number of teachers in a specific subject area 
within the school, or, for exceptional education teachers on a district-wide basis: 
 

 a. Teachers who do not hold proper certification or qualifications. 
 

 b. Teachers who have not taught one (1) year in the subject within the past three 
(3)  

years or is not assigned to teach the subject for the next school year. 

2020 Summer Programs Manual 24 

Page 116 of 334

DRAFT



  

 
 c. Teachers with least uninterrupted district seniority. 
 

5. Summer school teachers shall not be required to teach less than two (2) hours per day. 
 

Instructional applicants are required to submit the Instructional/Teacher Summer School 
Employment Application (HRD-2-4118) along with the Teaching Preference sheet. Support 
applicants are required to submit the Support ESE ESY School Year Employment Application 
(HRD-2-4122). All applications should be submitted to Michelle Bily, Human Resources. 
 
NOTES: 

● Positions are based on open enrollment.  Once positions are determined, the positions will be 
subject to minimum required enrollment. 

 
● There are no feeder schools for high school credit recovery. 

 
● If a program has additional requirements based on state or federal policy, these requirements 

will be listed with the position posting.  
 

● If a teacher needs to be absent, Principals should work with their faculty and attempt to find a 
sub.  The absent teacher will not receive pay for the hours missed and the teacher who took 
their place can be paid. 

 
 High School Budget and Finance 

 
High School – Credit Recovery - Project 1139 and Fund 100 
 

● 100-5100128 cost center-1139-0000-000-0 for teachers 
 

● 100-5100158 cost center-1139-0000-000-0 for assistants 
 

 
 High School Credit Recovery  Forms 
 

Click this link to make an editable copy of the 
High School Credit Recovery Letter 

 

 
 

 
 

2020 Summer Programs Manual 25 

Page 117 of 334

DRAFT



  

 
 

Algebra 1 Credit Recovery for ESE ONLY 
 

District Contact 
 

Renee’ Kemp 904-336-6877 jacqueline.kemp@myoneclay.net 

 

Location Feeders Meals Cost 

Clay High  
  Fleming Island High. 

Keystone Heights Jr./Sr.  
Middleburg High 

 Oakleaf High  
 Orange Park High 
 Ridgeview High  

Students will report to their 
zoned school. 

Meals not provided             Free 

 

Algebra 1 Credit Recovery for ESE Only 

Teachers Teacher planning in the Fleming Island High School Media Center, 6/16, 8:00 a.m. - 
9:30 a.m., Planning in classroom 9:30 - 11:00 a.m. 
Operating Dates, 6/16/2020 - 7/15/2020, 7:45 a.m.-11:45 a.m. (Monday - Thursday) 

Students  Operating Dates, 6/17/2020 - 7/15/2020, 8:00 a.m. - 11:30 a.m. (Monday - Thursday) 

Assistants 
if applicable 

Operating Dates, 6/17/2020 - 7/15/2020, 8:00 a.m. - 11:30a.m. (Monday - Thursday) 

Important Dates No School on 7/2/20 
Summer EOCs 7/13/2020 - 7/24/2020 

 

Student Registration 
 
Eligibility 
ESE Only Algebra 1 Credit Recovery is available for students with disabilities who are seeking to 
recover Algebra 1 credit and/or did not successfully pass the Algebra 1 End-of-Course (EOC) 
Assessment. 
 
Notification 

2020 Summer Programs Manual 26 

Page 118 of 334

DRAFT



  

The IEP team, including the parent, determines the need for extended school year services.  Once it 
is determined that a student requires Algebra 1 Credit Recovery for ESE ONLY, the details of the 
program will be provided to the parent via the ESE teacher.  
 
Registration 
Registration will be completed in collaboration with IEP teams at school sites.  
  
Students are expected to bring their own earbuds or headphones in order to participate in the 
Edgenuity program. 
 
 

Curriculum & Instruction 

Time 8:00 a.m.-11:30 a.m. 

Curriculum Florida Standards 

Instructional 
Methodologies 

whole class, small group, independent practice 

Materials  Textbooks & standards-based materials 

Assessment Screening: Most recent Algebra 1 EOC data 
Progress Monitoring: Formative Assessment data and teacher-developed records 
Outcome Measure: Algebra 1 EOC Retake data 

 

Student Policies 
 
Attendance 
Students are encouraged to attend all days assigned to a course. Two tardies (10 minutes late is 
considered a tardy) will be considered an absence.  
 
Cell phones 
Communication devices will not be allowed during the school hours. 
 
Student Code of Conduct 
The “Student Code of Conduct” policies are to be followed during all summer school offerings. 
 

Student Records 
 
Initiating Summer School Records 

2020 Summer Programs Manual 27 

Page 119 of 334

DRAFT



  

The teacher will be notified of student needs based on each student’s IEP, Algebra 1 EOC scores, 
and student grades from the 2019-2020 school year.  
 
For students with medical needs, refer to the process outlined in the Student Health Care Section of 
the ESY Task Instructions, which can be found in the Extended School Year section of this manual.  
Closing Out Summer School Records 
The Support Facilitator will update the student’s goals and objectives in the IEP, and the summer 
school teacher will report end of course grades for summer school course work, which will be 
reflected in the student’s record. 
 

Teacher and Assistant Application & Hiring  
 

Instructional 
The following are the instructional qualifications for summer school: 
 
ARTICLE XIV 
PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS AND ASSIGNMENTS 
C.  All instructional employment in summer school shall be filled according to the following criteria: 
 

1.       All teachers who apply shall apply for summer school classroom positions which are  
open at centers affecting their school.  Requests to teach summer school shall be 
presented to the district Human Resources Division. 

 
2.       a. Only teachers under contract in the county for the year preceding or for the next 

year will be considered for summer school employment. 
 

b. No teacher receiving an unsatisfactory evaluation during the regular school year  
will be eligible for summer school employment. 

 
3. Assignments to such positions in each summer school center shall be made according  

to the following ranked criteria: 
 

 a. Proper certification and qualifications are held by the employee. 
 

b. Employee has taught one (1) year in the subject applied for within the past three  
(3) years or is assigned to teach the subject for the next school year. 
 

 c. Uninterrupted seniority in the district. 
 

4. During the first three days of summer school, the following ranked criteria shall be used  
should there be a need to reduce the number of teachers in a specific subject area 

2020 Summer Programs Manual 28 

Page 120 of 334

DRAFT



  

within the school, or, for exceptional education teachers on a district-wide basis: 
 

 a. Teachers who do not hold proper certification or qualifications. 
 

 b. Teachers who have not taught one (1) year in the subject within the past three 
(3)  

years or is not assigned to teach the subject for the next school year. 
 

 c. Teachers with least uninterrupted district seniority. 
 

5. Summer school teachers shall not be required to teach less than two (2) hours per day. 
 
Instructional applicants are required to submit the Instructional/Teacher Summer School 
Employment Application (HRD-2-4118) along with the Teaching Preference sheet. Support 
applicants are required to submit the Support ESE ESY School Year Employment Application 
(HRD-2-4122). All applications should be submitted to Michelle Bily, Human Resources. 
 
NOTES: 

● Positions are based on open enrollment.  Once positions are determined, the positions will be 
subject to minimum required enrollment. 

 
● There are no feeder schools for Algebra I Credit Recovery for students in ESE programs. 

 
● If a program has additional requirements based on state or federal policy, these requirements 

will be listed with the position posting.  
 

● If a teacher needs to be absent, Principals should work with their faculty and attempt to find a 
sub.  The absent teacher will not receive pay for the hours missed and the teacher who took 
their place can be paid. 

Support 
 
Placement of support personnel in summer school positions when allocated shall be made in the best 
interest of the student in accordance with the IEP, current job title, consideration of the mix of the 
exceptionalities in the summer school setting, employee’s familiarity with the specific group of 
students, ESE experience and training, and all else being equal, seniority.  The primary consideration 
shall be the goal of providing optimal staffing for students within the summer school center. 
 
 Alg 1 ESE Budget and Finance 

 
High School – Algebra I Credit Recovery – for ESE ONLY - Project 1139 and Fund 100 
 

● 100-5200128 cost center-1139-0000-000-0 for teachers 
 

● 100-5200158 cost center-1139-0000-000-0 for assistants 
 

2020 Summer Programs Manual 29 

Page 121 of 334

DRAFT



  

 

 Algebra 1 Credit Recovery for ESE ONLY Forms 
 
Algebra 1 Credit Recovery for ESE Only Task Instructions  

 

 
Algebra 1 Boot Camp 

 

District Contact 
 

Michael Wingate 904-336-6918 michael.wingate@myoneclay.net 
 

Location Feeders Meals Cost 

Clay High  
  Fleming Island High. 

Keystone Heights Jr./Sr.  
Middleburg High 

 Oakleaf High  
 Orange Park High 
 Ridgeview High  

Students will report to 
their zoned school. 

Meals not provided $50 Fee* 
 

*Students who receive 
free or reduced lunch and 
students with disabilities 

are free  

 

Algebra 1 Boot Camp Calendar 

Teachers Teacher Planning at assigned school, 7/9/20; 8:30-11:30.  
Operating Dates, 7/13/20 - 7/16/20, 7:45 a.m. - 11:15 a.m. 

Students  Operating Dates,  7/13/20 - 7/16/20, 8:00 a.m. - 11:00 a.m. 

Assistants 
if applicable 

Operating Dates,  7/13/20 - 7/16/20, 8:00 a.m. - 11:00 a.m. 

Important Dates Summer EOCs for Algebra 1 will be the week of 7/20-7/23.  Check with your zoned 
school for Algebra 1 EOC 

 

Student Registration 
 
Eligibility  
Students who did not successfully pass the Algebra 1 End-of-Course (EOC) Assessment will have 
the opportunity to attend Algebra 1 Boot Camp. In addition, students who wish to retake the EOC in 
order to achieve a higher score to improve their final grade (only a “D” or “F”) may do so.  

2020 Summer Programs Manual 30 

Page 122 of 334

DRAFT



  

 
Notification 
Schools will contact all students who qualify via a parent letter and phone call.  Sample parent 
letters are provided for junior high and  high school students. 
 
Registration 
Once eligible students are invited, parents will complete the online registration, via the link below.               
School sites will assist parents with online registration if needed. If a parent does not have access to                  
the internet, they can give verbal acknowledgement of attendance and the Data Secretary can enroll               
them.  Registration Link: https://goo.gl/forms/B8IptEg1Z7OtEa5I2 
 
Students are expected to bring their own earbuds or headphones in order to participate in the 
Edgenuity program. 
 

Curriculum & Instruction 

Time 8:00 a.m. - 11:00 a.m. 

Curriculum Florida Standards 

Instructional 
Methodologies 

whole class, small group, independent practice 

Materials  Textbooks & standards-based materials 

Assessment Screening: Most recent Algebra 1 EOC data 
Progress Monitoring: Formative Assessment data and teacher-developed records 
Outcome Measure: Algebra 1 EOC Retake data 

 

Student Policies 
 
Attendance 
Students are required to attend all days assigned to a course.  Two tardies (10 minutes late is 
considered a tardy) will be considered an absence and, therefore, removed from the course. 
 
Cell phones 
Communication devices will not be allowed during the school hours. 
 
Student Code of Conduct 
The “Student Code of Conduct” policies are to be followed during all summer school offerings. 
 
Student Records 

2020 Summer Programs Manual 31 

Page 123 of 334

DRAFT



  

 
Initiating Summer School Records 
Prior to the first day of the program, the district will notify each school with student registration 
information. The teacher will be provided with each student’s Algebra 1 EOC scores and student 
grades from the 2019-20 school year.  
 
For students with medical needs, refer to the Student Health Care Section of the ESY Task 
Instructions, which can be found in the Extended School Year section of this manual.  
 
Closing Out Summer School Records 
The summer school teacher will report the end of course grades for summer school coursework, 
which will be reflected in the student’s record. 
 
Teacher Application & Hiring  

 
Instructional 

 
The following are the instructional qualifications for summer school: 
 
ARTICLE XIV 
 
PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS AND ASSIGNMENTS 
 
C.  All instructional employment in summer school shall be filled according to the following criteria: 
 

1.       All teachers who apply shall apply for summer school classroom positions which are  
open at centers affecting their school.  Requests to teach summer school shall be 
presented to the district Human Resources Division. 

 
2.       a. Only teachers under contract in the county for the year preceding or for the next 

year will be considered for summer school employment. 
 

b. No teacher receiving an unsatisfactory evaluation during the regular school year  
will be eligible for summer school employment. 

 
3. Assignments to such positions in each summer school center shall be made according  

to the following ranked criteria: 
 

 a. Proper certification and qualifications are held by the employee. 
 

b. Employee has taught one (1) year in the subject applied for within the past three  

2020 Summer Programs Manual 32 

Page 124 of 334

DRAFT



  

(3) years or is assigned to teach the subject for the next school year. 
 

 c. Uninterrupted seniority in the district. 
 

4. During the first three days of summer school, the following ranked criteria shall be used  
should there be a need to reduce the number of teachers in a specific subject area 
within the school, or, for exceptional education teachers on a district-wide basis: 
 

 a. Teachers who do not hold proper certification or qualifications. 
 

 b. Teachers who have not taught one (1) year in the subject within the past three 
(3)  

years or is not assigned to teach the subject for the next school year. 
 

 c. Teachers with least uninterrupted district seniority. 
 

5. Summer school teachers shall not be required to teach less than two (2) hours per day. 
 

Instructional applicants are required to submit the Instructional/Teacher Summer School 
Employment Application (HRD-2-4118) along with the Teaching Preference sheet. Support 
applicants are required to submit the Support ESE ESY School Year Employment Application 
(HRD-2-4122). All applications should be submitted to Michelle Bily, Human Resources. 
 
NOTES: 

● Positions are based on open enrollment.  Once positions are determined, the positions will be 
subject to minimum required enrollment. 

 
● There are no feeder schools for Algebra I Boot Camp. 

 
● If a program has additional requirements based on state or federal policy, these requirements 

will be listed with the position posting.  
 

● If a teacher needs to be absent, Principals should work with their faculty and attempt to find a 
sub.  The absent teacher will not receive pay for the hours missed and the teacher who took 
their place can be paid. 

 
 
 
 Alg 1 Boot Camp Budget and Finance 

 
High School – Algebra I Boot Camp Project 1139 and Fund 100 
 

● 100-5100128 cost center-1139-0000-000-0 for teachers 
 

● 100-5100158 cost center-1139-0000-000-0 for assistants 
2020 Summer Programs Manual 33 

Page 125 of 334

DRAFT



  

 

 
 Algebra 1 Boot Camp Forms 

 

Junior High Algebra 1 Boot Camp Letter  

High School Algebra 1 Boot Camp Letter 
 
 

 

 

11th- 12th Grade ESOL Summer Reading Program 
 

District Contact 
 

Renee Hatcher 904-336-6962 renee.hatcher@myoneclay.net 
 

Location Feeders Meals Cost 

Orange Park High School 
Oakleaf High School 

Entire school district Meals not provided Free 

 

11th - 12th Grade ESOL Summer Reading Program 

Teachers Teacher Planning at OPHS and OLHS, 6/11/2020, 7:30 a.m. - 12:00 p.m. 
Operating Dates, 6/11/2020 - 6/25/2020, 7:30 a.m. - 12:00 p.m. (Monday - Thursday) 

Students  Operating Dates, 6/15/2020 - 6/25/2020, 8:00 a.m. - 12:00 p.m. 

Assistants Operating Dates, 6/15/2020 - 6/25/2020, 8:00 a.m. - 12:00 p.m. 

Important Dates  
 

Student Registration 
 
Eligibility 
The ESOL Summer Reading Program is a language program that offers currently enrolled ESOL 
students entering 11th or 12th grade, or exiting 12th graders who will earn a certificate of completion in 
2020, the opportunity to enhance their English Language proficiency in an effort to pass the required 
assessments to earn a high school diploma. English Language Learners (ELLs) who scored a level 1 
or 2 on the ELA FSA, and have not passed the ACT or SAT will be eligible to attend.  
 

Notification 

2020 Summer Programs Manual 34 

Page 126 of 334

DRAFT



  

Schools will provide eligible students with the informational flyer to apply for the program.  Guidance 
Counselors will ensure that eligible ELL students receive the information. Should a parent need 
translation assistance, they can contact the district ESOL office, or Google Translate can be used as 
a tool for face-to-face translation of words and phrases, however this tool does not accurately 
translate written English into another written language.  
 

 
 
Registration 
Once eligible students are invited, parents will complete the registration form online via the link 
provided in the flyer. School sites will assist parents with online registration if needed.  If a parent 
does not have access to the internet, they can give verbal acknowledgement of attendance and the 
Data Secretary can enroll them.  
 
Students are expected to bring their own earbuds or headphones in order to participate in the 
Edgenuity program. 
 
Registration Link: https://goo.gl/forms/7VgDIQujzROZBb8s2 
 

Curriculum & Instruction 

Time 8:00 a.m. - 12:00 p.m. 

Curriculum Florida Standards 

Instructional 
Methodologies 

whole class, small group, and independent practice with a focus on academic 
vocabulary, rigorous text, technical writing, and testing strategies 

Materials  ACT preparation materials 

Assessment Screening: Most recent ELA FSA data, ACT data, or SAT data 
Progress Monitoring: Formative assessments and teacher-developed records 
Outcome Measure: ELA FSA Retake data, ACT data, or SAT data 

 

Student Policies 
 
Attendance 
Students are only allowed to miss one day of the course, and have no more than two tardies (10 
minutes late is considered a tardy). A student who misses more than one day and has more than two 
tardies will be removed from the program.  
 
Cell phones 
Communication devices will not be allowed during the school hours. 

2020 Summer Programs Manual 35 

Page 127 of 334

DRAFT



  

 
Student Code of Conduct 
The “Student Code of Conduct” policies are to be followed during all summer school offerings. 
 

Student Records 
 
Initiating Summer School Records 
Prior to the first day of the program, the district will notify each school with student registration 
information. The teacher will be provided with each student’s most recent FSA ELA, ACT and/or SAT 
scores and student grades from the 2017 - 18 school year.  
 
For students with medical needs, refer to the process outlined in the Student Health Care Section of 
the ESY Task Instructions, which can be found in the Extended School Year section of this manual.  
 
Closing Out Summer School Records 
The summer school teacher will report the end of course grades for summer school coursework, 
which will be reflected in the student’s record. 
 
Teacher Application & Hiring  

 
Instructional 

 
The following are the instructional qualifications for summer school: 
 
ARTICLE XIV 
 
PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS AND ASSIGNMENTS 
 
C.  All instructional employment in summer school shall be filled according to the following criteria: 
 

1.       All teachers who apply shall apply for summer school classroom positions which are  
open at centers affecting their school.  Requests to teach summer school shall be 
presented to the district Human Resources Division. 

 
2.       a. Only teachers under contract in the county for the year preceding or for the next 

year will be considered for summer school employment. 
 

b. No teacher receiving an unsatisfactory evaluation during the regular school year  
will be eligible for summer school employment. 

2020 Summer Programs Manual 36 

Page 128 of 334

DRAFT



  

 
3. Assignments to such positions in each summer school center shall be made according  

to the following ranked criteria: 
 

 a. Proper certification and qualifications are held by the employee. 
 

b. Employee has taught one (1) year in the subject applied for within the past three  
(3) years or is assigned to teach the subject for the next school year. 
 

 c. Uninterrupted seniority in the district. 
 

4. During the first three days of summer school, the following ranked criteria shall be used  
should there be a need to reduce the number of teachers in a specific subject area 
within the school, or, for exceptional education teachers on a district-wide basis: 
 

 a. Teachers who do not hold proper certification or qualifications. 
 

 b. Teachers who have not taught one (1) year in the subject within the past three 
(3)  

years or is not assigned to teach the subject for the next school year. 
 

 c. Teachers with least uninterrupted district seniority. 
 

5. Summer school teachers shall not be required to teach less than two (2) hours per day. 
 

Instructional applicants are required to submit the Instructional/Teacher Summer School 
Employment Application (HRD-2-4118) along with the Teaching Preference sheet. Support 
applicants are required to submit the Support ESE ESY School Year Employment Application 
(HRD-2-4122). All applications should be submitted to Michelle Bily, Human Resources. 
 

 
NOTES: 

● Positions are based on open enrollment.  Once positions are determined, the positions will be 
subject to minimum required enrollment. 

 
● The feeders for ESOL Summer Reading will cover the entire district.  

 
● If a program has additional requirements based on state or federal policy, these requirements 

will be listed with the position posting.  
 

● If a teacher needs to be absent, Principals should work with their faculty and attempt to find a 
sub.  The absent teacher will not receive pay for the hours missed and the teacher who took 
their place can be paid. 

 

2020 Summer Programs Manual 37 

Page 129 of 334

DRAFT



  

Support 
 

Placement of support personnel in summer school positions when allocated shall be made in the best 
interest of the student in accordance with the IEP, current job title, consideration of the mix of the 
exceptionalities in the summer school setting, employee’s familiarity with the specific group of 
students, ESE experience and training, and all else being equal, seniority.  The primary consideration 
shall be the goal of providing optimal staffing for students within the summer school center. 
 
 ESOL Budget and Finance 

 
11th-12th ESOL Summer Reading - Federal Grant 4030 Year 9 Fund 420  
 

● 420-5100128-0252-0000-4030-000-9 for teachers 
 

● 420-5100158-0252-0000-4030-000-9 for assistants 
 
 11th- 12th Grade ESOL Summer Reading Program Forms 

 
ESOL Informational Flyer (English) 
ESOL Informational Flyer (Spanish) 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2020 Summer Programs Manual 38 

Page 130 of 334

DRAFT



  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ESE Extended School Year 
 

District Contact 
 

Renee’ Kemp 904-336-6877 jacqueline.kemp@myoneclay.net 

 

Locations* Feeders Meals Cost 

 Keystone Heights Elem. 
Middleburg High  
Ridgeview High  

Entire school district Meals not provided Free 

 

ESE Extended School Year Calendar* 

Teachers 
& Nurses 

● Planning Day, 6/11/2020, 7:30 a.m. - 12:30 p.m. 
● Ridgeview High Operating Dates, 6/15/2020 - 7/15/2020, Monday/Wednesday, 7:30 

a.m. - 12:00 p.m. (Does Not Include Lunch) 
● Keystone Heights Elem & Middleburg High Operating Dates, 6/16/2020 - 7/16/2020, 

Tuesday/Thursday, 7:30 a.m. - 12:00 p.m. (Does Not Include Lunch) 

Students  ● Ridgeview High Operating Dates, 6/15/2020 - 7/15/2020, Monday/Wednesday, 7:50 
a.m. - 11:50 a.m. (includes a 15 minute break) 

● Keystone Heights Elem & Middleburg High  Operating Dates, 6/16/2020 - 7/16/2020, 
Tuesday/Thursday, 7:50 a.m. - 11:50 a.m. (includes a 15 minute break) 

Assistants ● Ridgeview High Operating Dates, 6/15/2020 - 7/15/2020, Monday/Wednesday, 7:30 
a.m. - 12:00 p.m. (Does not include Lunch) 

● Keystone Heights Elem & Middleburg High Operating Dates, 6/16/2020 - 7/16/2020, 
Tuesday/Thursday, 7:30 a.m. - 12:00 p.m. (includes a 15 minute break) 

Important 
Dates 

● No School 6/29/2020 -  7/2/2020 

2020 Summer Programs Manual 39 

Page 131 of 334

DRAFT



  

*The ESY calendar is a general framework for services; The IEP team makes the decision regarding ESY 
services necessary for the provision of FAPE.  
 

Student Registration 
 
Extended school year services are available to provide a Free Appropriate Public Education (FAPE) 
for students with disabilities and must be considered by the IEP team as part of the provision of a free 
appropriate public education. The IEP team determines the need for ESY services. It is important that 
IEP teams consider a variety of criteria or factors when determining whether ESY services are 
necessary in order to ensure the provision of FAPE.  The necessity for ESY services and/or the 
duration of those services cannot be limited based on the type or the degree of disability.  ESY 
services must be addressed at least annually for each student with a disability. ESY is NOT any of 
the following: summer school, child care, respite care, intended to maximize educational opportunity 
or potential growth, a longer school day, one-size-fits-all, or provided based on specific areas of 
disability, level of service, or type of classroom placement.  
  
Criteria that the IEP team can use to determine whether a student requires ESY services may include 
but not be limited to: 

● Regression/Recoupment - Will the student regress substantially in a critical life skill related to 
his or her IEP goals if ESY services are not provided? 

● Critical Point of Instruction - Is the student at a crucial stage in mastering a critical life skill, 
when a lapse in services would substantially harm the child’s chances of learning that skill? 

● Nature/Severity of Disability - Is the nature or severity of the student’s disability such that the 
student will not receive a reasonable level of benefit from his or her educational program 
during the regular school year if ESY services are not provided?  

● Special Circumstances (e.g., transition from school to work) - Are there extenuating 
circumstances that make it unlikely that the student will receive FAPE without ESY services? 

  
If a student is determined to need ESY, the IEP team must also consider the type of services needed. 
Some options for services may include take-home instructional materials; itinerant teacher services, 
tutorials; services contracted through community or outside agencies; consultation. 
 
Notification  
The IEP team, including the parent, determines the need for extended school year services.  Once it 
is determined that a student requires extended school year services, the details of the program will be 
provided to the parent via the ESE teacher. ESE teachers will refer to the ESY Task Instructions to 
provide notification and register students for ESY Services.  The ESY Task Instructions and ESY 
Calendar and Framework for services can be located in the ESY Forms section of this manual.  
 
Registration 
Registration will be completed in collaboration with IEP teams at school sites.  

2020 Summer Programs Manual 40 

Page 132 of 334

DRAFT



  

 
Location 
Students who require school-based ESY programs will be served at sites based on their needs. 
Please refer to the ESY summer calendar for a general framework of services and ESY sites. 
Furniture, equipment, and materials will be moved to ESY sites as necessary to accommodate the 
needs of students who will be attending.  
 
 
 
 

Student Policies 
 
Attendance 
Students are encouraged to attend each day of the program.  
 
Cell phones 
Communication devices will not be allowed during the school hours. 
 
Student Code of Conduct 
The “Student Code of Conduct” policies are to be followed during all summer school offerings. 
 

Student Records 
 
Initiating Summer School Records 
The teacher will be notified of student needs based on each student’s IEP. 
 
For students with medical needs, refer to the process outlined in the Student Health Care Section of 
the ESY Task Instructions, which can be found in the Extended School Year section of this manual.  
 
Closing Out Summer School Records 
The ESE Teacher will update the student’s goals and objectives on the IEP, and complete the 
Summary of Progress document, which can be found in the the ESY Task Instructions.  
 
Teacher Application & Hiring  

 
Instructional 

 
The following are the instructional qualifications for summer school: 
 

2020 Summer Programs Manual 41 

Page 133 of 334

DRAFT



  

ARTICLE XIV 
 
PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS AND ASSIGNMENTS 
 
C.  All instructional employment in summer school shall be filled according to the following criteria: 
 

1.       All teachers who apply shall apply for summer school classroom positions which are  
open at centers affecting their school.  Requests to teach summer school shall be 
presented to the district Human Resources Division. 

 
2.       a. Only teachers under contract in the county for the year preceding or for the next 

year will be considered for summer school employment. 
 

b. No teacher receiving an unsatisfactory evaluation during the regular school year  
will be eligible for summer school employment. 

 
3. Assignments to such positions in each summer school center shall be made according  

to the following ranked criteria: 
 

 a. Proper certification and qualifications are held by the employee. 
 

b. Employee has taught one (1) year in the subject applied for within the past three  
(3) years or is assigned to teach the subject for the next school year. 
 

 c. Uninterrupted seniority in the district. 
 

4. During the first three days of summer school, the following ranked criteria shall be used  
should there be a need to reduce the number of teachers in a specific subject area 
within the school, or, for exceptional education teachers on a district-wide basis: 
 

 a. Teachers who do not hold proper certification or qualifications. 
 

 b. Teachers who have not taught one (1) year in the subject within the past three 
(3)  

years or is not assigned to teach the subject for the next school year. 
 

 c. Teachers with least uninterrupted district seniority. 
 

5. Summer school teachers shall not be required to teach less than two (2) hours per day. 
 

Instructional applicants are required to submit the Instructional/Teacher Summer School 
Employment Application (HRD-2-4118) along with the Teaching Preference sheet. Support 

2020 Summer Programs Manual 42 

Page 134 of 334

DRAFT



  

applicants are required to submit the Support ESE ESY School Year Employment Application 
(HRD-2-4122). All applications should be submitted to Michelle Bily, Human Resources.  
 

 
NOTES: 

● Positions are based on open enrollment.  Once positions are determined, the positions will be 
subject to minimum required enrollment. 

 
●   The feeders for Extended School Year will cover the entire district.  

 
● If a program has additional requirements based on state or federal policy, these requirements 

will be listed with the position posting.  
 

● If a teacher needs to be absent, Principals should work with their faculty and attempt to find a 
sub.  The absent teacher will not receive pay for the hours missed and the teacher who took 
their place can be paid. 

 
Support 

 
Placement of support personnel in summer school positions when allocated shall be made in the best 
interest of the student in accordance with the IEP, current job title, consideration of the mix of the 
exceptionalities in the summer school setting, employee’s familiarity with the specific group of 
students, ESE experience and training, and all else being equal, seniority.  The primary consideration 
shall be the goal of providing optimal staffing for students within the summer school center. 
 
 ESE Budget and Finance 

 
ESE Summer School/Extended School Year – Project 1139 and Fund 100 
 

● ESE Summer Teachers 100-5200128-cost center-1139-0000-000-0 
 

● ESE Summer PTs, OTs 100-5200138-cost center-1139-0000-000-0 
 

● ESE Summer Assistants 100-5200158-cost center-1139-0000-000-0 
 

● ESE Summer BRT/BLC 100-5200128-cost center-1139-0000-000-0 
 

● ESE Summer Nurses 100-5200168-cost center-1139-0000-000-0 
 
 ESE Extended School Year Forms 

 
ESY Calendar & Framework for Services  

ESY Task Instructions  

 
2020 Summer Programs Manual 43 

Page 135 of 334

DRAFT



  

 
 
 

 
 

2020 Summer Programs Manual 44 

Page 136 of 334

DRAFT



Clay County District Schools 
Exceptional Student Education  

Extended School Year (ESY) 2020 

 
 

* ESY SITES 
RHS, KHE, MHS 

 
 

SITE SCHEDULES DATES/HOURS 
 

Planning Day, All ESY Sites 
Teachers & Nurses (RN/LPN) 

 

Thursday, June 11, 2020 
7:30 a.m. - 12:30 p.m. 

 
First Day, RHS 

Students & Assistants 
 

Monday, June 15, 2020 

 
First Day, KHE & MHS 
Students & Assistants 

 

Tuesday, June 16, 2020 

 
Holiday 

 

 
Monday, June 29 - Thursday, July 2, 2020 

 
 

Last Day, RHS 
Students & RHS ESY Staff 

 

Wednesday, July 15, 2020 

 
Last Day, KHE & MHS 

Students & KHE/MHS ESY Staff 
 

Thursday, July 16, 2020 

 
Hours, Employee  

Teachers, Nurses & Assistants Hours 
(Does Not Include Lunch) 

 

Monday/Wednesday (RHS) 
 Tuesday/Thursday (KHE/MHS) 

7:30 a.m. - 12:00 p.m. 

 
Hours, Student 
All ESY Students 

 
Monday/Wednesday (RHS) 

Tuesday/Thursday (KHE/MHS) 
7:50 a.m. - 11:50 a.m. (Includes a 15 minute break) 

 
 

THE ESY CALENDAR IS A GENERAL FRAMEWORK FOR SERVICES; THE IEP TEAM MAKES THE DECISION 
REGARDING ESY SERVICES NECESSARY FOR THE PROVISION OF FAPE.  

 
*STUDENTS ARE ASSIGNED TO AN ESY SITE BASED ON THEIR NEEDS. 

SCHOOL BOARD APPROVED: JANUARY 9 , 2020   
Page 137 of 334

DRAFT



 

 

 
Summer Programs Calendar 2020 

 

 

Voluntary Pre-K 
Summer Program 

(34 days) 

 

3RD Grade Summer 
Reading Camp  

All 3rd Grade students 
scoring a level 1 on the 

FSA 
 (21 Days) 

6th Grade & Jr. HIgh Credit 
Recovery* 

Standard diploma, including 
ESE & self-contained ESE 

students  
(12 Days) 

High School Credit Recovery 
(Delivered via Computer) 

Standard diploma, including ESE & 
self-contained ESE 

(12 Days) 

 Algebra I Credit 
Recovery 
ESE Only 
(16 Days) 

 

Algebra I - Boot 
Camp 

Standard diploma, 
including ESE & 

self-contained ESE 
students (4 Days) 

11th-12th ESOL Summer 
Reading  

ELLs scoring a level 1 or 2 on 
ELA FSA  
(8 days) 

Location  Fleming Island 
Elementary 
School 

Grove Park Elementary 
Keystone Heights Elem. 
S. Bryan Jennings 
Wilkinson Elementary 

Lake Asbury Junior High* 

Lakeside  Junior High** 

Keystone Heights Jr/Sr*** 

Students will report to their zoned 
school. 

Students will report to 
their zoned school. 

Students will report 
to their zoned 
school. 

Orange Park High School  
Oakleaf High School 

First Day 
Teachers 

Monday 
6/8/2020 
Report to 
assigned school  
8:00 a.m.-11a.m. 

Monday 
6/15/20 
Training at TTC “Lab 1” 
8:00 a.m. -11:00 a.m.  
Planning at Assigned 
School 
11:00 a.m. - 12:00 p.m. 

Tuesday 
6/16/2020 
Planning at Assigned School 
8:00 a.m. - 10:00 a.m. 
Training at Fleming Island High 
School 10:00 a.m.  – 11:00 
a.m.  for a review session on 
software  

Tuesday 
6/16/2020 
 Training/Planning at  
Fleming Island High School Media 
Center 8:00 a.m. -10:00 a.m. for 
High School teachers. Report to 
assigned school from 10:00 
a.m.-11:00 a.m. 

Tuesday 
6/16/2020 
Training at FIH Media 
Center 
8:00 a.m. - 9:30 a.m. 
Planning in classroom 
9:30 a.m.-11:00 a.m.  

Thursday 
7/9/2020 
Report to assigned 
school for planning 
8:00-11:00 p.m. 

Thursday 
6/11/2020 
Report to assigned school  
7:30 a.m.-12:00 p.m. 

First Day 
Students & 
Assistants  

Tuesday 
6/9/20 
 

Tuesday 
6/16/20 

Wednesday 
6/17/20 

Science: 6/17-7/8    (12 days) 
Soc. St.: 6/17-7/8     (12 days) 
Math:     6/17-7/8    (12 days) 
E.L.A.:     6/17-7/8    (12 days)  

Wednesday 
6/17/2020 
 

Monday 
7/13/2020 
 

Monday 
6/15/2020 

Last Day 
Students & 
Staff 

Tuesday 
7/28/20 

Wednesday 
 7/22/20 
For Teachers: 
7/22/20 

Wednesday 
7/8/20 
 

Wednesday 
7/8/20 

Wednesday 
7/15/2020 
 

Thursday 
7/16/2020 

Thursday 
6/25/2020 

Student 
Hours 

Monday-Friday 
7:30 a.m. -4:35 
p.m.  
Except Tuesday, 
7/28: 7:30 a.m. 
-10:30 a.m. 

Monday - Thursday 
8:00 a.m-12:00 p.m.  

Monday - Thursday 
8:00 a.m.  – 11:30 a.m. 

Monday - Thursday 
8:00 a.m. - 11:30 a.m. 

Monday - Thursday 
8:00 a.m. – 11:30 a.m. 
 

Monday - Thursday 
8:00 a.m. – 11:00 
a.m. 
 

Monday - Thursday 
8:00 a.m.-12:00 p.m. 

Teacher 
Hours 

Monday - Friday 
7:00 a.m. - 5:00 
p.m.  
Except Tuesday, 
7/28: 7:00 
a.m.-11:00 a.m. 

Monday – Thursday 
7:30 a.m-12:30 p.m  
4 day week 
Except Thursday, 7/22: 
7:30-3:30  

7:45 a.m. - 11:45 a.m. 
Monday – Thursday 
4 Day Week 

7:45 a.m. – 11:45 a.m.  
Monday – Thursday 
4 Day Week 

7:45 a.m. -  11:45 a.m. 
Monday – Thursday 
4 Day Week 

7:45 a.m. - 11:15 
a.m. 
 
 

Monday – Thursday 
7:30 a.m-12:00p.m.  
4 day week 

Important 
Dates:  

No school on 7/2 
and 7/3 

No school on -7/2 No school on 7/2 
Summer EOC’s:  July 13-24.  Information on Individual EOC dates will be distributed prior to the end of school 

 ESY - Refer to separate calendar for information regarding ESY  
*students enrolled at Wilkinson JH, Green Cove JH, and Lake Asbury JH report to Lake Asbury 
** students enrolled at Oakleaf JH, Lakeside JH, and Orange Park JH report to Orange Park JH             ***Keystone Heights Jr.-Sr. High will host their own students 
 

 

 
Page 138 of 334

DRAFT



 
 

Page 139 of 334

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 2, 2020 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C11 -  CTE Out of State and Overnight Field Trip

Description
The School Board recognizes that field trips, when used for teaching and learning integral to the curriculum, are an educationally
sound and important ingredient in the instructional program of the schools. Properly planned and executed field trips supplement
and enrich classroom instruction by providing learning experiences that will enhance mastery of the curriculum standards of the
State of Florida. A field trip is defined as any planned, student travel activity which is approved as part of the district's
educational program and is under the direct supervision and control of an instructional staff member or any advisor as designated
by the Superintendent.
Field Trip Details
Group Function Date Destination
ACE Mentoring National
Team

ACE Mentoring National Team travel to present their
project

April 25-28,
2020

Washington,
DC

*Trips might require students/teachers to travel a day prior or after conference starting/ending date.

Gap Analysis
Career and Technical Student Organizations (CTSO) are co-curricular organizations for CTE students such as FFA, TSA, FBLA,
HOSA, SkillsUSA, FCCLA. CTSO's extend teaching and learning through innovative programs, business and community
partnerships and leadership experiences at the school, state and national levels. CTSO's are a powerful avenue for helping our
nation address key challenges such as workforce development, student achievement, economic vitality and global
competitiveness. CTSO's are authorized by the U.S. Congress in the Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical Education
Improvement Act.

Previous Outcomes
All out-of-state and overnight trips are selected, planned, evaluated, and approved or rejected in conformity with written district
policy.

Expected Outcomes
It is important to recognize that CTSO's provide students leadership development skills as well as hands-on learning through
project-based activities. CTSO events expose students to new experiences which increases their engagement within their
educational experience.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 1: Develop a High Quality & Aligned Instructional System
Strategy 1.3: Prepare all students to be full option graduates who are prepared for college, eligible to enlist in military services, or
able to compete in the workforce.

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board approve the CTE Out of State and Overnight Field Trip.

Contact
Terry Connor, Chief Academic Officer, 904.336.9405, terrence.connor@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
TBD

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 140 of 334

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 2, 2020 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C12 -  Clay Charter Academy Contract Renewal

Description
Clay Charter Academy is a charter school located in Middleburg serving students in Kindergarten through 8th grade. Clay
Charter is in its 5th year of its charter and the school has submitted a request for renewal.  Due to its status as an A school for two
consecutive years, Clay Charter has been designated as a high performing charter school per the Florida Department of
Education. Per Florida statute 1002.331, with this designation, the school is authorized to request a 15 year charter renewal.

Gap Analysis
Clay Charter Academy is an A rated charter school serving students in Kindergarten through 8th Grade.

Previous Outcomes
Clay Charter Academy is in the last year of its 5 year charter and was previously approved by the School Board in December
2014.

Expected Outcomes
Clay Charter Academy will continue to operate as a successful, A rated charter school in Clay County.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 3: Establish a respectful climate and culture that provides equity and access to all. 
Strategy 3.1: Engage stakeholders to strengthen and build a collaborative and constructive environment that encourages high
expectations for all.

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board approve the 15 year charter renewal request for Clay Charter Academy.

Contact
Terry Connor, Chief Academic Officer, 904.336.9405, terrence.connor@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 141 of 334

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 2, 2020 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C13 -  Proclamation #20-13 to Establish April, 2020 as School Library Month in Clay County

Description
Each year, citizens of Clay County take time to recognize the programs, services and resources provided by school libraries. This
celebratory month provides opportunities across the county to highlight school library contributions to education.
School library programs prepare students for lifelong learning, make a measurable difference in student academic achievement
and enhance their reading enjoyment. Additionally, School Library Month coincides with National Library Week, which
highlights the resources and contributions of all types of libraries.
 

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
N/A

Recommendation

That the Clay County School Board establish the month of April, 2020 as School Library Month in Clay County

 

Contact
Terry Connor, Chief Academic Officer, terrence.connor@myoneclay.net
Cynthia Johnson, Supervisor of Instructional Resources, cynthia.johnson@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
N/A

Review Comments

Attachments

Proclamation-April 2020 School Library Media Month (1).docx

Page 142 of 334

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/proclamation-april-2020-school-library-media-month-1.docx


School Board of Clay County

April 2, 2020 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C14 - Proclamation #20-12 National School Nurse Week

Description
The National School Nurse Week has been established to foster a better understanding of the role of school nurses in the
educational setting. This year's National School Nurse Week, May 6-12, 2020, will recognize the vital role that school nurses
have played in improving the health and wellbeing of our county's children through this Resolution. 

Gap Analysis
This Resolution will promote the School Board of Clay County's goal of providing a safe enviroment for students. 

Previous Outcomes
Proclaimation #19-14; National School Nurse Day, May 6-12, 2020 approved. 

Expected Outcomes
The citizens of Clay County will recognize National School Nurses Week as a time to identify and honor the dedicated
employees of Student Health Services. 

Strategic Plan Goal
N/A

Recommendation
Approve the Resolution #20-12 endorsing National School Nurse Week. 

Contact
Michael McAuley, Assistant Superintendent of Culture & Climate
Kristin Riebe, Coordinator of Nursing Services

Financial Impact
N/A

Review Comments

Attachments

Nurses Week Proclamation19-20.docx

Page 143 of 334

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/nurses-week-proclamation19-20.docx


School Board of Clay County

April 2, 2020 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C15 - Proposed Allocation Changes for 2020-2021

Description
Staff allocation documents clarify how each school, district, department, and division is staffed for the 2020-2021 school year. 
The School Board is required to take action on all staff allocation changes.

Gap Analysis
These allocations are required to ensure the adequate staffing of the district and schools.

Previous Outcomes
The district and schools are adequately staffed.

Expected Outcomes
Staffing will be sufficient to meet the needs of the various schools and district departments.

Strategic Plan Goal
The district ensures fiscal responsibility and equitable distribution of resources.

Recommendation
Approve the staff allocation plan as submitted.

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs, (904) 336-6722, susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
To be determined.

Review Comments

Attachments

Allocation Summary - April 2, 2020.pdf

Page 144 of 334

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/allocation-summary-april-2-2020_2.pdf


PROPOSED CHANGES TO STAFF ALLOCATIONS 

 2020-2021 SUMMARY

Board Meeting, April 2, 2020

School Add Delete Allocation Comment Salary Benefits Total Cost

2020-2021 ACTIONS

LES-0352 0.90 ESE Assistant, GH Program Needs ($16,862) ($4,898) ($21,760)

SPC-0571 0.50 Curriculum Coach Program Needs ($24,243) ($7,043) ($31,286)

SPC-0571 1.0 Teacher, VE SC (EBD/ASD) Program Needs $49,074 $14,256 $63,330

SPC-0571 1.8 ESE Assistant, BH Program Needs $33,723 $9,797 $43,520

TBE-0531 1.0 Teacher, VE SC (EBD/ASD) Program Needs ($49,074) ($14,256) ($63,330)

TBE-0531 1.8 ESE Assistant, BH Program Needs ($33,723) ($9,797) ($43,520)

LAJ-0481 1.0 Teacher, VE SC (ASD/EBD/IND) Program Needs $63,330 $18,397 $81,727

TOTAL: $22,226 $6,457 $28,682

SAI Class Size (1140)

CGE-0601 1.0 Teacher, Art Program Needs $47,112 $13,686 $60,798

CGE-0601 1.0 Teacher, Music Program Needs ($47,112) ($13,686) ($60,798)

TOTAL: $0 $0 $0

Federal Funds (FNS)

GCJ-0021 1.0 Cafeteria Assistant, (3.0 hours) Program Needs ($15,130) ($4,395) ($19,525)

TOTAL: ($15,130) ($4,395) ($19,525)

Pending Board Approval 4/2/2020

Page 145 of 334

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 2, 2020 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C16 - Clay County District School Board Operational, Financial and Single Audit for the 2018-2019 Fiscal Year

Description
Pursuant to 1010.30 F.S., school districts are required to have an annual financial, operational and single audit of the district
school board.  For the 2018-2019, the annual operational, finanical and single audit was conducted by Purvis Gray and
Company, an independent certified public accounting firm.  At the conclusion of the site review, there were a total of 2 findings,
1 finding under the operational audit and 1 finding under the financial audit.   Corrective actions to address the findings are
included in the report. 
The audit is a public document and will be made available on the District's website located at the District website and can be
accessed through the following link,
 
The audit becomes part of the public record for the financial records of the School Board, which are maintained under the
direction of the Superintendent, with the approval of the Board. 

Gap Analysis
The objectives of the annual financial, operational and single audit are to evaluate management’s performance in establishing and
maintaining internal controls, including controls designed to prevent and detect fraud, waste and abuse. The objectives also
include the examination of internal controls in the categories of compliance, economic and efficient operations, reliability of
records and reports, and the safeguarding of assets.  

Previous Outcomes
None

Expected Outcomes
Acceptance of the Independent Audit Report, as presented. 

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective, equitable and efficient use of resources.

Recommendation

Acceptance of the Independent Audit Reports, as presented.

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent Business Affairs

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 146 of 334

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 2, 2020 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C17 - Charter School Audits for the 2018-2019 Fiscal Year

Description
Review the 2018-2019 Annual Audit report of the three Charter Schools operating under the Clay County School District.
Audits include Clay Charter Academy, Florida Virtual Academy at Clay and St. Johns Classical Academy, Inc. 

Gap Analysis
A charter school is required to retain the services of a certified public accountant or auditor to conduct their annual financial
audit. The School Board as the sponsor shall review the final report.

Previous Outcomes
The School Board of Clay County received and reviewed the annual audit report of the Charter Schools.

Expected Outcomes
The School Board of Clay County will receive and review the annual audit report of the Charter Schools.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility and equitable distribution of resources.

Recommendation
Review the final audit report for: Clay Charter Academy, Florida Virtual Academy at Clay and St. Johns Classical Academy,
Inc. 

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

2019 Audit Report for Clay Charter Academy.pdf

2019 Audit Report for St. John's Classical Academy.pdf

2019 Audit Report for Florida Cyber Charter Academy at Clay.pdf

Page 147 of 334

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2019-audit-report-for-clay-charter-academy.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2019-audit-report-for-st-johns-classical-academy.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2019-audit-report-for-florida-cyber-charter-academy-at-clay.pdf


 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Clay Charter Academy 
A Department of Florida Charter 
Educational Foundation, Inc. 
(A Component Unit of the School 
Board of Clay County, Florida) 
 
Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019  

 

Page 148 of 334

DRAFT



 

 

Clay Charter Academy 
 
Table of Contents 
 
 
Independent Auditor’s Report 1-2 
 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis  
(not covered by Independent Auditor’s Report) 3-6 
 
 
Basic Financial Statements 
 
Government-wide Financial Statements: 
 
Statement of Net Position (Deficit) 7 
 
Statement of Activities 8 
 
Fund Financial Statements: 
 
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds 9 
 
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental 
Funds to the Statement of Net Position (Deficit) 10 
 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in 
Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 11 
 
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 
of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities 12 
 
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - 
Budget and Actual - General Fund 13 
 
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - 
Budget and Actual - Special Revenue Fund 14 
 
Statement of Assets and Liabilities - Agency Fund 15 
 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 16-25 
 
 
Other Independent Auditor’s Reports 
 
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance 
and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed 
in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 26-27 
 
Independent Auditor’s Report to the Board of Directors 28-29 
 

Page 149 of 334

DRAFT



KMCcpa.com  |  6550 N Federal Hwy, 4th Floor   Fort Lauderdale, FL 33308   Phone: 954.771.0896   Fax: 954.938.9353

 

1 

 
 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
 
To the Board of Directors 
Clay Charter Academy 
A Department of Florida Charter Educational Foundation, Inc. 
Middleburg, Florida 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major 
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Clay Charter Academy (the “School”), a 
Department of Florida Charter Educational Foundation, Inc. and a component unit of the School Board 
of Clay County, Florida, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the School’s basic financial statements as listed in the 
table of contents. 
 
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free 
from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation 
of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinions. 
 

Page 150 of 334

DRAFT



 

2 

Clay Charter Academy 
 
 
Opinions 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the School, as of June 30, 2019, and the respective changes in financial 
position, and budgetary comparison for the General Fund and Special Revenue Fund for the year then 
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Emphasis of Matter 
 
As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements of the School are intended to present the financial 
position and change in financial position of only that portion of the governmental activities, each major 
fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of Florida Charter Educational Foundation, Inc. 
that is attributable to the transactions of the School.  They do not purport to, and do not, present fairly 
the financial position of Florida Charter Educational Foundation, Inc. as of June 30, 2019 and the 
changes in financial position or budgetary comparisons, where applicable, for the year ended June 30, 
2019 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  Our 
opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management's discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 6 be presented to supplement the basic 
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is 
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of 
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, 
or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, 
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial 
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the 
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated August 26, 
2019, on our consideration of the School’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of 
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control 
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That 
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering the School’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 
 
 
 
KEEFE McCULLOUGH  
 
 
Fort Lauderdale, Florida 
August 26, 2019 

Page 151 of 334

DRAFT



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION 

AND ANALYSIS 

Page 152 of 334

DRAFT



 

3 

Clay Charter Academy 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
June 30, 2019 
 

 
As management of Clay Charter Academy (the “School”), a Department of Florida Charter 
Educational Foundation, Inc. and a component unit of the School Board of Clay County, Florida, we 
offer readers of the School’s basic financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the 
financial activities of the School for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018.   
 
Management’s discussion and analysis is included at the beginning of the School’s basic financial 
statements to provide, in layman’s terms, the current position of the School’s financial condition.  
This summary should not be taken as a replacement for the audit which consists of the basic 
financial statements. 
 

Financial Highlights 
 
Our basic financial statements provide these insights into the results of this year’s operations. 
 

• As of June 30, 2019, the School’s governmental fund balances totaled 
$ 1,711,974 as compared to $ 2,467,397 as of June 30, 2018. 

 
• As of June 30, 2019, the School has net position (deficit) of $ (2,073,008) 

as compared to net position (deficit) of $ (2,196,946) at June 30, 2018. 
 

Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the School’s basic financial 
statements.  The School’s basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 
1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the basic 
financial statements. 
 
Government-Wide Basic Financial Statements:  The government-wide financial statements are 
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the School’s finances, in a manner similar to 
a private sector business. 
 
The statement of net position presents information on all of the School’s assets, liabilities, and 
deferred inflows/outflows of resources, with the difference between the two reported as net 
position.  Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of 
whether the financial position of the School is improving or deteriorating. 
 
The statement of activities presents information showing how the School’s net position changed 
during the year.  All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise 
to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Thus, revenues and expenses 
are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal 
periods (e.g., uncollected revenues and services rendered but unpaid). 
 
The government-wide financial statements include all governmental activities that are principally 
supported by grants and entitlements from the state for full-time equivalent funding.  The School 
does not have any business-type activities.  The governmental activities of the School primarily 
include instruction and instructional support services. 
 
The government-wide basic financial statements can be found on pages 7 and 8 of this report. 

Page 153 of 334

DRAFT



 

4 

Clay Charter Academy 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
June 30, 2019 
 

 
Fund Basic Financial Statements:  A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain 
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives.  The School, 
like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate 
compliance with finance-related legal requirements.  
 
Governmental Funds:  Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions 
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  However, unlike 
the government-wide basic financial statements, governmental fund basic financial statements 
focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as balances of spendable 
resources available at the end of the fiscal year.  Such information may be useful in evaluating the 
School’s near-term financing requirements. 
 
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  
By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the School’s near-term 
financing decisions.  Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund 
statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to 
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. 
 
The School maintains several individual governmental funds.  Information is presented in the 
governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures 
and changes in fund balances.  The General Fund, Special Revenue Fund and Capital Project Fund 
are considered to be the School’s major funds. 
 
The School adopts an annual budget for its governmental funds.  A budgetary comparison 
statement has been provided for the General Fund and Special Revenue Fund to demonstrate 
compliance with the budget. 
 
The governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 9 through 14 of this report. 
 
Agency Fund:  In addition, the School has one agency fund which is a student activity fund. This 
fund was formed for educational and school purposes. 
 
The Agency Fund financial statement can be found on page 15 of this report. The assets and 
liabilities of this fund are not included in the government-wide statement of net assets. 
 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements:  The notes provide additional information that is essential for 
a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.  
The notes to basic financial statements can be found on pages 16 through 25 of this report. 
 

Government-Wide Financial Analysis 
 
The School has been in operation for four years; therefore, comparative government-wide data is 
presented.  The School’s net position (deficit) was $ (2,073,008) at June 30, 2019.  Of this amount, 
$ (3,161,196) represents net investment in capital assets (deficit), $ 1,455,926 represents restricted 
net position and $ (367,738) represents unrestricted net position (deficit).  The School’s net 
position (deficit) was $ (2,196,946) at June 30, 2018.  Of this amount, $ (3,028,283) represents net 
investment in capital assets (deficit), $ 1,366,448 represents restricted for debt service and 
$ (535,111) represents unrestricted net position (deficit). 
 

Page 154 of 334

DRAFT



 

5 

Clay Charter Academy 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
June 30, 2019 
 

 
Our analysis in the table below focuses on the net position of the School’s governmental activities: 
 

Clay Charter Academy 
Net Position (Deficit) 

June 30, June 30,
2019 2018

Assets:
 Current and other assets $ 789,447 $ 1,539,369
 Noncurrent assets 16,361,749 17,032,145

Total assets 17,151,196 18,571,514

Liabilities:
 Current liabilities 1,164,285 1,417,597
 Noncurrent liabilities 18,059,919     19,350,863       

Total liabilities 19,224,204 20,768,460

Net Position (Deficit):
 Net investment in capital assets (deficit) (3,161,196) (3,028,283)
 Restricted 1,455,926 1,366,448
 Unrestricted (deficit) (367,738) (535,111)

        Total net position (deficit) $ (2,073,008) $ (2,196,946)

 
Current and other assets decreased mainly due to the decrease of restricted investments. 
Noncurrent assets decreased due to depreciation expense of approximately $ 673,000.  Current 
liabilities decreased due to payments made on the School’s note payable.  Noncurrent assets 
decreased due to principal payments made on the School’s bond payable. 
 
Governmental Activities:  The results of this year’s operations for the School as a whole are 
reported in the statement of activities on page 8.  The following table provides a condensed 
presentation of the School’s revenues and expenses for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018: 
 

Clay Charter Academy 
Change in Net Position (Deficit) 

June 30, June 30,
2019 2018

Revenues:
 General revenues $ 5,507,147 $ 4,745,056
 Program revenues 742,359 473,354

Total revenues 6,249,506 5,218,410

Functions/Program Expenses:
 Instruction 2,349,337 2,270,602
 Instructional support services 2,086,675 1,878,883
 Non-instructional services 1,689,556 1,702,170

Total governmental activities 6,125,568 5,851,655

        Change in net position (deficit) $ 123,938 $ (633,245)

 
General revenues increased from prior year mainly due to an increase in enrollment.  Program 
revenues increased due to an increase in capital outlay funding as well as operating grants and 
contributions.  Total expenses increased as a result of the increase in enrollment. 

 Page 155 of 334

DRAFT



 

6 

Clay Charter Academy 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
June 30, 2019 
 

 
Governmental Fund Expenditures:  In the table below, we have presented the cost of the largest 
functions/programs as a percentage of total governmental expenditures: 

Functions/Programs Expenditures Percent Expenditures Percent

Governmental expenditures:
 Instructional expenditures $ 2,084,280 30% $ 1,865,792 34%
 Debt service 2,784,767 40% 1,768,277 32%
 Plant operations and maintenance 987,822 14% 851,137 15%
 Administrative services 451,239 6% 402,324 7%
 Food services 203,830 3% 167,226 3%
 All other functions/programs 492,990 7% 494,016 9%

Total governmental
 expenditures $ 7,004,928 100% $ 5,548,772 100%

2019 2018

 
Capital Assets and Debt Administration 

 
Capital assets:  At June 30, 2019, the School had capital assets of $ 14,884,676, net of accumulated 
depreciation, invested in building, computer equipment, furniture, fixtures and equipment and 
improvements other than buildings as compared to $ 15,556,606 at June 30, 2018.  A detailed 
schedule is on pages 21 and 22 in the notes to the basic financial statements. 
 
Debt:  At June 30, 2019, the School had debt of $ 18,541,552, as compared to $ 20,085,010 at June 
30, 2018.  More information about the School’s debt can be found on pages 22 and 23 of this 
report. 
 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 
 
State source revenues were higher than budget as a result of higher enrollment than anticipated. 
Local source revenues were unfavorable to the budget due to less support needed from the 
School’s management company than budgeted. Total revenues exceeded the budget by 
approximately $ 458,000.  Expenditures were unfavorable to budget mainly due to the higher 
enrollment.  Debt service expenditures were higher than budget due to an unbudgeted redemption 
of principal of $ 815,000 funded by the release of restricted investments.  Overall, the school ended 
the year with a change in fund balance that was unfavorable to budget by $ 725,000. 
 

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget 
 
In fiscal year 2019, the State of Florida increased its Florida Education Finance Program funding by 
approximately 2% and the capital outlay funding pool increased to $ 145 million. In addition, an 
allocation was given to fund safe schools and mental health initiatives.  A 2% merit increase was 
also paid out to eligible staff. 
 
For fiscal year 2020, capital outlay revenue was assumed at an increase of 2% of the current rate 
per student. The budgets reflect the Florida Education Finance Program funding increase of $ 175 
per student.  A 2% merit increase for all staff was budgeted as well as safety initiatives for security 
resource officers.  All other expenditures are budgeted in alignment with enrollment changes and 
the School’s strategic objectives. 
 

Requests for Information 
 
If you have any questions about this report or need additional information, please write Lindsey 
Lennon, Controller - Schools, Charter Schools USA, 800 Corporate Drive, Suite 700, Fort Lauderdale, 
Florida 33334. 

Page 156 of 334

DRAFT



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BASIC 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Page 157 of 334

DRAFT



 

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements. 
 

7 

Governmental
Activities

Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 221,248
Due from other governments 184,645
Other receivable 2,367
Prepaid items 5,406
Deposits 54,675
Restricted investments 321,106

Total current assets 789,447

Noncurrent Assets:
Restricted investments 1,477,073
Capital assets (depreciable), net of accumulated depreciation 14,884,676

Total noncurrent assets 16,361,749

Total assets 17,151,196

Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 62,753
Salaries and wages payable 165,314
Due to management company 324,641
Due to related party 1,838
Compensated absences 9,737
Accrued interest payable 115,124
Note payable 204,878
Bonds payable 280,000

Total current liabilities 1,164,285

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Compensated absences 3,245
Note payable 290,244
Bonds payable 17,766,430

Total noncurrent liabilities 18,059,919

Total liabilities 19,224,204

Commitments (Note 10) -              

Net Position (Deficit):
Net investment in capital assets (deficit) (3,161,196)
Restricted for debt service 1,396,862
Restricted for repair and replacement reserves 59,064
Unrestricted (deficit) (367,738)

Total net position (deficit) $ (2,073,008)

Clay Charter Academy
Statement of Net Position (Deficit)
June 30, 2019

Page 158 of 334

DRAFT



 

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements. 
 

8 

Governmental
Activities

Net Revenue
Charges Operating Capital (Expense) and

for Grants and Grants and Change in
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Net Position

Functions/Programs:
Instruction $ 2,349,337   $ -          $ 74,129   $ -            $ (2,275,208)
Student support services 129,914     -          -          -            (129,914)
Instruction and curriculum
 development services 3,284          -          -          -            (3,284)
Instructional staff training
 services 15,148        -          -          -            (15,148)       
Instruction related technology 94,516        -          -          -            (94,516)
Board 30,134        -          -          -            (30,134)
School administration 451,239     -          2,681      -            (448,558)
Fiscal services 9,501          -          -          -            (9,501)
Food services 203,830     61,481   139,562 -            (2,787)
Central services 98,098        -          -          -            (98,098)
Operation of plant 1,226,810   -          22,012   -            (1,204,798)
Maintenance of plant 165,764     -          -          -            (165,764)
Community services 111,205     145,926 13,785   -            48,506
Interest and fees 1,236,788   -          -          282,783   (954,005)

Total governmental
 activities $ 6,125,568   $ 207,407 $ 252,169 $ 282,783   (5,383,209)  

General revenues:
 Grants and entitlements 3,985,923
 Contributions 1,460,000
 Investment income 59,646
 Miscellaneous 1,578

  Total general revenues 5,507,147

    Change in net position 123,938

Net position (deficit), July 1, 2018 (2,196,946)  

Net position (deficit), June 30, 2019 $ (2,073,008)

Clay Charter Academy
Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Program Revenues

 

Page 159 of 334

DRAFT



 

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements. 
 

9 

Special Capital
General Revenue Project

Fund Fund Fund Total

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 221,248       $ -              $ -               $ 221,248      
Due from other governments 155,476       1,551          27,618         184,645      
Due from other funds 29,169         -              -               29,169        
Other receivable 2,367           -              -               2,367          
Prepaid items 5,406           -              -               5,406          
Deposits 54,675         -              -               54,675        
Restricted investments 1,798,179   -              -               1,798,179  

Total assets $ 2,266,520   $ 1,551          $ 27,618         $ 2,295,689  

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and
 accrued expenses $ 62,753         $ -              $ -               $ 62,753        
Salaries and wages payable 165,314       -              -               165,314      
Due to management company 324,641       -              -               324,641      
Due to related party 1,838           -              -               1,838          
Due to other funds -               1,551          27,618         29,169        

Total liabilities 554,546       1,551          27,618         583,715      

Commitments (Note 10) -               -              -               -              

Fund Balances:
Nonspendable:
 Prepaid items 5,406           -              -               5,406          
 Deposits 54,675         -              -               54,675        
Restricted for capital projects 558              -              -               558             
Restricted for debt service 1,511,986   -              -               1,511,986  
Restricted for repair and
 replacement reserves 59,064         -              -               59,064        
Unassigned 80,285         -              -               80,285        

Total fund balances 1,711,974   -              -               1,711,974  

Total liabilities
 and fund balances $ 2,266,520   $ 1,551          $ 27,618         $ 2,295,689  

Clay Charter Academy
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds
June 30, 2019

 
 

Page 160 of 334

DRAFT



 

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements. 
 

10 

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds $ 1,711,974

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
 statement of net position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not
 financial resources and, therefore, are not reported
 in the governmental fund.

Cost of capital assets $ 18,005,404
Accumulated depreciation (3,120,728) 14,884,676

Liabilities not payable with current available resources
 are not reported as fund liabilities in the governmental
 fund statement.  All liabilities both current and
 long-term, are reported in the government-wide
 statements.

Compensated absences $ (12,982)
Accrued interest payable (115,124)
Bonds payable (18,046,430)
Note payable (495,122) (18,669,658)

Net Position (Deficit) of Governmental Activities $ (2,073,008)

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds
Clay Charter Academy

to the Statement of Net Position (Deficit)
June 30, 2019

 
 

Page 161 of 334

DRAFT



 

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements. 
 

11 

               

Special Capital
General Revenue Project

Fund Fund Fund Total

Revenues:
Federal through state $ -              $ 155,503      $ -               $ 155,503      
State sources 4,059,191  1,385          282,783       4,343,359  
Local sources 1,604,717  -              -               1,604,717  
Aftercare 145,926      -              -               145,926      

Total revenues 5,809,834  156,888      282,783       6,249,505  

Expenditures:
Instruction 2,083,420  860             -               2,084,280  
Student support services 129,914      -              -               129,914      
Instruction and curriculum
 development services 3,284          -              -               3,284          
Instructional staff training
 services 15,148        -              -               15,148        
Instruction related technology 94,516        -              -               94,516        
Board 30,134        -              -               30,134        
School administration 448,558      2,681          -               451,239      
Fiscal services 9,501          -              -               9,501          
Food services 64,268        139,562      -               203,830      
Central services 98,098        -              -               98,098        
Operation of plant 822,058      -              -               822,058      
Maintenance of plant 165,764      -              -               165,764      
Community services 97,420        13,785        -               111,205      
Capital outlay 1,190          -              -               1,190          
Debt service:
 Principal 1,553,220  -              -               1,553,220  
 Interest 948,764      -              282,783       1,231,547  

Total expenditures 6,565,257  156,888      282,783       7,004,928  

Net change in
 fund balances (755,423)    -              -               (755,423)    

Fund Balances, July 1, 2018 2,467,397  -              -               2,467,397  

Fund Balances, June 30, 2019 $ 1,711,974  $ -              $ -               $ 1,711,974  

Clay Charter Academy
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

 

Page 162 of 334

DRAFT



 

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements. 
 

12 

Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds $ (755,423)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
 statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as 
 expenditures; however, in the statement of activities,
 the costs of those assets is depreciated over their
 estimated useful lives as provision for depreciation.

Cost of capital assets $ 1,190
Provision for depreciation (673,120) (671,930)

Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in the 
 governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-
 term liabilities in the statement of net position. 1,553,220

Certain items reported in the statement of activities 
 do not require the use of current financial resources,
 and therefore, are not reported as expenditures in
 the governmental funds.

Change in accrued interest payable $ 4,521
Change in compensated absences 3,312
Provision for amortization of bond discount (9,762) (1,929)

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 123,938

Clay Charter Academy
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
of the Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

 
 
 

Page 163 of 334

DRAFT



 

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements. 
 

13 

Original
and Final
Budget Actual Variance

Revenues:
State sources $ 3,380,335 $ 4,059,191 $ 678,856
Local sources 1,866,685  1,604,717   (261,968)     
Aftercare 104,612      145,926        41,314         

Total revenues 5,351,632  5,809,834   458,202       

Expenditures:
Instruction 1,764,520  2,083,420   (318,900)     
Student support services 171,425      129,914        41,511         
Instruction and curriculum
 development services 762             3,284            (2,522)          
Instructional staff training services 7,195          15,148          (7,953)          
Instruction related technology 72,763        94,516          (21,753)        
Board 29,369        30,134          (765)             
School administration 462,251      448,558        13,693         
Fiscal services 14,466        9,501            4,965           
Food services 35,177        64,268          (29,091)        
Central services 91,673        98,098          (6,425)          
Operation of plant 812,259      822,058        (9,799)          
Maintenance of plant 145,679      165,764        (20,085)        
Community services 50,678        97,420          (46,742)        
Capital outlay 30,500        1,190            29,310         
Debt service:
 Principal 738,220      1,553,220   (815,000)     
 Interest 955,199      948,764        6,435           

Total expenditures 5,382,136  6,565,257   (1,183,121)  

Net change in fund balance $ (30,504)      $ (755,423)     $ (724,919)     

Clay Charter Academy
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures -
Budget and Actual - General Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Page 164 of 334

DRAFT



 

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements. 
 

14 

Original
and Final
Budget Actual Variance

Revenues:
 Federal sources:

National School Lunch Program $ 132,989      $ 151,962       $ 18,973        
IDEA -              3,541           3,541          

 State sources:
National School Lunch Program -              1,385           1,385          

Total revenues 132,989      156,888       23,899        

Expenditures:
Instruction -              860              (860)            
School administration -              2,681           (2,681)         
Food services 112,371      139,562       (27,191)      
Community services 20,618        13,785         6,833          

Total expenditures 132,989      156,888       (23,899)      

Net change in fund balance $ -              $ -               $ -              

Clay Charter Academy
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures -
Budget and Actual - Special Revenue Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

 
 
 

Page 165 of 334

DRAFT



 

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements. 
 

15 

Student
Activities

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 23,500        

Total assets $ 23,500        

Liabilities:
Due to students $ 23,500        

Total liabilities $ 23,500        

Clay Charter Academy
Statement of Assets and Liabilities - Agency Fund
June 30, 2019

 
 

Page 166 of 334

DRAFT



 

16 

Clay Charter Academy 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
June 30, 2019 
 

 
Note 1 - Organization and Operations 

 
Clay Charter Academy (the “School”), a Department of Florida Charter Educational Foundation, Inc. 
and a component unit of the School Board of Clay County, Florida, was established in 2015 as a 
public charter school to serve students from kindergarten to eighth grade in Clay County.  The 
Florida Charter Educational Foundation, Inc. (“FCEF”) is a Florida nonprofit corporation organized 
pursuant to Chapter 617, Florida Statutes.  The governing body of the School consists of the officers 
and directors of FCEF.  There were 580 students enrolled for the 2018/2019 school year. 
 
The basic financial statements of the School present only the balances, activity and disclosures 
related to the School. They do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of 
Florida Charter Educational Foundation, Inc. as of June 30, 2019, and the changes in its financial 
position or budgetary comparisons, where applicable, for the year then ended in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Accordingly, these basic 
financial statements only include balances, activity and disclosures related to the School. 
 
 

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Reporting entity:  The School operates under a charter granted by the sponsoring school board, the 
School Board of Clay County.  The current charter is effective until June 30, 2021 and may be 
renewed by mutual written agreement between the School and the School Board.  At the end of 
the term of the charter, the School Board may choose not to renew the charter under grounds 
specified in the charter, in which case, the School Board is required to notify the School in writing 
at least ninety days prior to the charter's expiration.  During the term of the charter, the School 
Board may also terminate the charter if good cause is shown.  The School is considered a 
component unit of the School Board of Clay County. 
 
The School may also be financially accountable if an organization is fiscally dependent on the 
School regardless of whether the organization has a separately elected governing board, a 
governing board appointed by another government, or a jointly approved board.  In addition, 
component units can be other organizations for which the nature and significance of their 
relationship with the School are such that exclusion would cause the basic financial statements to 
be misleading or incomplete. 
 
As a result of evaluating the above criteria, management has determined that no component units 
exist for which the School is financially accountable, which would require inclusion in the School's 
basic financial statements. 
 
Basis of presentation:  Based on the guidance provided in the American Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants Audit and Accounting Guide - Not-for-Profit Organizations and provisions of Section 
228.056, Florida Statutes, the School is presented as a governmental organization for financial 
statement reporting purposes. 
 
Government-wide financial statements:  Government-wide financial statements, including the 
statement of net position and the statement of activities, present information about the School as 
a whole. 
 
Government-wide financial statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement 
focus.  The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program 
revenues for each function or program of the School’s governmental activities.  Direct expenses are 
those that are specifically associated with a service, program, or department and are thereby 
clearly identifiable to a particular function. 

Page 167 of 334

DRAFT



 

17 

Clay Charter Academy 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
June 30, 2019 
 

 
Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

 
Program revenues include charges paid by the recipient of the goods or services offered by the 
program and grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital 
requirements of a particular program.  Revenues that are not classified as program revenues are 
presented as general revenues.  The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues 
identifies the extent to which each governmental function is self-financing or draws from the 
general revenues of the School. 
 
Fund financial statements:  Fund financial statements report detailed information about the School 
in the governmental funds.  The focus of governmental fund financial statements is on major funds 
rather than reporting funds by type.  Each major fund is reported in a separate column.  Because 
the focus of governmental fund financial statements differs from the focus of government-wide 
financial statements, a reconciliation is presented with each of the governmental fund financial 
statements. 
 
The School’s major governmental funds are as follows: 
 

General Fund - This fund is used to account for all operating activities of the 
School except for those required to be accounted for in another fund. 
 
Special Revenue Fund - This fund is used to account for federal grants and 
certain state grants that are legally restricted to expenditures for particular 
purposes. 
 
Capital Project Fund - This fund is used to account for state and local capital 
outlay funding that is legally restricted to expenditures for particular purposes. 

 
Additionally, the School reports separately the following fiduciary fund type: 
 

Agency Fund - This fund is used to administer funds raised and earned by the 
various clubs and activities that are part of the School. 

 
Basis of accounting:  Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures, or expenses, 
are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements.  Basis of accounting 
relates to the timing of the measurements made, regardless of the measurement focus applied.   
 
The government-wide financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.  
Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when a liability is incurred, 
regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. 
 
Governmental fund financial statements are prepared using the modified accrual basis of 
accounting.  Revenues are recognized when they become measurable and available.  Measurable 
means the amount of the transaction can be determined and available means collectible within the 
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.  The School 
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within sixty days of the end of the current 
period.  Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, expenditures are generally recognized 
when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on long-term debt, 
claims and judgments, and compensated absences, which are recognized when due.  General 
capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds.  Issuance of long-
term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources. 
 
The Agency Fund has no measurement focus but utilizes the accrual basis of accounting for 
reporting. 

Page 168 of 334

DRAFT



 

18 

Clay Charter Academy 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
June 30, 2019 
 

 
Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

 
Cash and cash equivalents:  The School considers all demand accounts and money market funds 
which are not subject to withdrawal restrictions to be cash and cash equivalents. The School 
maintains its cash accounts with one financial institution.  The School’s accounts at this institution, 
at times, may exceed the federally insured limit.  The School has not experienced any losses in such 
accounts and does not believe it is exposed to any significant credit risk (Note 3). 
 
Prepaid items:  Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods 
and are recorded as prepaid items. 
 
Due to and due from other funds:  Interfund receivables and payables arise from interfund 
transactions and are recorded by all funds affected in the period in which transactions are 
executed.  The balances result from the time lag between the dates that interfund goods and 
services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, transactions are recorded in the 
accounting system, and payments between funds are made. 
 
Revenue recognition:  Student funding is provided by the State of Florida through the School 
Board.  Such funding is recorded as entitlement revenue in the government-wide financial 
statements and state source revenue in the fund financial statements.  This funding is received on a 
pro rata basis over a twelve-month period and is adjusted for changes in full-time equivalent (FTE) 
student population. 
 
Income taxes:  The School is a Department of a nonprofit corporation.  Revenue of the School is 
derived primarily from other governmental entities.  The School is exempt from income taxes 
under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.  Accordingly, no provision for income taxes 
has been made in these basic financial statements. 
 
Capital assets:  Property and equipment purchased or acquired are capitalized at historical cost or 
estimated historical cost.  Capital assets are defined by the School as assets with a cost of $ 750 and 
useful life of over one year.  Donated property and equipment assets are reported at the 
acquisition value as of the date received.  Additions, improvements and other capital outlays that 
significantly extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized and depreciated over the remaining 
useful lives of the related fixed assets.  Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are 
expensed as incurred. 
 
Depreciation on all capital assets is provided on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful 
lives as follows: 
 
 Building 38 years 
 Improvements other than buildings 10 years 
 Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 years 
 Computer equipment 3-5 years 

Deferred outflows/inflows of resources:  In addition to assets, the statement of financial position 
will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources.  This separate 
financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net 
position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources 
(expense/expenditure) until then.  The School does not have any items that qualify for reporting in 
this category. 
 

Page 169 of 334

DRAFT



 

19 

Clay Charter Academy 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
June 30, 2019 

 
 

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate 
section for deferred inflows of resources.  This separate financial statement element, deferred 
inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and 
so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.  The School does not 
have any items that qualify for reporting in this category. 
 
Unearned revenue:  Unearned revenue arises when the School receives resources before it has a 
legal claim to them. 
 
Compensated absences:  The School’s policy permits employees to accumulate earned but unused 
paid time off, which is eligible for payment upon separation from service.  The liability for such 
leave is reported as incurred in the government-wide financial statements.  A liability for those 
amounts is recorded in the governmental funds only if the liability has matured as a result of 
employee resignations or retirements.  The liability for compensated absences includes salary-
related benefits, where applicable.  Payments for compensated absences are generally paid out of 
the General Fund. 
 
Net position:  Net position is classified in three categories.  The general meaning of each is as 
follows: 
 

 Net investment in capital assets - represents the difference between the 
cost of capital assets, less accumulated depreciation reduced by the 
outstanding balances of borrowings used for the acquisition, construction 
or improvement of those assets. 

 
 Restricted - consists of net position with constraints placed on their use 

either by 1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or 
laws or regulations of other governments, or 2) law through 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

 
 Unrestricted (deficit) - indicates that portion of net position that will need 

to be funded by future operations. 
 

Fund balance:  The governmental fund financial statements present fund balances based on the 
provisions of GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type 
Definitions.  This Statement provides more clearly defined fund balance classifications and also sets 
a hierarchy which details how the School may spend funds based on certain constraints.  The 
following are the fund balance classifications used in the governmental fund financial statements: 
 

 Nonspendable - this classification includes amounts that cannot be spent 
because they are either not in spendable form or are legally or 
contractually required to be maintained intact.  The School classifies 
inventories, prepaid items, long-term notes receivable and deposits as 
nonspendable since they are not expected to be converted to cash or are 
not expected to be converted to cash within the next year. 

 
 Restricted - this classification includes amounts that are restricted for 

specific purposes by external parties such as grantors and creditors or are 
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 
 

Page 170 of 334

DRAFT



 

20 

Clay Charter Academy 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
June 30, 2019 
 
 
Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

 
 Committed - this classification includes amounts that can be used for 

specific purposes voted on through formal action of the Board of 
Directors (the highest level of decision making authority).  The committed 
amount cannot be used for any other purpose unless the Board of 
Directors removes or changes the commitment through formal action. 

 
 Assigned - this classification includes amounts that the Board of Directors 

intends to use for a specific purpose but they are neither restricted nor 
committed.  The School classifies existing fund balance to be used in the 
subsequent year’s budget for elimination of a deficit as assigned. 

 
 Unassigned - this classification includes amounts that have not been 

restricted, committed or assigned for a specific purpose within the 
General Fund. 

 
The details of the fund balances are included in the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet on page 9.   
 
When the School incurs expenditures for which restricted or unrestricted fund balance is available, 
the School would consider restricted funds to be spent first.  When the School has expenditures for 
which committed, assigned or unassigned fund balance is available, the School would consider 
committed funds to be spent first, then assigned funds and lastly unassigned funds. 
 
Budget:  An operating budget is adopted and maintained by the governing board for the School 
pursuant to the requirements of Florida Statutes.  The budget is adopted using the same basis of 
accounting that is used in the preparation of the financial statements. 
 
Use of estimates:  The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain 
reported amounts and disclosures.  Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 
Date of management review:  Subsequent events were evaluated by management through August 
26, 2019, which is he date the financial statements were available to be issued. 
 
 

Note 3 - Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
At June 30, 2019, the carrying amount of the deposits and cash on hand totaled $ 244,748 with a 
bank balance of $ 247,800. 
 
State statutes require, and it is the School’s policy, that all deposits be made into, and be held by, 
financial institutions designated by the Treasurer of the State of Florida as “qualified public 
depositories” as defined by Chapter 280 of the Florida Statutes.  This statute requires that every 
qualified public depository institution maintain eligible collateral to secure the public entity’s funds.  
The minimum collateral to be pledged by an institution, the collateral eligible for pledge, and 
reporting requirements of the qualified public depositor to the treasurer is defined by the statute.  
Collateral is pooled in a multiple qualified public depository institution pool with the ability to 
assess members of the pool should the need arise.  The School’s deposits are held in a qualified 
public depository.  They are covered by the collateral pool as the School has identified itself as a 
public entity at June 30, 2019.  
 

Page 171 of 334

DRAFT



 

21 

Clay Charter Academy 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
June 30, 2019 
 

 
Note 4 - Due to Related Party 

 
The School is a Department of The Florida Charter Educational Foundation, Inc. (“FCEF”).  As of 
June 30, 2019, the School owes FCEF $ 1,838 for expenses related to the board of directors. 

 
 
Note 5 - Restricted Investments 
 

Previously, FCEF borrowed funds for construction of facilities for two of their schools, including Clay 
Charter Academy (Note 8).  The restricted investments of the School are held by the Trustee and 
are governed by the Bond Indenture.  At June 30, 2019, the School has $ 1,798,179 invested in a 
money market mutual fund that is stated at amortized cost which approximates fair value. 
 
Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of a debt type investment will not fulfill its obligation 
to the holder of the investment.  This is measured by assignment of a rating by a nationally 
recognized rating organization.  The exposure to credit risk is limited because the money market 
mutual fund is rated Aaa-mf by Moody's. 
 
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rate will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment.  The exposure to declines in fair values is limited because the weighted average 
maturity of the money market mutual fund is twenty days.   

 
 
Note 6 - Capital Assets 

 
Capital asset balances and activity for the year ended June 30, 2019 are as follows: 

Balance at Balance at
July 1, June 30,
2018 Additions Deletions 2019

Capital assets, depreciable:
 Buildings $ 16,517,389 $ -               $ -                $ 16,517,389
 Improvements other than buildings 2,075 -               -                2,075          
 Furniture, fixtures and equipment 709,012 -               -                709,012      
 Computer equipment 775,738 1,190          -                776,928      

Total capital assets, depreciable 18,004,214 1,190          -                18,005,404

Accumulated depreciation:
 Buildings 1,501,986 404,545      -                1,906,531   
 Improvements other than buildings 537 207              -                744              
 Furniture, fixtures and equipment 365,600 141,803 -                507,403      
 Computer equipment 579,485 126,565      -                706,050      

Total accumulated
 depreciation 2,447,608 673,120      -                3,120,728   

     Net capital assets $ 15,556,606 $ (671,930)     $ -                $ 14,884,676

 
 
 

Page 172 of 334

DRAFT



 

22 

Clay Charter Academy 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
June 30, 2019 

 
 

Note 6 - Capital Assets (continued) 
 
Provision for depreciation was charged to governmental activities as follows: 

Instruction $ 268,368
Operation of plant 404,752

Total $ 673,120
 

 
Note 7 - Note Payable  

 
The School has a note payable with Charter Schools USA, Inc. (Note 10).  The School pays interest at 
5% during the term of the loan. 
 
The following is a schedule of the future minimum note payments as of June 30, 2019: 

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total

2020 $ 204,878 $ 20,360 $ 225,238
2021 204,878 9,974 214,852
2022 85,366 1,093 86,459

$ 495,122 $ 31,427 $ 526,549
 

 
Note 8 - Bonds Payable  

 
Previously, the Florida Development Finance Corporation (the “Corporation”) issued $ 40,900,000 
in Tax Exempt Educational Facilities Revenue Bonds, Series 2016A and $ 370,000 in Taxable 
Educational Facilities Revenue Bonds, Series 2016B pursuant to an Indenture of Trust between the 
Corporation and a Trustee to make a loan to Florida Charter Educational Foundation, Inc. (“FCEF”), 
a division of which the School exists to finance the acquisition of the facilities and equipment of 
two charter schools existing under FCEF.  The Series 2016A Bonds bear interest at 5.125% through 
June 2026, then at 6.250% through June 2036 and finally at 6.375% through June 2046.  The Series 
2016B Bonds bear interest at 6.250% through June 2019.  Principal and interest will be paid semi-
annually on June 15 and December 15.  In order to secure the payment of the principal and interest 
on the Bonds, the Corporation assigned all of its rights and interest in the loan agreement to the 
Trustee.  The Bonds are payable from and secured by a lien upon and pledge of payments to be 
received by the Trustee. 

Page 173 of 334

DRAFT



 

23 

Clay Charter Academy 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
June 30, 2019 
 
 
Note 8 - Bonds Payable (continued) 

 
The School’s share of the annual debt service requirements to maturity for the Series 2016 Bond is 
as follows: 

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total

2020 $ 280,000 $ 1,128,491 $ 1,408,491
2021 295,000 1,113,884 1,408,884
2022 310,000 1,098,638 1,408,638
2023 325,000 1,082,494 1,407,494
2024 340,000 1,065,581 1,405,581

2025-2029 2,015,000 5,024,734 7,039,734
2030-2034 2,725,000 4,309,313 7,034,313
2035-2039 3,715,000 3,326,250 7,041,250
2040-2044 5,090,000 1,957,763 7,047,763
2045-2046 3,215,000 267,594 3,482,594

$ 18,310,000 $ 20,374,742 $ 38,684,742
 

 
Note 9 - Long-Term Liabilities 
 

Changes in the School’s long-term liabilities for fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, are as follows: 

Balance Balance Amount
July 1, June 30, Due Within
2018 Additions Retirements Amortization 2019 One Year

Series 2016 Educational
 Facilities Revenue
 Bonds, net of 
 unamortized discount
 of $ 263,570 $ 19,121,668   $ -                $ 1,085,000 $ 9,762 $ 18,046,430 $ 280,000
Capital lease, equipment 263,342 -                263,342 -               -                 -               
Note payable 700,000 -                204,878      -               495,122 204,878      
Compensated
 absences 16,294 6,153            9,465           -               12,982           9,737           

$ 20,101,304   $ 6,153            $ 1,562,685   $ 9,762           $ 18,554,534   $ 494,615      

 
 
Note 10 - Commitments  

 
Land Lease Agreement:  Concurrent with the Series 2016 Bond issuance (Note 8), Red Apple 
Development, LLC and subsidiaries (“RAD”) entered into two land lease agreements with FCEF.  The 
land which is owned by RAD is leased by FCEF on behalf of the schools under a 45-year lease.  In 
addition to rent, FCEF shall pay to RAD the total cost of ad valorem taxes, assessments and levies 
imposed upon the premises.  Total cost to the School for the lease was $ 113,509 for the year 
ended June 30, 2019. 

Page 174 of 334

DRAFT



 

24 

Clay Charter Academy 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
June 30, 2019 
 
 
Note 10 - Commitments (continued) 

 
The following is a schedule of the School’s future base rent payments as of June 30, 2019: 

Year Ending
June 30,

2020 $ 115,781
2021 118,094
2022 120,457
2023 122,866
2024 125,325

2025-2029 665,236
2030-2034 734,470
2035-2039 810,909
2040-2044 895,313
2045-2049 988,491
2050-2054 1,091,374
2055-2059 1,204,955
2060-2062 625,946

$ 7,619,217
 

Management agreement:  The School has a formal agreement with Charter Schools USA, Inc. 
(“CSUSA”) to manage, staff, and operate the School.  The agreement has an initial term which 
expires in June 2021.  It will automatically renew for five-year periods unless terminated by either 
party.  The agreement states that CSUSA shall be entitled to cost reimbursements and 
management fees (the “fee”) for its services, subject to availability of funds.  The fee is 
subordinated to all bond payment requirements (Note 8).  The fee ranges from $ 558,047 for fiscal 
year 2020 to $ 2,255,779 for fiscal year 2046 as defined in the agreement or the budgeted amount 
approved by the Board of Directors based on enrollment and School performance. 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2019, there was no compensation received by CSUSA and CSUSA 
contributed $ 1,460,000 to the School.  
 
The School had an amount of $ 324,641 due to CSUSA for the year ending June 30, 2019 for 
expenses paid on behalf of the School.   
 
Post-retirement benefits:  The School does not provide post-retirement benefits to retired 
employees. 

 
 

Page 175 of 334

DRAFT



 

25 

Clay Charter Academy 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
June 30, 2019 
 
 
Note 11 - Employee Benefit Plan 

 
During the year ended June 30, 2019, the School offered all of its full-time employees who had 
attained 21 years of age, a retirement plan (the “Plan”) under Internal Revenue Code Section 
401(k).  The employee is allowed to contribute up to a maximum of 100% of his/her annual gross 
compensation, subject to certain limitations.  The Plan provides for a discretionary employer 
matching contribution of the participant’s annual elective deferral to the Plan.  As determined 
annually by the School’s management, the School may also make a discretionary profit sharing 
contribution, which is allocated among the participants based on a pro rata formula.  Participants 
are immediately vested in their own contributions and earnings on those contributions.  
Participants become vested in School contributions and earnings on School contributions according 
to the following schedule: 
 
 Years of Service Vesting Percentage 
 1 25% 
 2 50% 
 3 75% 
 4 100% 
 
Nonvested contributions are forfeited upon termination of employment and such forfeitures are 
used to reduce any employer contribution.  For the year ended June 30, 2019, the School 
contributed a matching amount of $ 6,148. 

 
 
Note 12 - Capital Appropriations Funding 

 
The Florida Department of Education has approved a Charter School Capital Outlay (CSCO) award 
for the School.  In each year that funds are appropriated by the state for charter school capital 
outlay purposes, those funds are allocated among eligible charter schools.  The funds for the 
School’s allocation are transferred to the School once a CSCO Plan has been provided to and 
approved by the sponsoring district.  The School’s CSCO award totaled $ 282,783 for the 2018/2019 
school year, which has been recognized as revenue in the accompanying basic financial statements.  
If the CSCO funds are used to acquire tangible property assets, the School Board has a reversionary 
interest in those assets.  In the event of non-renewal, termination, or breach of the charter school 
agreement, ownership of the assets would automatically revert to the School Board.  The School 
has elected to use these funds to pay a portion of the interest expense on the bonds.  
 
 

Note 13 - Risk Financing 
 
The School is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, thefts of, damage to, and destruction 
of assets and natural disasters. The School has obtained property insurance from commercial 
companies including, but not limited to, general liability and errors and omissions insurance.  There 
have been no claims in excess of insurance coverage limits during the past three years. 
 
As disclosed in Note 10, CSUSA employs all of the employees of the School.  As a result, the School 
is not exposed to medical or workers’ compensation claims for these individuals.  In addition, 
CSUSA carries all required insurance including, but not limited to, general liability and errors and 
omissions insurance. 

Page 176 of 334

DRAFT



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

OTHER INDEPENDENT 
AUDITOR’S REPORTS  

Page 177 of 334

DRAFT



KMCcpa.com  |  6550 N Federal Hwy, 4th Floor   Fort Lauderdale, FL 33308   Phone: 954.771.0896   Fax: 954.938.9353

 

26 

 
 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER 

MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
 
To the Board of Directors 
Clay Charter Academy 
A Department of Florida Charter Educational Foundation, Inc. 
Middleburg, Florida 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Clay Charter Academy 
(the “School”), a Department of Florida Charter Educational Foundation, Inc. and a component unit of 
the School Board of Clay County, Florida, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related 
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the School’s basic financial statements, 
and have issued our report thereon dated August 26, 2019. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the School’s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s 
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal 
control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention 
by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of 
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
 
 
 

Page 178 of 334

DRAFT



 

27 

Clay Charter Academy 
 
 
Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School’s financial statements are free 
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion 
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not 
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other 
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
 
KEEFE McCULLOUGH  
 
 
Fort Lauderdale, Florida 
August 26, 2019 
 

Page 179 of 334

DRAFT



KMCcpa.com  |  6550 N Federal Hwy, 4th Floor   Fort Lauderdale, FL 33308   Phone: 954.771.0896   Fax: 954.938.9353

 

28 

 
 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
 
To the Board of Directors 
Clay Charter Academy 
A Department of Florida Charter Educational Foundation, Inc. 
Middleburg, Florida 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the financial statements of Clay Charter Academy (the “School”), a component unit of 
the School Board of Clay County, Florida, as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, and have 
issued our report thereon dated August 26, 2019. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and Chapter 10.850, Rules of the 
Auditor General.   
 
Other Reporting Requirements 
 
We have issued our Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on 
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of the Financial Statements Performed in 
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards.  Disclosures in that report, which is dated August 26, 
2019, should be considered in conjunction with this management letter. 
 
Prior Audit Findings 
 
Section 10.854(1)(e)1., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or not 
corrective actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in the preceding 
annual financial audit report.  There were no recommendations made in the preceding audit report. 
 
Official Title 
 
Section 10.854(1)(e)5., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that the name or official title of the 
entity and the school code assigned by the Florida Department of Education be disclosed in this 
management letter.  The official title and the school code assigned by the Florida Department of 
Education are Clay Charter Academy and 100664. 
 
 

Page 180 of 334

DRAFT



 

29 

Clay Charter Academy 
 
 
Financial Condition and Management 
 
Sections 10.854(1)(e)2. and 10.855(11), Rules of the Auditor General, require us to apply appropriate 
procedures and communicate whether or not the School has met one or more of the conditions 
described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes, and to identify the specific condition(s) met.  In 
connection with our audit, we determined that the School did not meet any of the conditions 
described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes. 
 
Pursuant to Sections 10.854(1)(e)6.a. and 10.855(12), Rules of the Auditor General, we applied 
financial condition assessment procedures for the School.  It is management’s responsibility to monitor 
the School’s financial condition, and our financial condition assessment was based in part on 
representations made by management and the review of financial information provided by same. 
 
Section 10.854(1)(e)3., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we communicate any 
recommendations to improve financial management.  In connection with our audit, we did not have 
any such recommendations. 
 
Transparency 
 
Sections 10.854(1)(e)7. and 10.855(13), Rules of the Auditor General, require us to apply appropriate 
procedures and communicate the results of our determination as to whether the School maintains on 
its website the information specified in Section 1002.33(9)(p), Florida Statutes.  In connection with our 
audit, we determined that the School maintained on its website the information specified in Section 
1002.33(9)(p), Florida Statutes. 
 
Additional Matters 
 
Section 10.854(1)(e)4., Rules of the Auditor General, requires us to communicate noncompliance with 
provisions of contracts or grant agreements, or abuse, that have occurred, or are likely to have 
occurred, that have an effect on the financial statements that is less than material but which warrants 
the attention of those charged with governance.  In connection with our audit, we did not have any 
such findings. 
 
Purpose of this Letter 
 
Our management letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Legislative Auditing 
Committee, members of the Florida Senate and the Florida House of Representatives, the Florida 
Auditor General, Federal and other granting agencies, the Board of Directors and applicable 
management and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified 
parties. 
 
 
 
 
KEEFE McCULLOUGH  
 
 
Fort Lauderdale, Florida 
August 26, 2019 

Page 181 of 334

DRAFT



Page 182 of 334

DRAFT



Page 183 of 334

DRAFT



Page 184 of 334

DRAFT



Page 185 of 334

DRAFT



Page 186 of 334

DRAFT



Page 187 of 334

DRAFT



Page 188 of 334

DRAFT



Page 189 of 334

DRAFT



Page 190 of 334

DRAFT



Page 191 of 334

DRAFT



Page 192 of 334

DRAFT



Page 193 of 334

DRAFT



Page 194 of 334

DRAFT



Page 195 of 334

DRAFT



Page 196 of 334

DRAFT



Page 197 of 334

DRAFT



Page 198 of 334

DRAFT



Page 199 of 334

DRAFT



Page 200 of 334

DRAFT



Page 201 of 334

DRAFT



Page 202 of 334

DRAFT



Page 203 of 334

DRAFT



Page 204 of 334

DRAFT



Page 205 of 334

DRAFT



Page 206 of 334

DRAFT



Page 207 of 334

DRAFT



Page 208 of 334

DRAFT



Page 209 of 334

DRAFT



Page 210 of 334

DRAFT



Page 211 of 334

DRAFT



Page 212 of 334

DRAFT



Page 213 of 334

DRAFT



Page 214 of 334

DRAFT



Page 215 of 334

DRAFT



FLORIDA CYBER CHARTER
ACADEMY AT CLAY

(A CHARTER SCHOOL UNDER NORTHEAST
VIRTUAL CHARTER SCHOOL BOARD, INC.)

A Charter School and Component Unit of the
District School Board of Clay County, Florida

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

for the fiscal year ended JUNE 30, 2019

King & Walker, CPAs, PL
______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Certified Public Accountants

Page 216 of 334

DRAFT



THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK.

Page 217 of 334

DRAFT



FLORIDA CYBER CHARTER ACADEMY AT CLAY
(A CHARTER SCHOOL UNDER NORTHEAST VIRTUAL CHARTER SCHOOL BOARD, INC.)

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PAGE
NO.

FINANCIAL SECTION

Independent Auditor’s Report 1

Management’s Discussion and Analysis – (Unaudited) 3

Basic Financial Statements

Government-Wide Financial Statements:
Statement of Net Position 8
Statement of Activities 9

Fund Financial Statements:
Balance Sheet – Governmental Funds 10
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -

Governmental Funds 11
Notes to Financial Statements 12

Other Required Supplementary Information
Budgetary Comparison Schedule – General Fund – (Unaudited) 21
Note to Required Supplementary Information 22

COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Governmental Auditing Standards 23

Management Letter as required by Rules of the Florida Auditor General,
Chapter 10.850, Florida Statutes, Charter School Audits. 25

Page 218 of 334

DRAFT



- 1 -

Members: 2803 W. Busch Blvd Ste 106
Florida Institute of CPAs Tampa, FL 33618
American Institute of CPAs office (813) 892-4274 fax (813) 932-1913
Government Audit Quality Center www.KingandWalker.com

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors of Florida Cyber Charter Academy at Clay
(A charter school under Northeast Virtual Charter School Board, Inc.)

a Charter School and Component Unit of the District
School Board of Clay County, Florida

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of Florida Cyber Charter Academy at Clay (“School”), a
charter school under Northeast Virtual Charter School Board, Inc. and component unit of the District
School Board of Clay County, Florida, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the School’s basic financial statements as listed in
the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governmental Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the School’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the School’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Page 219 of 334

DRAFT



- 2 -

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of Florida Cyber Charter Academy at Clay, as of June 30, 2019, and the respective
changes in financial position thereof for the year ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As described in Note 1, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present only the
financial position of Florida Cyber Charter Academy at Clay at June 30, 2019, and the respective changes
in financial position for the year then ended, and is not intended to be a complete presentation of
Northeast Virtual Charter School Board, Inc. These financial statements do not purport to and do not
present fairly the financial position of Northeast Virtual Charter School Board, Inc. as of June 30, 2019
and its changes in financial position for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s
Discussion and Analysis, the Budgetary Comparison Schedule, and Note to Required Supplementary
Information, as shown in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historic context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency
with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 10,
2019 on our consideration of Florida Cyber Charter Academy at Clay’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide
an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Florida Cyber
Charter Academy at Clay’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Respectfully submitted,

September 10, 2019
Tampa, Florida

Page 220 of 334

DRAFT



- 3 -

FLORIDA CYBER CHARTER ACADEMY AT CLAY
(A CHARTER SCHOOL UNDER NORTHEAST VIRTUAL CHARTER SCHOOL BOARD, INC.)

A Charter School and Component Unit of the District School Board of Clay County, Florida

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - (Unaudited)
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section of the annual financial report of
Florida Cyber Charter Academy at Clay (“School”) provides an overview of the School’s
activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019.

Because the information contained in the MD&A is intended to highlight significant
transactions, events, and conditions, it should be considered in conjunction with the School’s
financial statements and notes to financial statements, as listed in the table of contents.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

 For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, the School’s expenses exceeded revenue by
$6,627, as shown on the School’s statement of activities.

 Total assets were $124,604 and total liabilities were $115,993 as of June 30, 2019.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements consist of three components:

 Government-wide financial statements

 Fund financial statements

 Notes to financial statements

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements provide both short-term and long-term information
about the School’s overall financial condition in a manner similar to those of a private-sector
business. The statements include a statement of net position and a statement of activities that are
designed to provide consolidated financial information about the governmental activities of the
School presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The statement of net position provides
information about the government’s financial position, its assets and liabilities, using an
economic resources measurement focus. The difference between the assets and liabilities, the
net position, is a measure of the financial health of the School. The statement of activities
presents information about the change in the School’s net position and the results of operations,
during the fiscal year. An increase or decrease in net position is an indication of whether the
School’s financial health is improving or deteriorating. To assess the overall financial position
of the School, one needs to consider additional non-financial factors such as changes in the
School student base funding level.

Page 221 of 334

DRAFT



- 4 -

FLORIDA CYBER CHARTER ACADEMY AT CLAY
(A CHARTER SCHOOL UNDER NORTHEAST VIRTUAL CHARTER SCHOOL BOARD, INC.)

A Charter School and Component Unit of the District School Board of Clay County, Florida

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - (Unaudited)
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements are one of the components of the basic financial statements. A fund is
a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. Fund financial statements provide more detailed
information about the School’s financial activities, focusing on its most significant funds rather
than fund types. This is in contrast to the entity-wide perspective contained in the government-
wide statements.

Governmental Funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, the
governmental funds utilize a spendable financial resources measurement focus rather than the
economic resources measurement focus found in the government-wide financial statements. The
financial resources measurement focus allows the governmental fund statements to provide
information on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources as well as balances of
spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year.

The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view that may be used to
evaluate the School’s near-term financing requirements. This short-term view is useful when
compared to the long-term view presented as governmental activities in the government-wide
financial statements. To facilitate this comparison, both the governmental funds balance sheet
and the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances
provide a reconciliation of governmental fund to governmental activities.

The governmental funds balance sheet and statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in
fund balances provide detailed information about the School’s most significant funds. The
School operates one fund; a General Fund. For reporting purposes, the General Fund is
considered a major fund.

The School adopts an annual budget for its governmental funds. A budgetary comparison
schedule, as required, has been provided for the General Fund to demonstrate compliance with
the budget.

Notes to Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential for a full understanding of the data
provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Page 222 of 334

DRAFT



- 5 -

FLORIDA CYBER CHARTER ACADEMY AT CLAY
(A CHARTER SCHOOL UNDER NORTHEAST VIRTUAL CHARTER SCHOOL BOARD, INC.)

A Charter School and Component Unit of the District School Board of Clay County, Florida

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - (Unaudited)
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

The following is a summary of the School’s current year and prior year net position:

6-30-18 6-30-19

Increase

(Decrease)

ASSETS

Current and Other Assets 384,064$ 124,604$ (259,460)$

Total Assets 384,064 124,604 (259,460)

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities 368,826 115,993 (252,833)

Total Liabilities 368,826 115,993 (252,833)

NET POSITION

Unrestricted 15,238 8,611 (6,627)

Total Net Position 15,238$ 8,611$ (6,627)$

Governmental Activities

Net Position, End of Year

The School’s current assets primarily consist of cash and cash equivalents and amounts due from
the District School Board of Clay County. Liabilities are comprised of accounts payable and
accrued expenses.

Page 223 of 334

DRAFT



- 6 -

FLORIDA CYBER CHARTER ACADEMY AT CLAY
(A CHARTER SCHOOL UNDER NORTHEAST VIRTUAL CHARTER SCHOOL BOARD, INC.)

A Charter School and Component Unit of the District School Board of Clay County, Florida

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - (Unaudited)
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

The following is a summary of the School’s change in net position for the current year and prior
year:

6-30-18 6-30-19

Increase

(Decrease)

Revenues:

State Sources 507,932$ 287,020$ (220,912)$

Local and Other 87,577 337,399 249,822

Total Revenues 595,509 624,419 28,910

Expenses:

Instruction 121,167 152,246 31,079

Pupil Personnel Services 21,015 37,116 16,101

Instructional Curriculum Development 221,270 281,317 60,047

Instructional Staff Training 3,231 6,042 2,811

Instructional Related Technology 44,763 40,852 (3,911)

Board of Education 9,081 13,690 4,609

General Administration 25,396 14,351 (11,045)

School Administration 127,476 73,405 (54,071)

Fiscal Services 355 318 (37)

Operation of Plant 9,284 11,603 2,319

Maintenance of Plant 74 106 32

Total Expenses 583,112 631,046 47,934

Increase/(Decrease) in Net Position 12,397$ (6,627)$ (19,024)$

Governmental Activities

Operating Results for the Year

Revenues from State sources for current operations are primarily received through the Florida
Education Finance Program (FEFP) funding formula. The FEFP formula utilizes student
enrollment data to determine the funds available for the School.

The largest concentration of expenses are for instructional related expenses, which accounted for
82% of total expenditures.

Page 224 of 334

DRAFT



- 7 -

FLORIDA CYBER CHARTER ACADEMY AT CLAY
(A CHARTER SCHOOL UNDER NORTHEAST VIRTUAL CHARTER SCHOOL BOARD, INC.)

A Charter School and Component Unit of the District School Board of Clay County, Florida

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - (Unaudited)
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE SCHOOL’S FUNDS

Governmental Funds

As the School completed the year, its governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of
$8,611.

BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The general fund budget for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, was developed based on the
School’s anticipated revenues and expenditures and the expected student population for the
school year. Over the course of the year, the school revised its general fund budget several
times. See the Budgetary Comparison Schedule for additional information.

CAPITAL ASSETS

The School’s budget for the this fiscal year of operations did not include plans for any
investment in capital assets; therefore, there are no capital assets to report for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2019.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of Florida Cyber Charter
Academy at Clay’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this
report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Florida Cyber
Charter Academy at Clay, 9143 Philips Highway, Suite 590, Jacksonville, FL 32256.

Page 225 of 334

DRAFT



Cash & Cash Equivalents $ 58,668

Due From Other Agency 64,990

Accounts Receivable 47

Prepaid Expenses 899

TOTAL ASSETS 124,604

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 115,993

TOTAL LIABILITIES 115,993

Unrestricted 8,611

TOTAL NET POSITION $ 8,611

FLORIDA CYBER CHARTER ACADEMY AT CLAY

A CHARTER SCHOOL AND COMPONENT UNIT OF THE

DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY, FLORIDA

Governmental
Activities

LIABILITIES

VIRTUAL CHARTER SCHOOL BOARD, INC.)

(A CHARTER SCHOOL UNDER NORTHEAST FLORIDA

NET POSITION

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2019

ASSETS

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

- 8 -
Page 226 of 334

DRAFT



Net (Expenses)

Revenue

and Changes in

Charges Operating Capital Net Position

Expenses for Grants and Grants and Governmental

Services Contributions Contributions Activities

Governmental Activities:

Instruction $ 152,246 $ - $ - $ - $ (152,246)

Pupil Personnel Services 37,116 (37,116)

Instructional Curriculum Development 281,317 (281,317)

Instructional Staff Training 6,042 (6,042)

Instructional Related Technology 40,852 (40,852)

Board of Education 13,690 (13,690)

General Administration 14,351 (14,351)

School Administration 73,405 (73,405)

Fiscal Services 318 (318)

Operation of Plant 11,603 (11,603)

Maintenance of Plant 106 (106)

Total Governmental Activities $ 631,046 $ - $ - $ - (631,046)

General Revenues:

State Sources 287,020

Local and Other 337,399

Total General Revenues 624,419

Change in Net Position (6,627)

Net Position - July 1, 2018 15,238

Net Position - June 30, 2019 $ 8,611

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019

Program Revenues

FLORIDA CYBER CHARTER ACADEMY AT CLAY

A CHARTER SCHOOL AND COMPONENT UNIT OF THE

DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

(A CHARTER SCHOOL UNDER NORTHEAST FLORIDA

VIRTUAL CHARTER SCHOOL BOARD, INC.)

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

- 9 -
Page 227 of 334

DRAFT



Cash & Cash Equivalents $ 58,668

Due From Other Agency 64,990

Accounts Receivable 47

Prepaid Expenses 899

Total Assets $ 124,604

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses $ 115,993

Total Liabilities 115,993

Nonspendable 899

Unassigned 7,712

Total Fund Balance 8,611

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 124,604

General

(A CHARTER SCHOOL UNDER NORTHEAST FLORIDA

VIRTUAL CHARTER SCHOOL BOARD, INC.)

FUND BALANCE

Fund

ASSETS

LIABILITIES

FLORIDA CYBER CHARTER ACADEMY AT CLAY

A CHARTER SCHOOL AND COMPONENT UNIT OF THE

DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY, FLORIDA

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 30, 2019

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

- 10 -
Page 228 of 334

DRAFT



Intergovernmental:

State Sources $ 287,020

Local and Other 337,399

Total Revenues 624,419

Current - Education:

Instruction 152,246

Pupil Personnel Services 37,116

Instructional Curriculum Development 281,317

Instructional Staff Training 6,042

Instructional Related Technology 40,852

Board of Education 13,690

General Administration 14,351

School Administration 73,405

Fiscal Services 318

Operation of Plant 11,603

Maintenance of Plant 106

Total Expenditures 631,046

Net Change in Fund Balance (6,627)

Fund Balance, July 1, 2018 15,238

Fund Balance, June 30, 2019 $ 8,611

General

Fund

Revenues

Expenditures

(A CHARTER SCHOOL UNDER NORTHEAST FLORIDA

FLORIDA CYBER CHARTER ACADEMY AT CLAY

A CHARTER SCHOOL AND COMPONENT UNIT OF THE

DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019

VIRTUAL CHARTER SCHOOL BOARD, INC.)

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

- 11 -
Page 229 of 334

DRAFT



FLORIDA CYBER CHARTER ACADEMY AT CLAY
(A CHARTER SCHOOL UNDER NORTHEAST VIRTUAL CHARTER SCHOOL BOARD, INC.)

A Charter School and Component Unit of the District School Board of Clay County, Florida

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2019

- 12 -

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 Reporting Entity

Florida Cyber Charter Academy at Clay (“School”), formerly known as Florida
Virtual Academy at Clay, a charter school under Northeast Virtual Charter School
Board, Inc., is a component of the District School Board of Clay County, Florida
(“District”). The School’s charter is held by Northeast Virtual Charter School
Board, Inc., a not-for-profit corporation organized pursuant to Chapter 617,
Florida Statutes, the Florida Not-For-Profit Corporation Act. The governing body
of the School is the not-for-profit corporation Board of Directors, which is
comprised of not less than three members.

The basic financial statements of the School present only the balances, activity
and disclosures related to the School. They do not purport to, and do not, present
fairly the financial position of Northeast Virtual Charter School Board, Inc. as of
June 30, 2019, and its changes in financial position or budgetary comparisons,
where applicable, for the year then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

The general operating authority of the School is contained in Section 1002.33,
Florida Statutes. The School operates under a charter of the sponsoring school
district, the District School Board of Clay County, Florida, (“District”). The
current charter is effective until June 30, 2024, and may be renewed by mutual
written agreement between the School and the District. At the end of the term of
the charter, the District may choose not to renew the charter under grounds
specified in the charter. In this case, the District is required to notify the school in
writing at least 90 days prior to the charter’s expiration. During the term of the
charter, the District may also terminate the charter if good cause is shown. In the
event of termination of the charter, any property purchased by the School with
public funds and any unencumbered public funds, except capital outlay funds,
revert back to the District. Any unencumbered capital outlay funds revert back to
the Florida Department of Education to be redistributed among eligible charter
schools. The School is considered a component unit of the District; therefore, for
financial reporting purposes, the School is required to follow generally accepted
accounting principles applicable to state and local governmental units.

Criteria for determining if other entities are potential component units which
should be reported within the School's basic financial statements are identified
and described in the Governmental Accounting Standards Board's (GASB)
Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards,
Sections 2100 and 2600. The application of these criteria provides for
identification of any entities for which the School is financially accountable and
other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with
the School are such that exclusion would cause the School's basic financial

Page 230 of 334

DRAFT



FLORIDA CYBER CHARTER ACADEMY AT CLAY
(A CHARTER SCHOOL UNDER NORTHEAST VIRTUAL CHARTER SCHOOL BOARD, INC.)

A Charter School and Component Unit of the District School Board of Clay County, Florida

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2019

- 13 -

statements to be misleading or incomplete. Based on these criteria, no component
units are included within the reporting entity of the School.

 Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Financial Statements - Government-wide financial statements,
including the statement of net position and the statement of activities, present
information about the School as a whole.

Government-wide financial statements are prepared using the economic resources
measurement focus. The statement of activities presents a comparison between
direct expenses and program revenues for each function or program of the
School’s governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically
associated with a service, program, or department and are thereby clearly
identifiable to a particular function.

Program revenues include charges paid by the recipient of the goods or services
offered by the program and grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting
the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are
not classified as program revenues are presented as general revenues. The
comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to
which each governmental function is self-financing or draws from the general
revenues of the School.

Fund Financial Statements - Fund financial statements report detailed information
about the School in the governmental funds. The focus of governmental fund
financial statements is on major funds rather than reporting funds by type. Each
major fund is reported in a separate column. Because the focus of governmental
fund financial statements differs from the focus of government-wide financial
statements, a reconciliation is presented with each of the governmental fund
financial statements.

The School’s major governmental fund is as follows:

 General Fund – to account for all financial resources not required to be
accounted for in another fund, and for certain revenues from the State that are
legally restricted to be expended for specific current operating purposes.

 Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures, or expenses, are
recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis of
accounting relates to the timing of the measurements made, regardless of the
measurement focus applied.

The government-wide financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized
when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows.
Revenues from grants, entitlements, and donations are recognized in the fiscal

Page 231 of 334

DRAFT



FLORIDA CYBER CHARTER ACADEMY AT CLAY
(A CHARTER SCHOOL UNDER NORTHEAST VIRTUAL CHARTER SCHOOL BOARD, INC.)

A Charter School and Component Unit of the District School Board of Clay County, Florida

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2019

- 14 -

year in which all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been
satisfied.

Governmental fund financial statements are prepared using the modified accrual
basis of accounting. Revenues, except for certain grant revenues, are recognized
when they become measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be
available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough
thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. The School considers revenues
to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal
year. When grant terms provide that the expenditure of resources is the prime
factor for determining eligibility for Federal, State, and other grant resources,
revenue is recognized at the time the expenditure is made. Under the modified
accrual basis of accounting, expenditures are generally recognized when the
related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on long-term
debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences, which are recognized
when due. Allocations of cost, such as depreciation, are not recognized in
governmental funds.

 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are held by banks qualified as public depositories
under Florida law. All deposits are insured by federal depository insurance and
collateralized with securities held in Florida’s multiple financial institution
collateral pool as required by Chapter 280, Florida Statutes. The School’s cash
consists primarily of demand deposits with financial institutions.

 Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of
net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an
outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The School does not have
any items that qualify for reporting in this category.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report
a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net
position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an
inflow of resources (revenue) until then. The School does not have any items that
qualify for reporting in this category.

 Net Position and Fund Balance Classification

Government-wide Financial Statements

Net Position are classified and reported in three components:

 Net Investment in Capital Assets – consists of capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation, and reduced by the outstanding balances of any

Page 232 of 334

DRAFT



FLORIDA CYBER CHARTER ACADEMY AT CLAY
(A CHARTER SCHOOL UNDER NORTHEAST VIRTUAL CHARTER SCHOOL BOARD, INC.)

A Charter School and Component Unit of the District School Board of Clay County, Florida

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2019

- 15 -

borrowings that are attributed to the acquisition or improvement of those
assets.

 Restricted Net Position – consists of net position with constraints placed
on their use either by external groups such as creditors, contributors, or
laws or regulations of other governments.

 Unrestricted Net Position – all other net position that does not meet the
definition of “restricted” or “net investment in capital assets.”

Fund Financial Statements

GASB Codification Section 1800.142, Fund Balance Reporting and
Governmental Fund Type Definitions, defines the different types of fund balances
that a governmental entity must use for financial reporting purposes. GASB
requires the fund balance amounts to be reported within one of the following fund
balance categories:

 Nonspendable – fund balance associated with inventories, prepaid
expenses, long-term loans and notes receivable, and property held for
resale (unless the proceeds are restricted, committed or assigned). All
nonspendable fund balances at year end relate to assets that are in
nonspendable form.

 Restricted – fund balance that can be spent only for the specific purposes
stipulated by the constitution, external resource providers, or through
enabling legislation.

 Committed – fund balance that can be used only for the specific purposes
determined by a formal action of the School’s Board of Governance.

 Assigned – fund balance that is intended to be used by the School’s
management for specific purposes but does not meet the criteria to be
classified as restricted or committed.

 Unassigned – fund balance that is the residual amount for the School’s
general fund and includes all spendable amounts not contained in the other
classifications.

 Order of Fund Balance Spending Policy

The School’s policy is to apply expenditures against nonspendable fund balance,
restricted fund balance, committed fund balance, assigned fund balance, and
unassigned fund balance at the end of the fiscal year. First, nonspendable fund
balances are determined. Then restricted fund balances for specific purposes are
determined (not including nonspendable amounts). Any remaining fund balance
amounts for the non-general funds are to be classified as restricted fund balance.
It is possible for the non-general funds to be classified as restricted fund balance.
It is possible for the non-general funds to have negative unassigned fund balance
when nonspendable amounts plus the amount of restricted fund balances for
specific purposes exceed the positive fund balance for non-general fund.

Page 233 of 334

DRAFT



FLORIDA CYBER CHARTER ACADEMY AT CLAY
(A CHARTER SCHOOL UNDER NORTHEAST VIRTUAL CHARTER SCHOOL BOARD, INC.)

A Charter School and Component Unit of the District School Board of Clay County, Florida

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2019

- 16 -

 Revenue Sources

Revenues for current operations are received primarily from the District pursuant
to the funding provisions included in the School’s charter. In accordance with the
funding provisions of the charter and Section 1002.33(17), Florida Statutes, the
School reports the number of full-time equivalent students and related data to the
District.

Under provisions of Section 1011.62, Florida Statutes, the District reports the
number of full-time equivalent students and related data to the Florida
Department of Education (FDOE) for funding through the Florida Education
Finance Program (FEFP). Funding for the School is adjusted during the year to
reflect the revised calculations by the FDOE under the FEFP and the actual
weighted full-time equivalent (FTE) students reported by the School during
designated full-time equivalent student survey periods. The Department may also
adjust subsequent fiscal period allocations based upon an audit of the School's
compliance in determining and reporting FTE and related data. Normally, such
adjustments are treated as reductions or additions of revenue in the year when the
adjustments are made.

The basic amount of funding through the FEFP under Section 1011.62 is the
product of the (1) unweighted FTE, multiplied by (2) the cost factor for each
program, multiplied by (3) the base student allocation established by the
legislature. Additional funds for exceptional students who do not have a matrix of
services are provided through the guaranteed allocation designated in Section
1011.62(1)(e)2., Florida Statutes. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, the
School reported 75.46 unweighted FTE and 75.46 weighted FTE.

FEFP funding may also be adjusted as a result of subsequent FTE audits
conducted by the Florida Auditor General pursuant to Section 1010.305, Florida
Statutes, and Rule 6A-1.0453, Florida Administrative Code (FAC). Schools are
required to maintain the following documentation for three years or until the
completion of an FTE audit:

 Attendance and membership documentation (Rule 6A-1.044, FAC).
 Teacher certificates and other certification documentation (Rule 6A-1.0503,

FAC).
 Documentation for instructors teaching out-of-field (Rule 6A-1.0503, FAC).
 Procedural safeguards for weighted programs (Rule 6A-6.03411, FAC).
 Evaluation and planning documents for weighted programs (Section

1010.305, Florida Statutes, and Rule 6A-6.03411, FAC).

The School may receive federal or state awards for the enhancement of various
educational programs. This assistance is generally received based on applications
submitted to and approved by various granting agencies. For federal or state
awards in which a claim to these grant proceeds is based on incurring eligible

Page 234 of 334

DRAFT



FLORIDA CYBER CHARTER ACADEMY AT CLAY
(A CHARTER SCHOOL UNDER NORTHEAST VIRTUAL CHARTER SCHOOL BOARD, INC.)

A Charter School and Component Unit of the District School Board of Clay County, Florida

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2019

- 17 -

expenditures, revenue is recognized to the extent that eligible expenditures have
been incurred.

The School is also eligible for charter school capital outlay funding pursuant to
Section 1013.62, Florida Statutes. The amounts received under this program are
based on the School’s actual and projected student enrollment during the fiscal
year. Funds received under this program may only be used for lawful capital
outlay expenditures and, as such, are reflected as restricted Net Position and
reserved fund balance in the accompanying statement of Net Position and balance
sheet – governmental fund, respectively, to the extent that they remain
unexpended.

The School follows the policy of applying restricted resources prior to applying
unrestricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both
restricted and unrestricted assets are available.

 Allocation of Expenses

The School shares certain Instructional and Administrative expenses with other
Florida Virtual Academies under the same Management Company. These
expenses have been allocated between the Schools based on student enrollment.

Expenses that are subject to allocation include, but are not limited to the following
functional categories:

 Instruction
 School Administration

The process of the allocation of common expenses takes place when the expenses
are recorded based on a methodical and non-discriminatory basis.

 Income Taxes

The School is exempt from Federal tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes has been included in
the accompanying financial statements. Additionally, no uncertain tax positions
have been made requiring disclosure in the related notes to financial statements.
The School’s income tax returns for the past three years are subject to
examination by tax authorities and may change upon examination.

 Use of Estimates

In preparing the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles in the United States management is required to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
as of the date of the statement of net position and affect revenues and
expenditures for the period presented. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Page 235 of 334

DRAFT



FLORIDA CYBER CHARTER ACADEMY AT CLAY
(A CHARTER SCHOOL UNDER NORTHEAST VIRTUAL CHARTER SCHOOL BOARD, INC.)

A Charter School and Component Unit of the District School Board of Clay County, Florida

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2019

- 18 -

 Subsequent Events

Management has evaluated all events subsequent to the balance sheet date and
through the report date, which is the date these financial statements were available
to be issued. Management determined there are no subsequent events which
require disclosure.

2. CASH DEPOSITS

Custodial Credit Risk – Deposits. In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event
of a bank failure, the School’s deposits may not be returned to the School. The School
does not have a custodial credit risk policy. All cash deposits are held in banks that
qualify as public depositories under Florida law. All such deposits are insured by federal
depository insurance and/or collateralized with securities held in Florida’s multiple
financial institution collateral pool as required by Chapter 280, Florida Statutes.

3. DUE FROM OTHER AGENCY

Amounts Due from Other Agency included in the accompanying statement of Net
Position and balance sheet – governmental funds consists of amounts due from the Clay
County District School Board for FEFP funds. This receivable is considered to be fully
collectible and as such, no allowance for uncollectible is accrued.

4. SCHEDULE OF STATE REVENUE SOURCES

The following is a schedule of the School’s State revenue:

Source Amount
Florida Education Finance Program 287,020$

Total State Revenue 287,020$

As provided in the charter school contract, the District has charged the School an
administrative fee totaling $19,733.

5. FUNDING AND CREDIT RISK CONCENTRATIONS

The School receives substantially all of its support and revenue from federal, state and
local funding sources, passed through the District, in the form of performance and
budget based contracts. Continuing operation of the School is greatly dependent upon
the continued support of these governmental agencies.

6. OPERATING AGREEMENTS

Educational Products and Services Agreement – The School entered into an
educational products and services agreement for the period July 1, 2014 to June 30,
2019, with K12 Florida, LLC (the “Company”). Thereafter, the agreement will
automatically renew consistent with the extension of the charter agreement unless either
party provides the other with written notice of non-renewal at least two years before the
expiration of the then current term or if other certain conditions are met resulting in an

Page 236 of 334

DRAFT



FLORIDA CYBER CHARTER ACADEMY AT CLAY
(A CHARTER SCHOOL UNDER NORTHEAST VIRTUAL CHARTER SCHOOL BOARD, INC.)

A Charter School and Component Unit of the District School Board of Clay County, Florida

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2019

- 19 -

earlier termination. During the term, K12 and Affiliates shall license to the School
solely for use in the School’s educational program, on a non-exclusive, non-assignable,
non-sub licensable basis, the products and offerings of K12 curriculum, access to its
online school and designated learning management systems and/or available third party
curriculum, instructional tools and other products and offerings collectively known as
Educational Products.

The contract further calls for the Company to be responsible and accountable to the
School’s Board for administrative and technology services, including operation and
performance of the School in accordance with the School’s charter contract, the
statement of mission and purpose, and the laws of the State of Florida. An
administrative services fee of 15% and a technology services fee of 7% of the School’s
Program Revenues compensate the Company for the services provided. Program
Revenues shall mean all revenues and income generated or appropriated for and received
by or on behalf of the School as attributed to any Student, the School or the Program
which includes, but is not limited to the following sources:

 Basic State Funding
 FEFP Funding
 Exceptional Education Funding
 Class Size Funding
 Safety Funding
 Income sources provided by state, federal and local law and/or obtained through

the Company’s efforts

Financial Matters – Regardless of the service fees described above under this
agreement, the Company assumes the risks, except as otherwise set forth in the
agreement, that its fees may not allow it: i) to operate profitably, and/or ii) to fully
recover the amounts invoiced by the Company to the School in accordance with the
agreement. In addition, the parties agree that the program will not conclude a fiscal
year during the agreement term in a negative net position. If the School ends a fiscal
year in a negative net position, the parties agree that the Company will provide sufficient
credits (“Balanced Budget Credits”) to be applied to the Company invoices to ensure
that the program does not experience a negative net position at the end of said fiscal
year. A typical balanced budget credit would reduce expenses charged from the
Company and reduce the payable balance due to the Company from the School.
Expenses to be reduced include curriculum expenses, materials expenses, computer lease
expenses, and the management and technology fees. Should the School end a fiscal year
in a positive net position, as evidenced by its audited financial statements, and the
Company has issued balanced budget credits in prior years for which a balance remains,
the School will reimburse the Company up to the cumulative amount of previously
issued balanced budget credits. In no single fiscal year will the amount of any
remittance exceed 50% of the then current fiscal year positive net position, as
determined by an independent audit before the payment of balanced budget credits. At
the end of the term, if there is a cumulative balance from prior years of balanced budget

Page 237 of 334

DRAFT



FLORIDA CYBER CHARTER ACADEMY AT CLAY
(A CHARTER SCHOOL UNDER NORTHEAST VIRTUAL CHARTER SCHOOL BOARD, INC.)

A Charter School and Component Unit of the District School Board of Clay County, Florida

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2019

- 20 -

credits which have not been remitted, such credits will be forgiven by the Company,
subject to the termination provisions of the agreement.

The School no longer reports its balanced budget credits as a reduction of expenses, but
as revenue from local sources. During the current fiscal year, the Company credited
$337,399 to the School as part of their balanced budget credit recognition and is
included in the local and other revenue reported in the statement of activities and the
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances – governmental
funds.

7. RISK MANAGEMENT PROGRAMS

The School is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the School
carries commercial insurance. There have been no significant reductions in insurance
coverage and settlement amounts have not exceeded insurance coverage for the current
year or the three prior years.

8. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The School participates in state grant programs, which are governed by various rules and
regulations of the grantor agencies. Costs charged to the respective grant programs are
subject to audit and adjustment by the grantor agencies, therefore, to the extent that the
School has not complied with the rules and regulations governing the grants, refunds of
any money received may be required and the collectability of any related receivables at
June 30, 2019, may be impaired.

In the opinion of the School, there are no significant liabilities relating to compliance
with the rules and regulations governing the respective grants; therefore, no provision
has been recorded in the accompanying financial statements for such contingencies.

9. LEGAL MATTERS

In the normal course of conducting its operations, the School occasionally becomes party
to various legal actions and proceedings. In the opinion of management, the ultimate
resolution of such legal matters will not have a significant adverse effect on the
accompanying financial statements.

Page 238 of 334

DRAFT



Variance with

Original Final Final Budget -

Budget Budget Actual Positive

(Negative)

Revenues:

Intergovernmental:

State Sources $ 296,077 $ 275,464 $ 287,020 $ 11,556

Local and Other 325,682 370,035 337,399 (32,636)

Total Revenues 621,759 645,499 624,419 (21,080)

Expenditures:

Current - Education:

Instruction 169,687 167,571 152,246 15,325

Pupil Personnel Services 12,712 17,614 37,116 (19,502)

Instructional Curriculum Development 246,386 277,385 281,317 (3,932)

Instructional Staff Training 7,736 5,787 6,042 (255)

Instructional Related Technology 48,760 51,447 40,852 10,595

Board of Education 52,001 35,333 13,690 21,643

General Administration 14,804 12,392 14,351 (1,959)

School Administration 50,469 55,801 73,405 (17,604)

Fiscal Services 103 358 318 40

Operation of Plant 18,823 21,578 11,603 9,975

Maintenance of Plant 278 233 106 127

Total Expenditures 621,759 645,499 631,046 14,326

Net Change in Fund Balance - - (6,627) (6,627)

Fund Balance, July 1, 2018 15,238 15,238 15,238 -

Fund Balance, June 30, 2019 $ 15,238 $ 15,238 $ 8,611 $ (6,627)

General Fund

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND - (UNAUDITED)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019

FLORIDA CYBER CHARTER ACADEMY AT CLAY

(A CHARTER SCHOOL UNDER NORTHEAST FLORIDA

VIRTUAL CHARTER SCHOOL BOARD, INC.)

A CHARTER SCHOOL AND COMPONENT UNIT OF THE

DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY, FLORIDA

See Independent Auditor's Report.

- 21 -

Page 239 of 334

DRAFT



FLORIDA CYBER CHARTER ACADEMY AT CLAY
(A CHARTER SCHOOL UNDER NORTHEAST VIRTUAL CHARTER SCHOOL BOARD, INC.)

A Charter School and Component Unit of the District School Board of Clay County, Florida

NOTE TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
June 30, 2019

- 22 -

1. BUDGETARY BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Budgets are presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. During the fiscal
year, expenditures were controlled at the object level (e.g., salaries and benefits,
purchased services, materials and supplies and capital outlay) within each activity (e.g.,
instruction, pupil personnel services and school administration). Budgets may be
amended by resolution at any Board meeting prior to the date for the annual report.

Page 240 of 334

DRAFT



- 23 -

Members: 2803 W. Busch Blvd Ste 106
Florida Institute of CPAs Tampa, FL 33618
American Institute of CPAs office (813) 892-4274 fax (813) 932-1913
Government Audit Quality Center www.KingandWalker.com

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed

in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

To the Board of Directors of Florida Cyber Charter Academy at Clay,
(A charter school under Northeast Virtual Charter School Board, Inc.)

a Charter School and Component Unit of the District
School Board of Clay County, Florida

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of Florida Cyber Charter Academy at Clay (“School”), a charter school under
Northeast Virtual Charter School Board, Inc. and component unit of the District School Board of
Clay County, Florida, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the School’s basic financial statements, and
have issued our report thereon dated September 10, 2019.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the School’s
internal control over financial reporting (“internal control”) to determine the audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
School’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
School’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the School’s financial statements will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency,
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness,
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Page 241 of 334

DRAFT



- 24 -

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School’s financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances
of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the School’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the School’s
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Respectfully submitted,

September 10, 2019
Tampa, Florida

Page 242 of 334

DRAFT



- 25 -

Members: 2803 W. Busch Blvd Ste 106
Florida Institute of CPAs Tampa, FL 33618
American Institute of CPAs office (813) 892-4274 fax (813) 932-1913
Government Audit Quality Center www.KingandWalker.com

Management Letter as Required by Rules of the Florida Auditor General,
Chapter 10.850, Florida Statutes, Charter School Audits

To the Board of Directors of Florida Cyber Charter Academy at Clay,
(A charter school under Northeast Virtual Charter School Board, Inc.)

a Charter School and Component Unit of the District
School Board of Clay County, Florida

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of the Florida Cyber Charter Academy at Clay,
(“School”), a charter school under Northeast Virtual Charter School Board, Inc. and component
unit of the District School Board of Clay County, Florida, as of and for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2019, and have issued our report thereon dated September 10, 2019.

Auditor’s Responsibility

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and Chapter 10.850, Rules of
the Auditor General.

Other Reporting Requirements

We have issued our Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of the Financial Statements Performed
in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. Disclosures in those reports and schedule,
which are dated September 10, 2019, should be considered in conjunction with this management
letter.

Prior Audit Findings

Section 10.854(1)(e)1., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or not
corrective actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in the
preceding annual financial audit report. There were no prior audit findings or recommendations.

Official Title

Section 10.854(1)(e)5., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that the name or official title of
the entity and the school code assigned by the Florida Department of Education be disclosed in
this management letter. The official title and the school code assigned by the Florida Department
of Education of the entity is Florida Cyber Charter Academy at Clay, 100663.

Page 243 of 334

DRAFT



- 26 -

Financial Condition and Management

Sections 10.854(1)(e)2. and 10.855(11), Rules of the Auditor General, require us to apply
appropriate procedures and communicate whether or not the School has met one or more of the
conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes, and to identify the specific
condition(s) met. In connection with our audit, we determined that the School did not meet any of
the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes.

Pursuant to Sections 10.854(1)(e)6.a. and 10.855(12), Rules of the Auditor General, we applied
financial condition assessment procedures for the School. It is management’s responsibility to
monitor the School’s financial condition, and our financial condition assessment was based in
part on representations made by management and review of financial information provided by
same. Section 10.854(1)(e)3., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we communicate
any recommendations to improve financial management. In connection with our audit, we did
not have any such recommendations.

Transparency

Sections 10.854(1)(e)7. and 10.855(13), Rules of the Auditor General, require us to apply
appropriate procedures and communicate the results of our determination as to whether the
School maintains on its Web site the information specified in Section 1002.33(9)(p), Florida
Statutes. In connection with our audit, we determined that the School maintained on its Web site
the information specified in Section 1002.33(9)(p), Florida Statutes.

Additional Matters

Section 10.854(1)(e)3., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we address in the
management letter any recommendations to improve financial management. In connection with
our audit, we did not have any such recommendations.

Section 10.854(1)(e)4., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we address noncompliance
with provisions of contracts or grant agreements, or abuse, that have occurred, or are likely to
have occurred, that have an effect on the financial statements that is less than material but which
warrants the attention of those charged with governance. In connection with our audit, we did
not have any such findings.

Purpose of this Letter
Our management letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Legislative Auditing
Committee, members of the Florida Senate and the Florida House of Representatives, the Florida
Auditor General, Federal and other granting agencies the Board of Directors, applicable
management, and District School Board of Clay County, Florida and is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Respectfully submitted,

September 10, 2019
Tampa, Florida

Page 244 of 334

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 2, 2020 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C18 - Clay Education Foundation Audit for the 2018-2019 Fiscal Year

Description
Review the 2018-2019 Annual Audit report for Clay Education Foundation operating under the Clay County School District.
 

Gap Analysis
An annual audit is required in accordance with the Government Auditing Standards for the Clay Education Foundation, a
nonprofit organization recognized as a component unit of the School District of Clay County School District.  

Previous Outcomes
The School Board of Clay County received and reviewed the annual audit report of the Clay Education Foundation.

Expected Outcomes
The School Board of Clay County will receive and review the annual audit report of the Clay Education Foundation.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility and equitable distribution of resources.

Recommendation
Review the final audit report for the Clay Education Foundation

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

2019 Audit for  Clay County Education Foundation.pdf

Page 245 of 334

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2019-audit-for-clay-county-education-foundation.pdf


Page 246 of 334

DRAFT



Page 247 of 334

DRAFT



Page 248 of 334

DRAFT



Page 249 of 334

DRAFT



Page 250 of 334

DRAFT



Page 251 of 334

DRAFT



Page 252 of 334

DRAFT



Page 253 of 334

DRAFT



Page 254 of 334

DRAFT



Page 255 of 334

DRAFT



Page 256 of 334

DRAFT



Page 257 of 334

DRAFT



Page 258 of 334

DRAFT



Page 259 of 334

DRAFT



Page 260 of 334

DRAFT



Page 261 of 334

DRAFT



Page 262 of 334

DRAFT



Page 263 of 334

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 2, 2020 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C19 - Monthly Financial Reports for February, 2020

Description
The Monthly Financial Reports, in accordance with SBE Rule 6A-1.008, are submitted for the use and consideration of the Board
for the month ending February 29, 2020.
 

Gap Analysis
The Monthly Financial Reports show compliance to the district's amended budget as of the month end reported and meet State
and School Board financial reporting requirements.
 

Previous Outcomes
It has been a past (normal) practice to provide Monthly Financial Reports, in accordance with SBE Rule 6A-1.008.
 

Expected Outcomes
The Monthly Financial Reports are provided to meet the stewardship responsibilities of the district for reporting and
accountability of the district's finances.
 

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2:  Strategy 2.4:  Ensure effective and efficient use of resources for fiscal stability.

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board accept for use and consideration the Superintendent's Monthly Financial Reports for
February, 2020.

Contact
Dr. Susan M. Legutko, Assistant Superintendent of Business Affairs, (904) 336-672, susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
The Monthly Financial Reports reflect the year-to-date results of operations.

Review Comments

Attachments

February Monthly Property Report.pdf

February Monthly Financial Report.pdf

Page 264 of 334

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/february-monthly-property-report.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/february-monthly-financial-report_3.pdf


Page 265 of 334

DRAFT



Page 266 of 334

DRAFT



Page 267 of 334

DRAFT



Page 268 of 334

DRAFT



Page 269 of 334

DRAFT



Page 270 of 334

DRAFT



Page 271 of 334

DRAFT



Page 272 of 334

DRAFT



Page 273 of 334

DRAFT



Page 274 of 334

DRAFT



Page 275 of 334

DRAFT



Page 276 of 334

DRAFT



Page 277 of 334

DRAFT



Page 278 of 334

DRAFT



Page 279 of 334

DRAFT



Page 280 of 334

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 2, 2020 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C20 - Budget Amendment for Month Ending February 29, 2020

Description
Florida State Board of Education Administrative Rule 6A-1.006 requires that the School Board approve amendments to the
district school budget whenever the function and object amounts in the accoutns prescribed by the State Board are changed
fromthe original budget approved by the School Board.  The Budget Amendments are procedurally necessary to update our
budget to reflect changes as outlined in the attached statements.

Gap Analysis
The monthly budget amendments show compliance to the district's amended budget as of the month end reported and meet State
and School Board financial reporting requirements.

Previous Outcomes
It has been past (normal) practice to provide budget amendemtns, in accourdance with Florida State Board of Education
Administrative Rule 6A-1.006.

Expected Outcomes
The monthly budget amendments are provded to meet stewardship responsibilities of the district for reporting and accountability
of the district budget.

Strategic Plan Goal
The district ensures fiscal responsibility and equitable distribution of resources.

Recommendation
Approval of the Budget Amendments as presented for February 29, 2020.

Contact
Dr, Susan M. Legutko Assistant Superintendent for Business  Affairs  (904) 336-6721

Financial Impact
As presented

Review Comments

Attachments

Budget Amendments February 2020.pdf

Page 281 of 334

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/budget-amendments-february-2020.pdf


Page 282 of 334

DRAFT



Page 283 of 334

DRAFT



Page 284 of 334

DRAFT



Page 285 of 334

DRAFT



Page 286 of 334

DRAFT



Page 287 of 334

DRAFT



Page 288 of 334

DRAFT



Page 289 of 334

DRAFT



Page 290 of 334

DRAFT



Page 291 of 334

DRAFT



Page 292 of 334

DRAFT



Page 293 of 334

DRAFT



Page 294 of 334

DRAFT



Page 295 of 334

DRAFT



Page 296 of 334

DRAFT



Page 297 of 334

DRAFT



Page 298 of 334

DRAFT



Page 299 of 334

DRAFT



Page 300 of 334

DRAFT



Page 301 of 334

DRAFT



Page 302 of 334

DRAFT



Page 303 of 334

DRAFT



Page 304 of 334

DRAFT



Page 305 of 334

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 2, 2020 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C21 - Student Activity Account (Internal Account)  Audits  for the 2018-2019 Fiscal Year

Description
SBE Rule 6A-1.087 requires a written report to the school board covering internal funds which includes any notations of any
failure to comply with requirements of Florida Statues, State Board of Education Regulations and policies of the school board
and commentary as to financial management and irregularities.  This report is being presented and filed as a part of the public
record.  After reports were prepared for each of the 42 schools, each respective principal'supervisor was provided with the report
which identified departures from Florida Statutes, SBE Rules, rules of the School Board and school internal account policies and
procedures, as applicable.  Each principal/supervisor has responded and the reply is made a part of each report.

Gap Analysis
SBE Rule 6A-1.087, Florida Administrative Code, requires the submission of a written and signed report to the School Board for
the audit of Student Activity Account.  

Previous Outcomes
For the 2018-19 school year, the Student Activity Funds (Internal Accounts) were audited by the District's Auditing Firm Purvis
Gray & Company.  

Expected Outcomes
The submission of the reports will provide greater transparency regarding the accuracy of financial reportings and compliance
with applicable statutes, rules, guidelines, policies and procedures.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal; Strategy 2.4:  Ensure effective and efficient use of resources for fiscal stability.

Recommendation
Receive and file the individual school reports and responses for the year ending June 30, 2018.

Contact
Dr. Susan M. Legutko, Assistant Superintendent of Business Affairs ,  Mary Kay Kirk, Student Activity Account, (904) 336
6746

Financial Impact
There is no financial impact on schools or budgets by the receipt of these reports and responses.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 306 of 334

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 2, 2020 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C22 - Revised 2020-2021 Payroll Calendar for 9-Month Employees

Description
The adopted payroll calendars serve as the instrument for the reporting of employees for payroll purposes.  
An error was discovered in the number of days worked on the 9-month employee payroll calendar; the correct number of days
worked is 185.    

Gap Analysis
Section V (5.04) of the School Board of Clay County rules states that the School Board shall annually adopt a payroll calendar
for pay periods and paydays for the employees of the Board.  Approval of a calendar is necessary to be in compliance with this
rule.

Previous Outcomes
All proposed 2020-2021 payroll calendars were developed based on the approved employee work calendar which was adopted
December 12, 2019.  The original 9-month payroll calendar was approved on the March 5, 2020 Board Agenda.

Expected Outcomes
Proposed calendars should be approved by the school board.    

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective, equitable, and efficient use of resources.

Recommendation
Recommend approval of the proposed revision. 

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent of Business Affairs, ext. 66721, susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

2020-2021 Payroll Calendar 9 Month-revised.pdf

Page 307 of 334

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2020-2021-payroll-calendar-9-month-revised.pdf


CLAY COUNTY DISTRICT SCHOOLS
2020 - 2021 PAYROLL CALENDAR

9 MONTH EMPLOYEES

# Checks Remaining 
Checks PAY DATE Pay Period BEGIN DATE END DATE

8/7/20 - 5/28/21 8/11/20 - 5/28/21 8/10/20 - 5/28/21 8/10/20 - 5/27/21 8/11/20 - 5/26/21

PAID HOLIDAY NON WORK NON PAID DAY(S) ADDITIONAL NOTES
9 month 

Classroom 
Assistants, ESE 

Assistants, 
Secondary ISS

9 month 
Transportation 

Bus Drivers, Bus 
Monitors, Fuel 

Attendants

9 month 
Elementary 

Cafe Assistant, 
Van Drivers

9 month JR/SR 
High Cafe 

Assistant, Van 
Drivers

9 month 
Elementary ISS

SUMMER/CLOSEOUT 07/10/20 2001122 06/02/20 06/30/20
1 21 08/31/20 2001160 08/02/20 08/15/20 6 4 5 5 4
2 20 09/15/20 2001170 08/16/20 08/29/20 10 10 10 10 10 Insurance Deductions Begin
3 19 09/30/20 2001180 08/30/20 09/12/20 10 10 10 10 10 Labor Day 9/7
4 18 10/15/20 2001190 09/13/20 09/26/20 10 10 10 10 10
5 17 10/30/20 2001200 09/27/20 10/10/20 10 10 10 10 10
6 16 11/13/20 2001210 10/11/20 10/24/20 9 9 9 9 9 Teacher Planning 10/12
7 15 11/30/20 2001220 10/25/20 11/07/20 10 10 10 9 10 10 10/30 Early Release Elem Cafe Asst/Van Driver
8 14 12/15/20 2001230 11/08/20 11/21/20 10 10 10 10 10 Veteran's Day 11/11
9 13 12/31/20 2001240 11/22/20 12/12/20 11 11 11 11 11 Thanksgiving 11/26 Thanksgiving 11/23-25,27

10 12 01/15/21 2101010 12/13/20 01/02/21 7 7 6 6 6 Christmas 12/25, New Year's 1/1
Early Release 12/18 (All Cafe Asst/Van Driver, Elem 

ISS), Christmas 12/21-24, 12/26-31
11 11 01/30/21 2101020 01/03/21 01/16/21 9 9 9 9 9 Teacher Planning 1/4
12 10 02/15/21 2101030 01/17/21 01/30/21 10 10 10 10 10 Martin Luther King Day 1/18
13 9 02/26/21 2101040 01/31/21 02/13/21 10 10 10 10 10
14 8 03/15/21 2101050 02/14/21 02/27/21 9 9 9 9 9 President's Day 2/15
15 7 03/31/21 2101060 02/28/21 03/13/21 10 10 10 10 10
16 6 04/15/21 2101070 03/14/21 04/03/21 8 8 8 8 8 Spring Break 3/15-22, Good Friday 4/2
17 5 04/30/21 2101080 04/04/21 04/17/21 9 9 9 9 9 Fair Day 4/5
18 4 05/14/21 2101090 04/18/21 05/01/21 10 10 10 10 10
19 3 05/28/21 2101100 05/02/21 05/15/21 10 10 10 10 10
20 2 06/15/21 2101110 05/16/21 05/22/21 5 5 5 5 5

21 1 06/30/21 2101120 05/23/21 05/28/21 5 5 5 4 3
Elem ISS 5/26 last work day 

Insurance Deductions End
Early Release 5/28 JR/SR High Cafe Asst/Van Drivers

9 month Adult Temporary/Miscellaeous/Student labor personnel are 
paid based on this payroll calendar

188 186 186 185 185 183 Total Work Days Board Approved 03/05/2020

Page 308 of 334

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 2, 2020 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C23 - Deletion of Certain Items Report - March, 2020

Description
The items listed have been surveyed by the Coordinator of Property Control, at the request of the Cost Center Property Manager,
and the recommended disposition is noted.  These items are either obsolete, unusable or beyond economical repair.  These items
should be removed from active inventory and disposed of in the manner indicated.  Deletions are for property items received in
the month of February, 2020.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Property Records followed State mandate on trackable assets, Chapter 274.05.

Expected Outcomes
Tangible Personal Property shall be controlled and supervised from acquisition through transfer or disposal.  Disposal of property
shall be in accordance with Section 274.05, Florida Statutes.  All deletions of items with a value of $1,000.00 or more will be
approved by The School Board of Clay County prior to disposition - School Board Policy Section 5.03C.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2: Strategy 2.4; Ensure effective and efficient use of resources for fiscal stability. 

Recommendation
Approve Deletion of Certain Items Report - February, 2020 as submitted.

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko,
Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs
(904)-336-6721
susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Provides additional storage space and eliminates the need to account for unusable property.  Reduces the dollar value of Tangible
Personal Property.

Review Comments

Attachments

Deletion-Report-March-2020.pdf

Page 309 of 334

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/deletion-report-march-2020.pdf


Depreciation

03/31/2020

Acquisition PurchaseDisposalDisposal
ValueDate AmountDateDescriptionTag

Monthly Deletion Report
For Month Ending:

Clay County Public Schools

Method
LCTN 0341 CLAY HIGH SCHOOL

6,363.47 6,363.47PRINTER: COLOR LASER - OKIDATA Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  03/02/2020 09/08/201112000105
6,299.25 6,299.25MOWER: GRAVELY 0-RADIUS 61" Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  03/04/2020 06/14/200100075516

12,662.72 6,363.47

LCTN 0391 MIDDLEBURG HIGH SCHOOL
1,349.00 1,349.00LAPTOP: LATITUDE D820 - DELL Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  03/02/2020 10/12/200600085490
1,023.65 1,023.65LAPTOP - DELL LATITUDE E6420 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  03/02/2020 04/12/201212000665
1,134.70 1,134.70LAPTOP - DELL LATITUDE E6430 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  03/02/2020 01/17/201313100314

18,169.20 5,407.50COPIER: RICOH PRO 8110S Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  03/02/2020 06/08/201717000622
21,676.55 9,806.60

LCTN 0481 LAKE ASBURY JUNIOR HIGH
6,793.67 6,793.67LIFT:MOBILE DEMO UNIT - 5001 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  03/02/2020 07/22/200400081147
6,793.67 5,407.50

LCTN 0611 OAKLEAF JUNIOR HIGH
1,469.94 1,469.94LAMINATOR: ROLL - ULTIMA Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  03/02/2020 06/28/200600089967
1,469.94 6,793.67

LCTN 0631 SHADOWLAWN ELEMENTARY
4,095.00 4,095.00COPIER: DIGITAL W/FINISH/CABIN Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  03/02/2020 08/14/200800096549
4,095.00 1,469.94

LCTN 9010 TRANSPORTATION
77,154.23 77,154.23BUS: SCHOOL 65 PASSENGER 2009 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  03/02/2020 07/24/2008B0000671
77,154.24 77,154.24BUS: SCHOOL 65 PASSENGER 2009 Motor VehiclesSurplus Sale  03/04/2020 07/24/2008B0000661

154,308.47 81,249.23

LCTN 9110 FOOD & NUTRITION SERVICES
5,981.00 5,981.00COPIER: COLOR - RICOH MPC4502 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  03/02/2020 04/12/201212000474
5,981.00 77,154.24

03/31/202003/01/2020Date Range 108:35:5103/05/2020 Page 310 of 334

DRAFT



Depreciation

03/31/2020

Acquisition PurchaseDisposalDisposal
ValueDate AmountDateDescriptionTag

Monthly Deletion Report
For Month Ending:

Clay County Public Schools

Method

206,987.35
Totals for Deletion Report

188,244.65

Note: FEBRUARY 2020 DELETIONS
Disposal Method Descriptions:

JUNK/PARTS - Part(s) of an asset are used and remainder of part(s) are sold, recycled or disposed

TRADE-IN - Vendor issues a credit towards a new purchase

THEFT/VANDALISM - Items stolen or broken (police report attached)

MISSING - Items lost and are not found during property inventory (Annually)

SURPLUS SALE - Items that are outdated, not working or obsolete.  Items are either sold, recycled or disposed

ENTERED IN ERROR- Not used

TRANSFER/DONATION - From Clay County District to an Outside Agency (Approved by Board or Superintendent)

DESTROYED - Fire/Natural Disaster, etc.

Total Software
0.00

Total Audio Visual
0.00

Total Vehicles
154,308.47

Total Furniture
52,678.88

THRESHOLD (ex. $750 TO $1000)

03/31/202003/01/2020Date Range 208:35:5103/05/2020 Page 311 of 334

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 2, 2020 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C24 - BID Renewal

Description
Renew BID as required per FS 287, DOE 6A-1.012 and School Board Policy
a.  Epoxy Floor Services County Wide Bid #17-F-227:  Contract Period is July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021. The contract
period is for 1 year and is the second renewal option for Bid.

Gap Analysis
The District requires contractors to provide services to ensure our ??facilities and equipment are maintained and functional. The
District requires vendors to provide products to ensure our students and staff receive the items to meet their needs.

Previous Outcomes
Original Bid was Board approved and has been used successfully during the past term to provide quality services and products to
the district.

Expected Outcomes
Upon approval by the Board; we expect the contractors and vendors? to continue providing quality services and products at the
same terms and conditions as when the original Bid were awarded.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2; Strategy 2.4; Ensure effective and efficient use of resources for fiscal stability.

Recommendation
Extend renewal as follows:
a. Epoxy Floor Services County Wide Bid #17-F-227:

Ronald Lance Tile & Resinous Systems LLC, 665 Dew Drop Lane, Pierson, FL 32180-

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs, Phone: (904)336-6721, Email: susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
a. Epoxy Floor Services County Wide Bid #17-F-227: Contract Term Estimated $40,000.00 from General and Capital Revenue

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 312 of 334

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 2, 2020 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C25 - Pre-Qualification of Contractors

Description
Section 1013.46 of Florida Statutes requires School Boards to pre-qualify contractors prior to their being able to bid on
construction projects for the district. The rules for pre-qualification are stipulated in the State Requirements for Educational
Facilities (SREF). The attached list identifies the contractors to be approved this month. As this is an annual requirement, the
attached list may contain both new contractors and contractors seeking to renew their pre-qualification status. Per Florida
Statutes, only those contractors currently pre-qualified at the time of bidding may bid on a School Board construction project.

Gap Analysis
Contractor Pre-Qualification is an annual requirement.

Previous Outcomes
CCDS complies with contractor pre-qualification as required by Florida Statutes and SREF (State Requirements for Educational
Facilities).

Expected Outcomes
CCDS will remain in compliance by certifying the contractors recommended for pre-qualification meet the requirements of
Section 1013.46 FS, the State Requirements for Educational Facilities (SREF) and School Board Policy.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students.

Recommendation
Approve the attached Contractor Pre-qualification list.

Contact
Dr. Michael Kemp, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net Bryce Ellis,
Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None.

Review Comments

Attachments

Table for Board Backup Contractor Prequal, 4.2.20.pdf

Page 313 of 334

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/table-for-board-backup-contractor-prequal-4220_1.pdf


SBCC PRE-QUALIFIED CONTRACTORS 
 
 
The following contractors are being submitted to the School Board for Contractor Pre-Qualification approval 
having met all requirements of Chapter 1013.46 F. S., as determined by the Pre-Qualification Committee 
consisting of Bryce Ellis, Phil Hans, Bertie Staefe, Chris Deely-Isais and Janice Kerekes.  The pre-qualification 
certification is valid for one year from the end of the month in which Board approval is obtained. 

 
 

COMPANY TRADE CATEGORY BOND LIMIT EXPIRATION DATE 

Jeff’s Excavating, Inc. Underground Utility & 
Excavation Contractor 

$300,000.00 April 30, 2021 

Mid-State Electric of Ocala, Inc. Electrical Contractor $15,000,000.00 April 30, 2021 

General Mechanical Corporation 

d/b/a GMC Construction 

General, Mechanical, 
Roofing, Solar, and 

Underground Utility & 
Excavation Contractor 

$10,000,000.00 April 30, 2021 

Core Construction Company General Contractor $7,500,000.00 April 30, 2021 

Engineered Lining Systems, Inc. General, Plumbing, and 
Underground Utility & 
Excavation Contractor 

$5,000,000.00 April 30, 2021 

IDS Alarm Services, Inc. Alarm System $2,500,000.00 April 30, 2021 

Culpepper Construction Company General Contractor $100,000,000.00 April 30, 2021 

 

Page 314 of 334

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 2, 2020 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C26 - Change Order #1 for Keystone Heights High School Site Improvements (Sanitary Line)

Description
Change Orders are initiated by the Contractor, Architect/Engineer or Owner, and may increase or decrease the scope of the
project as defined by the plans and specifications.  Change Orders are reviewed by the Architect/Engineer and staff prior to
submission to the School Board for approval.  This change order is for emergency water line repair and credit air release valve
that was deemed not needed.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Construction will proceed immediately translating to an on time completion.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students. 

Recommendation
Approve Change Order # 1.

Contact
Dr. Michael Kemp, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net,
Bryce Ellis, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
This change order will increase the contract amount by $4,611.88.   These funds are available and budgeted in the Educational
Facilities Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

KHS Site Improvements CO 1.pdf

Page 315 of 334

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/khs-site-improvements-co-1.pdf


Page 316 of 334

DRAFT



Page 317 of 334

DRAFT



Page 318 of 334

DRAFT



Page 319 of 334

DRAFT



Page 320 of 334

DRAFT



Page 321 of 334

DRAFT



Page 322 of 334

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 2, 2020 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C27 - Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) Plans and Specifications for Clay High School Security Lighting
Repair/Replacement

Description
Each phase or combination of phases is submitted to the School Board for review and approval.  The plans have received staff
review and are complete to Schematic/Preliminary/Final ( Phase III) stage.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Individual departments have the opportunity to express needs during plan review in order to design a project that will meet user’s
expectations. 

Expected Outcomes
Schematic, Preliminary and Final Plan review allows for participation from a variety of departments to ensure any program
changes are incorporated into the design. 

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students. 

Recommendation
Approve Schematic/Preliminary/Final ( Phase III) Plans and Specifications for the Clay High School Security Lighting
Repair/Replacement.

Contact
Dr. Michael Kemp, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net,
Bryce Ellis, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
As budgeted in the Educational Facilities Plan for $100,000.00.  The architect’s cost estimate is $75,000.00.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 323 of 334

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 2, 2020 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C28 - Clay High School Erosion Control/Stormwater Repair Contract Award

Description
This project is listed in the Educational Facilities Plan (EFP).  The award of a construction project in excess of $50,000.00
requires School Board approval.
The selection was conducted in accordance with Florida Statute 287.055.  The project was advertised for three (3) consecutive
weeks with The Clay Today.  The bid opening was held March 12, 2020 at 2:30 p.m.  The project had Three (3) bidders and all
bidders met the bid requirements. 

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Construction of Clay High School Erosion Control/Stormwater Repair

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students. 

Recommendation
Award the construction contract to Hager Construction, the low bidder meeting specifications the base bid in the amount of
$165,969.00.

Contact
Dr. Michael Kemp, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net,
Bryce Ellis, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
These funds are available and budgeted in the Educational Facilities Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

CHS Erosion Control.Sotrmwater Repair Bid Tab.pdf

Page 324 of 334

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/chs-erosion-controlsotrmwater-repair-bid-tab.pdf


Page 325 of 334

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 2, 2020 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C29 - Wilkinson Elementary School Fire Alarm Replacement Contract Award

Description
This project is listed in the Educational Facilities Plan (EFP).  The award of a construction project in excess of $50,000.00
requires School Board approval.
The selection was conducted in accordance with Florida Statute 287.055.  The project was advertised for three (3) consecutive
weeks with The Clay Today.  The bid opening was held March 12, 2020 at 2:00 p.m.  The project had Three (3) bidders and all
bidders met the bid requirements. 

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Construction of Wilkinson Elementary School Fire Alarm Replacement

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students. 

Recommendation
Award the construction contract to T & M Electric, the low bidder meeting specifications the base bid in the amount of
$311,320.00.

Contact
Dr. Michael Kemp, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net,
Bryce Ellis, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
These funds are available and budgeted in the Educational Facilities Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

WES Fire Alarm Replacement Bid Tab.pdf

Page 326 of 334

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/wes-fire-alarm-replacement-bid-tab.pdf


Page 327 of 334

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 2, 2020 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C30 - Keystone Heights Elementary School Roof Replacement/Repair (Building 10) Contract Award

Description
This project is listed in the Educational Facilities Plan (EFP).  The award of a construction project in excess of $50,000.00
requires School Board approval.
The selection was conducted in accordance with Florida Statute 287.055.  The project was advertised for three (3) consecutive
weeks with The Clay Today.  The bid opening was held March 10, 2020 at 2:30 p.m.  The project had six (6) bidders and all
bidders met the bid requirements. 

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Construction of Keystone Heights Elementary School Roof Replacement/Repair (Building 10).

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students. 
 

Recommendation
Award the construction contract to BBG Contracting, the low bidder meeting specifications the base bid in the amount of
$147,500.00.
 

Contact
Dr. Michael Kemp, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net,
Bryce Ellis, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
These funds are available and budgeted in the Educational Facilities Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

KHE Roof Replacement Bldg 10 Bid Tab.pdf

Page 328 of 334

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/khe-roof-replacement-bldg-10-bid-tab.pdf


Page 329 of 334

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 2, 2020 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C31 - Lakeside Junior High School Parking Lot Renovation Contract Award

Description
This project is listed in the Educational Facilities Plan (EFP).  The award of a construction project in excess of $50,000.00
requires School Board approval.
The selection was conducted in accordance with Florida Statute 287.055.  The project was advertised for three (3) consecutive
weeks with The Clay Today.  The bid opening was held March 10, 2020 at 2:00 p.m.  The project had three (3) bidders and all
bidders met the bid requirements. 

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Construction of Lakeside Junior High School Parking Lot Renovation.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students. 

Recommendation
Award the construction contract to Besch & Smith, the low bidder meeting specifications the base bid in the amount of
$286,166.14.

Contact
Dr. Michael Kemp, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net,
Bryce Ellis, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
These funds are available and budgeted in the Educational Facilities Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

LSJH Parking Lot Renovation Bid Tab.pdf

Page 330 of 334

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/lsjh-parking-lot-renovation-bid-tab.pdf


Page 331 of 334

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 2, 2020 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C32 - County-Wide Architectural Services up to $2 Million Contract Award

Description
The selection was conducted in accordance with Florida Statute 287.055.  The project was advertised for three consecutive weeks
with The Clay Today.  Six (6) firms submitted proposals.  Selection Committee members were Bryce Ellis, Director of Facility
Planning and Construction, David Kramer, Project Manager, and Ashley Gilhousen, Board Member.  As a result of interviews
and after due consideration, the Selection Committee recommends the following firms listed below be selected for a period of 1
year with the option for renewal:

Bhide & Hall Architects, P.A.-
Brian Boatright Architect-
Ebert Norman Brady Architects-
Kasper Architects and Associates-

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Awarding a continuing contract for professional architecture services authorizes a firm or individual to proceed with School
Board projects not exceeding a specified monetary value specified in Board Policy for a period of one year.  The appointment
may be extended for an additional period if agreeable to the School Board and the architecture firm(s).  The appointed
architecture firm(s) shall be available to design, manage, and inspect any School Board projects under the authorized limit
without having to bid against other firms.    

Expected Outcomes
This contract allows for more efficient project schedules, which subsequently provides a timelier project completion. The
appointed architecture firm(s) shall be available to design, manage, and inspect any projects under the authorized limit. 

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students. 

Recommendation
Approval of continuing contracts for Professional Services with the following Architectural firms:  Bhide & Hall Architects,
P.A., Brian Boatright Architect, Ebert Norman Brady Architects, and Kasper Architects and Associates. 

Contact
Dr. Michael Kemp, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net,
Bryce Ellis, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
All funding necessary for the Architectural fees resulting from this contract are budgeted within the Educational Facilities Plan.
Fiscal impact will be based on the budget of the individual projects.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 332 of 334

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 2, 2020 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
Adoption of Consent Agenda

Description
This item is for motion and action in all items contained in the Consent Agenda.

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation
Approve the Consent Agenda.

Contact
????, Superintendent of Schools,       @myoneclay.net, Bonnie O'Nora, Board Assistant

Financial Impact
See individual Consent item statements.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 333 of 334

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

April 2, 2020 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
D1 - Human Resources Special Action

Description
Florida Statutes (F.S. 1012.22(1)(9f), State Board Rules and Clay County School Board Policies require Board notification
and/or action regarding decisions and recommendations of the Superintendent related to Personnel matters.  

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5:  Develop and support great educators, support personnel, and leaders.

Recommendation
Approve the action as presented.

Contact
David S. Broskie, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources  (904) 336 6701   David.Broskie@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 334 of 334

DRAFT


